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Financial Summary

MBERE

(Amounts expressed in thousands of RMB)

(FrESBHUARBE T TRENL)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive

Income (Audited)
Year ended December 31

“E——FFR - M ERERARAR 5

B GRERER (BER)

BE+-A=1—HIFEZ

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—ETF ZTENF ETNF TITF ZB——F
Total revenue @S 1,221,624 1,971,688 1,166,827 1,804,976 2,827,141
Total operating expenses IR (710,597)  (1,190,063) (925,608) (1,170,963) (1,727,981)
Finance costs, net %8R EE (76,911) (7,787) (57,280) (51,444) (159,754)
Gain arising from acquisition Y& Emir-Oil,
of Emir-Oil, LLC LLC F& — — — — 460,345
Profit before tax 4 %t ALz 7] 434,116 773,838 183,939 582,569 1,399,751
Income tax expense Frisif (125,163) (162,748) (73,462) (161,705) (293,909)
Profit for the year FE % T 308,953 611,090 110,477 420,864 1,105,842
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position SHB BT (REX)
(Audited)
As at December 31 R+—A=+—H
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
ZETHF ZTEN\F ETNF TITF ZEB——F
Current assets MBEE 815,235 1,165,636 988,030 1,156,075 1,530,976
Property, plant and TEE - T
equipment, net KRB FE 1,707,106 2,486,943 2,665,143 3,024,482 5,267,499
Derivative financial PTEemITA
instruments — 94,912 — 20,285 -
Intangible assets EREE 558 6,043 2,599 1,677 584,322
Investment BE — — — — 3,966
Amount due from JiE W A% 3R SR IE
shareholder 449,438 — — — —
Restricted cash ZRRHEE — — — — 7,530
Trade and other receivables JE S % E b e Ug
RIE — 71,805 70,360 24,212 32,032
Total assets BERE 2,972,337 3,825,339 3,726,132 4,226,731 7,426,325
Current liabilities mEEE 1,497,234 1,575,017 966,110 919,376 1,569,830
Non-current liabilities EREAE 805,736 1,106,557 1,506,576 1,347,424 2,893,842
Total liabilities BEReRE 2,302,970 2,681,574 2,472,686 2,266,300 4,463,672
Equity M 669,367 1,143,765 1,253,446 1,959,931 2,962,653
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Operating Summary

EERE

Year ended December 31
BE+—A=+—-ALLFE

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—TTEFE T N\F ZTENEFE T-TF E——F
(Note 1)
(Bf=E)
Sales volume HE
Crude oil (millions of barrels) BEh(EER) 2.33 2.72 2.92 3.42 4.03
China oilfields AR B 2.33 2.72 2.92 3.42 3.84
Kazakhstan oilfields S & 7o Hr 1B m A — — — — 0.19
Export sales HOHE — — — — 0.17
Domestic sales HAHE — — — — 0.02
Gas (MMscf) RAR (BBEE
JYFER) — — — — 439.67
Kazakhstan oilfields M BE SR HT 38 5k M 439.67
Net annual production volume FBEEE
Crude oil (millions of barrels) Ra (BB 2.35 2.98 2.79 3.41 4.06
China oilfields AR Bk 2.35 2.98 2.79 3.41 3.87
Kazakhstan oilfields M BE TR HT 38 ik | — — — — 0.19
Gas (MMscf) AR (BBEE
IBER) — - — - 446.93
Kazakhstan oilfields I & 72 A8 i 446.93
Average daily net production B9 FES
Crude oil (barrels) JEm (4@) 6,439 8,150 7,637 9,349 12,705
China oilfields B [ 6,439 8,150 7,637 9,349 10,601
Kazakhstan oilfields I8 5 72 Hf 18 5 A — — — — 2,104
Gas (MMscf) AR (BBEE
YFER) — — — — 4.9
Kazakhstan oilfields M BE TR HT 38 ik M — — — — 4.9
Average realized price FHERER
Crude oil (US$ per barrel B (ERx,/ 58
of crude oil) &) 69.00 104.78 58.58 77.99 108.80
China oilfields B [ 69.00 104.78 58.58 77.99 109.99
Kazakhstan oilfields S & e Hr iR A — — — — 84.38
Export sales HOHE — — — — 90.01
Domestic sales HAHE — — — — 31.02
Gas (US$ per MMscf) AAR (Ex, BHEEE
YFER) — — — — 1,148.51
Kazakhstan oilfields M BE SR HT 38 5k M — — — — 1,148.51
Lifting costs (US$ per barrel B R A
of crude oil) (2 =8
(Note 2) Bh) (ffat2) 5.38 4.87 6.08 6.06 7.29
China oilfields AR Bk 5.38 4.87 6.08 6.06 7.16
Kazakhstan oilfields 5 B 52, 73R S A — — — — 9.70
Wells drilled during the year FREHEH
(Gross) (#2280 192 389 189 200 467
China oil fields " Sl H 192 389 189 200 466
Successful B Ih &% 191 389 188 200 466
Dry w3 1 0 1 0 1
Kazakhstan oilfields A E R ETE A — — — — 0
Successful FRID R — — — — 0
Dry 72 — — — — 0
Notes: Btat -

R F7HBERRPEHEAR T —F2F2H8ER
BERAEAAREE—T——Ft - A=+t—HIL=EA
ZEB o

(1) The data of 2011 refers to the whole year of 2011 for China oilfields (1)
and the three months ended December 31, 2011 for Kazakhstan
oilfields.

(2)  Lifting cost includes directly controllable costs to produce a barrel of ~ (2)  FOBKABFEEE —RBAM L BERAIEHIRA o MEER

oil. Other production costs such as safety fee, environment expenses, A28 REEM RRAREXUAREELERS

technical & research expenses and overhead have not been included UABEERN  REZZERAIL IEEE RO HNEEK
above since they are not directly attributable to the production of a Ao

barrel of oil.



Operating Summary (continued)

EEME ()

“E——FFR - Ml gERERERAR 7

Year ended December 31
BE+-A=+—RHILEE

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—EELFE ZETN\FE ZTTHAFE =ZT—-F —E——F
Net Reserves BHE
Crude Oil (thousands of R (F48)

barrels)

Total proved developed RACHRREELE 14,067 17,525 19,195 20,501 41,782
China oil fields AR Bk 14,067 17,525 19,195 20,501 21,539
Kazakhstan oilfields MiE AR M A — — — — 20,243

Total proved undeveloped FARBEREREE 23,438 11,303 11,699 12,435 19,218
China oil fields AR Bk 23,438 11,303 11,699 12,435 12,449
Kazakhstan oilfields MiE AR M A — — — — 6,769

Total proved RRREHE 36,875 28,828 30,894 32,936 61,000

Total probable developed BECHRRELEE 4,205 6,921 7,059 7,627 28,935
China oil fields AR Bk 4,205 6,921 7,059 7,627 6,770
Kazakhstan oilfields M BE SR HT 38 5k M — — — — 22,165

Total probable undeveloped BERERREEEE 24,257 14,886 17,048 11,978 20,908
China oil fields AR B 24,257 14,886 17,048 11,978 9,550
Kazakhstan oilfields M BE SR HT 38 5k M — — — — 11,358

Total probable BEEEARE 28,462 21,807 24,107 19,605 49,843
Total possible AREA R 15,137 11,658 11,161 13,859 27,972
China oil fields AR Bk 15,137 11,658 11,161 13,859 9,475
Kazakhstan oilfields MiE AR M A — — — — 18,497
Gas (MMscf) AR (BBEEIFHER)

Total proved developed RACHRREELE — — — — 22,879
Kazakhstan oilfield M BE SR HT 38 5k | — — — — 22,879

Total proved undeveloped FARBEREREE — — — — 6,464
Kazakhstan oilfield MiE AR M A — — — — 6,464

Total proved RARELE — — — — 29,343

Total probable developed BHEOCHRREELSE — — — — 16,310
Kazakhstan oilfields M BE S HT 38 5k | — — — — 16,310

Total probable undeveloped BERERREELAE — — — — 17,687
Kazakhstan oilfields M BE S HT 38 5k | — — — — 17,687

Total probable BHEEEARE — — — — 33,997
Total possible ARER R — — — — 30,084
Kazakhstan oilfields MeiE AR M A — — — — 30,084
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEREE(E)

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (“Board”), | hereby present
the annual results of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2011. The Company continued its rapid growth both on its
China assets and by acquiring Emir-Oil, LLC ("Emir-Qil”) in
Kazakhstan, our first major international expansion and then the
successful acquisition of the Niobrara Asset (defined below) in
USA. Net profit, after adjusting out the one time RMB460
million gain from the Emir-Oil acquisition, increased 53% from
RMB421 million to RMB645 million. Sales volume increased by
20% from 3.42 million barrels to 4.03 million barrels, and
average realized oil prices increased by 40% from US$77.99 per
barrel to US$108.80 per barrel compared to the prior year. Since
our initial public offering (“IPO") in December 2010 on the main
board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (”Stock
Exchange”), and with active support from our shareholders, our
share price has increased significantly from the IPO price of
HK$1.70 to a high of HK$4.40* per share and has been trading
in a range of HK$2.85% to HK$3.25* per share for the thirty
calendar days ended March 19, 2012. Our solid China assets
and new Kazakhstan assets provide a new stronger base for
continued rapid growth, plus we are poised to acquire additional
accretive assets.

The Company achieved another major milestone in May 2011
when the Company tapped the debt capital market and raised
US$400 million by issuing senior notes listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited. These notes, rated “B+"
by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and “B"” by Fitch, Inc.,
will mature on May 12, 2016 and bear coupon at 9.75% per
annum. Thanks to the support from our investors, our notes are
one of the best performing listed notes from a China issuer and
have traded at par or at a premium from March 2, 2012 to
March 19, 2012. The proceeds from these notes were used
primarily to repay the entire US$200 million credit facility with
CITIC Bank and to finance the acquisition of Emir-Oil. At
present, these notes remain our only long-term debt. Under
these notes, we are also allowed to take on additional debt of at
least US$250 million, which will increase as we increase our
asset base.

*  Source: Bloomberg

“E—FFH - M gEREREBRAR 9

BEMRR

RAANEREXEZEFS((EZC)2HARARBE=Z
——FTZA=T—RILFENFEEE c RAFIHEE
fEHAPEIEE - YA EE 5 BT A9 Emir-Oil, LLC ([Emir-
Oil) (AEMEREINEBNEZE —F) UREIEKY
U b 22 B ) Niobrara & B2 (B & R T 30) 77 A R LR o
Y% I (AL Emir-Oil BB EE £ 2 AR 4.60 80— IR 1
WS R AARBA21BITIEINE3% EARK6.45
Bt HEH322BEREM20%E4038 &M F
HEERBBHEFEM77.99E T L F40% =B
108.80%7T - BEMAR T —ZF T+ _AAEBBHAER
SHBRAR (B ERETERAAAEE ((EX
NABEEDERERRKNEE  SEMNKRESR1.70748
TZERXAABEEKNE LAEER4 40 BT R -
WREBZEZZE——F=AT A0 EZFAENTFEK
2.85* BILE3.25* BILHIKFER S - HIMFTHEA R HE
REIEE  ARFUBENRE R IENEE AR R
TRERRIE RO TG AIER - N ERMIEIETERE
BEREINNEE  RMOEBIIRBAEFE -

ARRE_E-——FHRAEIS 2128 AQAEBR
BEREARATGEE  BTENMEESFZZAER AR
FANBEREBSEIEET FRERELATAR
BRAEAB+] AR EEBERFRAMBEFA B &
R —Z—RFAAT-—HIHLERNEREFI.75
B 2BRMNREENTT  RAINZERE/BPEE
TABTHLETRBERPRAKESFNREZ— B
E-—F-AZRE_FT-_F=-"AthAhB-EREE
FHERS - ZEZBNASEFAIERERBEED
ERITHEERE 2B ETT AR R WHEEmMIr-Oil # & -
BA ZUEBEER/BRAIE-—ORMEYR - BEZF
SENRR BRATE-—TREEL25EET B%
HE S BEHAIE AL 0T R B 18 0 o

* BNKR 21
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Chairman's Statement (continued)

EREHESE (R)

During 2011,
performance. Turnover increased to RMB2.827 billion,

the Company delivered a brilliant financial

representing an increase of 56.6% from 2010. Profit before tax
surged 140.3% from the preceding year to RMB1,399.8 million.
EBITDA increased to RMB2.102 billion, representing an 80.8%
increase from the previous year. Net profit was RMB1,105.8
million, an increase of 162.7%. After adjusting for non-recurring
expenses/income, adjusted EBITDA (defined below) from core
operations increased to RMB1,725.3 million, and net profit from
core operations increased to RMB768.3 million. Earnings per
share increased by 121.1% to RMBO0.42 per share. In view of
the strong performance for 2011, the Board recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.044 per share.

During 2011, we successfully acquired oil and gas assets in
Kazakhstan and in the USA, becoming a growing international
upstream company. We continue as the largest independent
upstream oil company operating onshore in China as measured
by gross production under production sharing contracts with the
Daan, Moliging and Miao 3 oilfields in the Songliao Basin, the
most prolific oil-producing basin in the country. To that solid,
growing China base asset on which net daily production
increased by 13.4% from 9,349 barrels of oil per day (“BOPD")
in 2010 to 10,601 BOPD in 2011, we have added Emir-Qil in
Kazakhstan, which has three production contracts for the Aksaz,
Dolinnoe and Kariman producing oilfields, plus an exploration
contract that covers the Emir oilfield and the rest of the 850
square kilometer ADEK exploration contract area. With an
acquisition cost of US$159.6 million, Emir-Qil increases our
proved crude oil reserves by 27 million barrels, or 79%, to 61
million barrels at a cost of US$5.89 per barrel, and our proved +

RZZE——F  AQRBSE MM ELE -
R#28278T W_ZT—ZTFHEK56.6% - REAA
FIE = —F % 140.3% = AR 13.998 /27T © EBITDA
B E—FIE180.8% = ARKE21.02187T - FmMAA
ER#11.058187T © #1162.7% ° oL IEEE MUk
AEHFEE - ZOEBREREEBITDAGER R T30
BMEAREE 172631870 - MR OEBRFHEFIENE
AR 7683187 - BRAFIEMN121.1% ZBRARE
04270 - ERNZT——FHNBEKR  ARBESEEZ
TREE T 0.044 B TR REANE -

EHETIEE A

RZT——F - FAPIKIH P ba 12 5o A K 55 B A e
MRAREE KAE—HBERETPHEE AR - ER
EROKARBETHBESNE  BMEER —RHESP
BN & EM AR EBY EFaaaa REREE
WEMDWNERMBEAAL  ERSRE=MH - 5t
HmE  ZEEERNPEEANEENSRFESEA-
Z-ZEFHNEHMIBIEMIBA% E_T——FNE
H 10,6014 - FFI4E bh B X0 AR 52 53 H 38 &Y
Emir-Oil » H # /& Aksaz ~ Dolinnoe & Kariman 4 i [

M=MHEAR - I EEZEmirh A & ADEK 8 2 11
FIermiE L850 F R EMEIRA R > Emir-Oil 89Uk
BB A A 1.596 83T » I 5 P P A 1R BA FR M vk = 1 A0




Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEREE(E)

probable crude oil reserves by 61 million barrels, or 120% to
111 million barrels at a cost of US$2.63 per barrel, providing
significant future production and cash flow growth potential.
During the year, we also entered the shale oil industry in the
USA through Condor Energy Technology LLC, (“Condor”) in
which we have an 80% interest, with an upfront cost of US$3
million. Condor has acquired a 31.25% interest in and acts as
the operator of 7,450 net acres (30.1 square kilometers) in the
Niobrara oil shale play located at Weld County, Colorado, USA
(“Niobrara Asset”). While this acreage is currently not
producing, we, as the operator, plan to drill the first well in the
second quarter of 2012 to unlock the potential of this resource,
and at the same time gain technological and operating
experience in horizontal drilling and multi-stage fracturing
completions suitable for use elsewhere in the world, in
particular, in China’s shale gas resources.

Our acquisition strategy for 2012 is to continue to evaluate
opportunities in China where the main potential for expansion in
the near term is acquisition of existing projects, given that the
new projects offered by national oil companies have not been
attractive to us. Also, we believe that we will have opportunities
to participate in China shale gas development in the near
future, as current regulations now under review by National
Development and Reform Committee and the Ministry of Land
and Resources will likely be revised, opening up the enormous
China shale gas reserves to more companies. As reported by
the US Energy Information Administration, China has an
estimate of 1,275 trillion cubic feet of technically recoverable
shale gas reserves, being the largest out of all countries with
technically recoverable shale gas reserves. The resource is
largely untapped and Chinese government is taking initiatives to
increase its shale gas production capacity. We will continue to
review and screen projects, giving priority to opportunities:

° In China and Asia emerging markets countries, areas with
good synergy to our existing operations in China,
Kazakhstan and USA,

° In countries with low political and low economic risk like
those in North America,

ZTE——FFHR - M EERERER DA

27TAEMATI%ECIEHER - KARETHE.89%ET
WESKMORA+BMERBHEEE M6 EERK
120% Z 111181 - KAREM2.63% T - REMH KR
EANKRREERRESRERLRE N - RAFE - B
4% 48 Condor Energy Technology LLC ([ Condor ) # 5
EEMEAMITE  RMEERHEEC0% #Eam - KEAR
3EEBZEI ° Condor BN NERRI BN Z N ERE
S5k 117,450 7% B (30.1 F 75 A B ) K Niobrara )i B &
(['Niobrara & E ] ) #931.25% 18 7 W7 £ {F Niobrara & E 1
¥E o WA T B AMDARIRE - RPUERIEEEFER
TE-CFE_THBE-OFUSHLERNES
I (R A ERAS K SR e B B 2 TE 4+ 75 T RO T R fE 2
K ELBELRETEANER S BEPEE

RPE—_T-——FOHRBEBSESTENTENE
# o mREE A RREEAIIERHRARKL TR
BRI NI EEAEHNRWERAIERE - HEit
R ARBERERNNEZEGLELERBLI®RS
BITERRAIBEAEHLER]  MEZ AR EREENFTE
EERFE  RAME RARNCHABKE2EFTE
MEAERER - REXBERREMBOER - PR
BAE1216BRUTRERNBMAFARAEEREHEE B
PEBBRMARAREERFENERPHEZEEN
BIZ o L ERBARDEARFR - M BB LEES
ERHEBEARER - HASEERSMERR - WE
£EE

o HMEMEMHHMETSER  BHMNRPE B
M ATE R XBENRE LEAERIFNTBRME -

o BUAMKERARBESME - flndN -

1
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Chairman's Statement (continued)

EREHESE (R)

° With some existing reserves and production with little or
no exploration risk, for which our operating experience and
technology in low permeability formations requiring
considerable development effort can be directly applied.

During 2011 we drilled gross 467 wells in China with only one
dry hole. We started a development well and an exploration well
in late 2011 in Kazakhstan, both of which encountered oil zones
and which will be completed and tested shortly. In 2012, we
plan to drill: (i) 367 wells on areas covered by our three China
PSCs; (ii) three more development wells on our Kazakhstan
production contract areas, and at least two more exploration
wells on the ADEK block in Kazakhstan; and (iii) one exploration
well on our Niobrara Asset. Total planned investment budget for
2012 is US$303 million with US$193 million for MI Energy
Corporation (“MIE”) in China, US$94 million for Emir-Oil in
Kazakhstan, and US$16 million for Condor in the USA. So in
2012 we plan to add to our asset base not only by development
work and acquisitions, but also by drilling in low risk exploration
and resource plays. Also, during 2012 we plan to drill two
horizontal wells in China to test their potential in the Daan and
Moliging oilfields, which are not included in the well counts or
budget above.

Net production averaged 10,601 BOPD from the three China
PSCs in 2011, up 13.4% from 2010. Emir-Oil, which we
completed the acquisition for in September 30, 2011, had a net
production average of 2,104 BOPD and 4,858 MCFD in the
fourth quarter of 2011. MIE target net production for 2012 is
within a range of 11,000 BOPD to 12,200 BOPD or 3.8% to
15.1% growth from 2011. Emir-Qil target net production for
2012 is within a range of 2,700 BOPD to 4,500 BOPD or 28.3%
to 113.9% growth from the fourth quarter of 2011. The
Company total target for 2012 net production is within a range
of 13,700 BOPD to 16,700 BOPD.

Oil prices remain strong into first quarter of 2012. We sell our oil
in China to PetroChina using the Daging oil price. The Daging
price for the first two months of 2012 averaged US$120.15 per
barrel (or US$5.08 above Dated Brent of US$115.07).

. 1%*51‘1/%%?%;%11? RO RERIRE YR
+ IR R] B e IR P9 A 2 B A B M Al
ﬁﬁz%ﬁv;&uﬂa AMFTEAN N -

REIT——F  ZMEFELERG7OH - EF—H
R BN T ——FFEABERIMEME —OFH
BHE—OMIEN  EMOFEBIRHE - WAERITE
REHAAFH - R-ZT——F > BMOFER - () BRI
“EAPEEMDKARESRREER367 D3 (i)
REMESERATNBAEES BiE S IMER = A
R BINAETET ATB A ADEK B SR IR E LR O #h IR+

R (i) B PIHI Niobrara B E R — OBt - —F——4F
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Qhairman’s Statement (continued)
FEREE(E)

The acquisition of Emir-Oil, with its large reserve base which
enables future increases in production, the acquisition of
Niobrara Asset through Condor, with its access to the USA
shale oil market and technology for horizontal drilling and
multistage fracturing completions, and additional drilling for our
China oilfields providing continued production growth, all
combine to make us well poised for further rapid growth and
development for 2012. Based on the current level of Daging and
Brent oil prices, we expect 2012 to be another excellent year for
the Company.

In closing, heartfelt thanks to the Board and all the staff for their
efforts over the past year, and to our shareholders, bondholders
and business partners for their trust and support.

Zhang Ruilin
Chairman
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEHREEE

Executive Directors

Zhang Ruilin, aged 41, has been our executive Director,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since his appointment on
March 20, 2008. He, along with Mr. Zhao, is the controlling
shareholder of Far East Energy Limited (“FEEL"). Following the
takeover of MIE by FEEL from Microbes Inc. in August 2003,
Mr. Zhang joined us in September 2003 and has since been a
director of MIE. He is primarily responsible for overseeing our
overall strategies, planning and day-to-day management and
operations. Mr. Zhang has over 21 years of experience in the oil
and gas business, during which he acquired his experience as
an oilfield worker and technician for PetroChina in 1989 and as
the chairman and general manager at a local oilfield services
company, Jilin San Huan Petrochemical Co., Ltd., for over five
years. In May 2003, he founded FEEL in Hong Kong, through
which he acquired MIE from Microbes Inc. Mr. Zhang is a
member of the Songyuan Committee of the China’'s National
People’s Congress. Mr. Zhang graduated from Jilin Petroleum
College in 1995.

Zhao Jiangwei, aged 40, has been our executive Director, vice
Chairman and senior vice president since his appointment on
December 19, 2008. He is one of our controlling shareholders.
Mr. Zhao has over 19 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry, during which he acquired his experience as a
technician for PetroChina at the Jilin oilfields from 1993 to 1999
and as the manager of the technical department at Jilin San
Huan Petrochemical Co., Ltd. from 2000 to 2003. Following the
takeover of MIE by FEEL from Microbes Inc. in August 2003,
Mr. Zhao joined our company in September 2003 and has since
been a director of MIE. He is and will continue to be primarily
responsible for assisting the Chairman in overseeing the
operations at the Daan, Moliging and Miao 3 oilfields. Mr. Zhao
obtained a bachelor of arts degree from Daqing Petroleum
College in 1999.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EERGREEE (H)

Forrest Lee Dietrich, aged 59, has been our executive Director
and senior vice president since his appointment on December
19, 2008. Prior to joining us in January 2002, Mr. Dietrich joined
Microbes, Inc. in 1994 and held various technical and
management positions during different phases of development
of the production sharing contracts. He is primarily responsible
for mid-term and long-term planning and reserves management.
Mr. Dietrich has over 36 years of experience in the oil and gas
business, during which he acquired his experience as the vice
president of operations for Greenwich Qil Corporation, an oil
company based in Dallas, Texas, from 1985 to 1994 and served
in various capacities as area engineering supervisor, evaluations
specialist and planning coordinator and in various staff
engineering positions at Texaco USA (Getty Qil) in Texas and
California from 1974 to 1985. Mr. Dietrich has been a member
of the Society of Petroleum Engineers since 1972 and has been
a professional engineer in the State of Texas since 1984. He has
authored and co-authored four technical papers for the Society
of Petroleum Engineers regarding microbial enhanced oil
recovery and presented three of those papers at their technical
meetings. Mr. Dietrich obtained a bachelor's degree in science
in Petroleum and Natural Gas Engineering from Pennsylvania
State University in 1974.

Allen Mak, aged 50, has been our executive Director since
his appointment on July 9, 2009. He is also our Chief Financial
Officer, joint company secretary and senior vice president. Mr.
Mak joined our company in November 2008 as Chief Financial
Officer and has about 28 years of experience in finance and
accounting. He was previously the chief financial officer of
CITIC 21CN Company Limited (Stock Code: 241), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange for over three years. Prior to his
career as a chief financial officer, Mr. Mak was an investment
banker and has over 11 years of experience in investment
banking. He was an assistant director at Peregrine, executive
director at Citicorp and the managing director and head of the
investment banking group of a securities firm based in Hong
Kong. Mr. Mak also worked in the private equity business
for over three years as an investment director at CVC Asia
Capital and Citicorp. Prior to Mr. Mak's career in investment
banking and private equity, he worked for seven years in the
accounting profession at Price Waterhouse (subsequently
renamed as PricewaterhouseCoopers) in Hong Kong, and
KPMG and Deloitte in Canada. Mr. Mak has a bachelor’s degree
in commerce from the University of British Columbia in Canada.
He is a chartered accountant certified by the Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEReREEE (H)

Non-executive Director

Wang Sing, aged 48, has been our non-executive Director since
his appointment on June 22, 2010. Mr. Wang is a partner of
TPG and also the co-chairman of TPG Greater China & Head of
TPG Growth North Asia. Mr. Wang currently serves as a non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee and
investment committee of China Renewable Energy Investment
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Prior to
joining TPG, he was chief executive officer and executive
director of TOM Group Limited from July 2000 to January 2006.
During the period from July 1993 to May 2000, he held various
positions at Goldman Sachs in both New York and Hong Kong
as executive director. Prior to joining Goldman Sachs, Mr. Wang
was a strategic consultant with McKinsey & Co., in Chicago,
U.S.A.. In addition, Mr. Wang is the chairman of Amerinvest
Group of Companies. He is also a member of the Standing
Committee of the 10th Yunnan Provincial Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is
currently a Listing Committee Member of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Wang has a bachelor degree in
science from Yunnan University, PRC; and a master of science
in Forestry and its relation to Land Use, a bachelor of arts
degree in Philosophy, Politics and Economics and a master of
arts from University of Oxford, U.K.

Law Cheuk Kin, Stephen, aged 49, has been appointed as the
alternate of our non-executive Director, Mr. Wang Sing, since
June 25, 2010. Mr. Law is a managing director of TPG Growth.
Mr. Law currently serves as a non-executive director of China
NT Pharma Group Company Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prior to joining TPG in July 2006, Mr. Law was
a director of Morningside Technologies Inc Limited
(“Morningside"”), where he was responsible for a portfolio of
private equity investments. Prior to Morningside, Mr. Law
focused on corporate finance and development for Wheelock
and Co. Ltd. ("Wheelock”) and i-CABLE Communications Ltd.
("i-CABLE") to develop various businesses in China and Hong
Kong. Prior to working for Wheelock and i-CABLE, Mr. Law
served as regional financial controller for a number of
multinationals. Mr. Law started his career with Arthur Andersen
in the United Kingdom. He is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
registered practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong.
He is a council member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and the chairman of the Corporate
Governance Award Organizing Committee and the chairman of
the Corporate Finance Committee. He holds a Bachelor of
Science degree from the University of Birmingham and a
Masters degree in Business Administration from the University
of Hull, United Kingdom.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EERGREEE (H)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mei Jianping, aged 51, has been our independent non-
executive Director since his appointment on November 27,
2010. Mr. Mei has been a professor of finance at Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business in Beijing, China since 2006 and a
fellow at Financial Institutions Center, the Wharton School of
University of Pennsylvania, since 2004. He was a tenured
associate professor of finance from 1996 to 2005 and an
assistant professor of finance from 1990 to 1995 at New York
University. From 2003 to 2008, he also taught at Tsinghua
University as a special term professor of finance. Mr. Mei has
been a director of Cratings.com Inc., USA since 1999. Since
2009, Mr. Mei has served on the boards of Powerlong Real
Estate Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, and Zhong De Securities Company Limited. Mr. Mei
worked as a consultant for various financial institutions, such as
Deutsche Bank, UBS, Prudential Insurance of America and Asia
Development Bank. He has published a number of books and
articles on topics related to finance. Mr. Mei received a
bachelor’'s degree in Mathematics from Fudan University in
1982, a master’s degree in Economics and a Ph.D. in Economics
(Finance) from Princeton University in 1988 and 1990,
respectively.

Jeffrey W. Miller, aged 49, has been our independent non-
executive Director since his appointment on November 27,
2010. Mr. Miller has over 25 years of experience in the oil and
gas industry. Since 2008, Mr. Miller has been the director of
upstream and investments for Mercuria Energy Trading Inc.,
one of the world’s largest independent physical energy trading
firms. He is responsible for Mercuria and certain of its affiliates’
global portfolio of oil and natural gas assets, the majority of
which are located in North and South America. Prior to Mercuria,
Mr. Miller spent four years, from 2004 to 2008, as president of
Moncrief Qil International, a private oil and natural gas company
with assets in the former Soviet Union as well as North
America. Prior to his career at Moncrief, Mr. Miller was a
managing director in global energy investment banking for UBS
AG, the successor of Dillon, Read & Co, which he joined in
1993. Mr. Miller received a bachelor’'s degree, magna cum
laude, in Petroleum Engineering from Texas A&M University
and a master’'s degree in Business Administration from the
Columbia Business School.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEReREEE (H)

Cai Rucheng, aged 60, has been our independent non-
executive Director since his appointment on November 27,
2010. Mr. Cai has over 30 years of experience working in the oil
and gas industry. From 1968 to 2004, Mr. Cai worked at the
Shengli oilfield in the Shandong Province for Sinopec and held
the positions of section head at the Oilfield Geology Division,
division head at the Reservoir Engineering Division and chief
geologist. From 1998 to 2003, Mr. Cai was also appointed and
acted as a senior member of the Technology Committee of
Sinopec and the group leader of the expert group for
development under the Senior Members Committee of Sinopec.
Since 2004, Mr. Cai has retired from the above positions. Mr.
Cai is currently the vice chairman of and secretary to the board
of directors of Shandong Petroleum Society. Mr. Cai is a senior
engineer and received a bachelor's degree in Oil and Gas
Exploration from China University of Geosciences (formerly
known as Beijing Institute of Geology) in 1967.

Senior Management

Shou Xuancheng, aged 60, has been our senior vice president
since November 1, 2009. Dr. Shou joined our Company in
November 2009 and is responsible for our development and
expansion. Dr. Shou has over 38 years of experience in the oil
and gas industry, during which he acquired his experience
holding a number of high-level positions in the China National
Petroleum Corporation and its subsidiaries between 1985 and
2004, including China National Oil & Gas Exploration and
Development Corporation, CNPC International (Kazakhstan) Co.
Ltd., PetroChina Company Limited and PetroChina International
Limited, and as the vice chairman and executive director of
CITIC Resources Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, where he was responsible for the planning and
development of oil investments and portfolio from 2005 to
2009. Dr. Shou holds a master’s degree and a doctoral degree
in Engineering from the Petroleum University of China.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EERGREEE (H)

Ning Deyu, aged 43, has been our executive vice president
since October 2007. Mr. Ning has over 18 years of experience
in the oil and gas industry, during which he acquired his
experience as technician, section chief and deputy factory
manager at PetroChina in the Jilin oilfields prior to joining MIE in
2007 and as the project manager at the foreign cooperation and
joint venture division of the Jilin oilfields at PetroChina from
2005 to 2007. Mr. Ning graduated from Daging Petroleum
College with a bachelor’'s degree in Petroleum Engineering and
is a senior engineer.

Zhu Jiucheng, aged 40, has been our vice president since
March 2011. Dr. Zhu joined our Company in March 2011 and is
responsible for the operation of international business units and
expansion of the Company. Dr. Zhu has over 16 years of
experience in the oil and gas industry, during which he held
various positions in China National Petroleum Corporation and
its subsidiaries between 1996 and 2008, including China
National Oil & Gas Exploration and Development Corporation,
PetroChina Companies in Indonesia, PetroChina International
Ltd. and CNPC International Ltd. and the executive president of
UNIWE International Energy Service Ltd., a petroleum service
company providing technical appraisal and asset evaluation for
oil and gas assets, where he was in charge of the technical
team from 2008. Dr. Zhu holds a doctoral degree in Petroleum
Engineering from the Petroleum University in China.

Andrew S. Harper, aged 59, has been our chief geoscientist
from 2001 to 2008 and rejoined us on April 1, 2010. Mr. Harper
was our chief geologist and president of our international
operations from 2001 to 2008. Mr. Harper has over 21 years of
experience in the oil and gas industry, during which he acquired
his experience working in the exploration and production team
of ARCO International Oil & Gas Company prior to joining us in
2001. During his time with ARCO, Mr. Harper worked
extensively overseas, including assignments in Chile, Dubai,
Norway, the United Kingdom and Indonesia, and as ARCQO's
resident manager in Bogota, Colombia. Mr. Harper also worked
as a basin studies director, Latin America exploration director
and exploration project director at the headquarters of ARCO
International in the United States from 1990 to 1996 and as an
exploration manager at the Andean Basins in ARCO Latin
America Inc. from 1999 to 2000. Mr. Harper received a
bachelor’'s degree in Geology from Williams College and a
master’'s degree in Geology from the University of Southern
California.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEReREEE (H)

Wang Changlin, aged 61, has been the senior advisor to our
Chairman since October 2003 and the director for office of the
Board of Directors. Mr. Wang is responsible for corporate level
operation and management. He has over 31 years of experience
in the oil and gas industry. Prior to joining MIE in 2003, Mr.
Wang worked for PetroChina in the Jilin oilfields and held
various positions such as section chief, office director and
deputy factory manager and has extensive experience in the
operation and management of oilfields. Mr. Wang obtained a
bachelor’s degree from Jilin Provincial Communist Party School
and is a senior economist.

Cui Yujia, aged 35, has been the assistant to our chairman
since December 2004. Mr. Cui has over 11 years of experience
in corporate finance. Prior to joining MIE in 2004, Mr. Cui
worked for Changchun Heat Shrinkable Materials Company
Limited, which is a subsidiary of China Kinwa High Technology
Company Limited, as financial manager. From 2004 to 2008, he
was the financial manager of MIE. Mr. Cui graduated from
Changchun Taxation College with a bachelor’'s degree in
International Accountancy.

Yang Bo, aged 34, has been our financial controller since April
10, 2007. Mr. Yang has over 11 years of experience in finance
and accounting. Mr. Yang is responsible for the management of
financial reporting. Prior to joining us, Mr. Yang worked for Ernst
& Young Hua Ming as an audit manager from 2006 to March
2007. From 2002 to 2005, Mr. Yang worked for
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Company Limited as
a senior auditor. From 2000 to 2002, Mr. Yang was an auditor at
Arthur Andersen Hua Qiang CPAs. Mr. Yang graduated from
Renmin University of China with a bachelor’'s degree in
International Accounting in 1999. He is a Certified Public
Accountant in China and he is a member of the Beijing Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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Lian Yunfei, aged 36, has been our general counsel since
November 18, 2009. Ms. Lian joined our company in November
2009 and has over five years of experience in the legal field.
Prior to joining us, Ms. Lian worked as an associate at Baker &
McKenzie's Hong Kong office from 2007 to March 2009
focusing on mergers and acquisitions and general corporate
transactions, and Grandall Legal Group (Shanghai), during 2009,
focusing on capital markets and private and public securities
offerings. In her early career, starting in 2001, she worked in a
law firm in Canada, focusing on general practice in Canada, for
over three years. Ms. Lian obtained a juris doctor degree in the
Faculty of Law from the University of British Columbia in 2007.
She received a master's degree in Materials Science and
Engineering from the University of Florida in 2001 and a
bachelor’'s degree in Materials Science and Engineering from
Shanghai University in 1996. She is admitted to practice law in
New York.

Mei Liming, aged 31, has been our financial manager since
May 27, 2009. Prior to his position as our financial manager, Mr.
Mei held the position of vice financial manager from October
2006 to May 2009 and accountant from January 2005 to
October 2006. Mr. Mei graduated from Beijing Institute of
Petrochemical Technology with a bachelor's degree in
Accounting in 2003. Prior to joining our company, Mr. Mei
worked as an accountant in SONY in 2004.

Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. Allen Mak, CA, is our joint company secretary. Besides
being a chartered accountant certified by the Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants, Mr. Mak has about 28 years of
experience in finance and accounting, as further set out in the
section “Directors and Senior Management — Executive

Directors” in this Annual Report.
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Ms. Chu Man Yee, ACS, ACIS, aged 38, is our joint company
secretary. Ms. Chu is a senior manager of the corporate
services division of Tricor Services Limited. Ms. Chu is an
associate member of both The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Ms. Chu has approximately 15 years of experience
in the company secretarial area. Ms. Chu currently acts as the
joint company secretary of MicroPort Scientific Corporation
(Stock code: 853), a company also listed on the Stock Exchange.

Relationship among Directors and Senior
Management

Save for Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, our vice chairman, senior vice
president and executive Director, who is the brother-in-law of
Mr. Zhang Ruilin, our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
executive Director, there are no family relationships between
any of our Directors and senior management.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this corporate
governance report (“Report”) in the Group’s Annual Report for
the year ended December 31, 2011.

The manner in which the principles and code provisions in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) are
applied and implemented is explained as follows:

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group acknowledges the vital importance of good corporate
governance to the Group's success and sustainability. We are
committed to achieving a high standard of corporate governance
as an essential component of quality and have introduced
corporate governance practices appropriate to the conduct and
growth of our business.

The Company has adopted different measures to ensure a high
standard of corporate governance and has put in place corporate
governance practices that are considered to be relevant to the
Group, to meet the code provisions as set out in the CG Code.
The Company has also put in place certain recommended best
practices as set out in the CG Code.

Throughout the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company
has complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code, except for the deviations from code provisions A.2.1 and
E.1.2, which deviations are explained in the relevant paragraphs
of this Report.

The Company will periodically review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure that these continue to meet the
requirements of the CG Code.
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The Board/Board of Directors
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance. The Board has delegated to the
Chief Executive Officer, and through him, to the senior
management the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board
has established Board committees and has delegated to these
Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

Delegation of Management Functions

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the
Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the Company
secretary, with a view to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations are followed. Each Director is
normally able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
making request to the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and
the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the aforesaid officers.

Board Composition

The Board currently consists of four executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors.

The Company has adopted the recommended best practice
under the CG Code for the Board to have at least one-third of its
membership comprising independent non-executive Directors.

The list of all Directors and all corporate communications issued
by the Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules
are set out under “Company Information” on page 2. The
independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified in

all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.
The Board of the Company comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei

Mr. Forrest Lee Dietrich
Mr. Allen Mak

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Wang Sing
Mr. Law Cheuk Kin, Stephen (alternate to Mr. Wang Sing)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Mei Jianping
Mr. Jeffrey W. Miller
Mr. Cai Rucheng
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The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company from time to
time pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Relationship among Directors and Senior

Management” on page 22.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as
set out in the Listing Rules.

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business and
financial expertise, experience and independent judgement to
the Board. Through active participation at Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of
interests and serving on Board committees, all non-executive
Directors have made various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Zhang Ruilin is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles
of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person provides the Company with strong and consistent
leadership and allows for effective and efficient planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies.
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The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Company. The
Board is of the view that it is in the best interests of the Group
to have an executive Chairman with in-depth knowledge of
Group businesses, strong credentials and the capability to brief
the Board in a timely manner on pertinent issues, to guide
Board discussions and to facilitate open dialogue between the
Board and the management.

The Company will continue to review the effectiveness of the
Group's corporate governance structure and consider whether
any changes, including the separation of the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer, are necessary.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company's Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing Board composition, developing and formulating
procedures for nomination and appointment of directors,
monitoring the appointment of directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors.

Each of the Directors (including executive and non-executive
Directors) of the Company is engaged on a service contract for
a term of three years.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and any new Director appointed
to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
submit himself for re-election by shareholders at the next annual
general meeting after appointment.
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Training Induction and Continuing Development of
Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the first
occasion of his appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefing and professional development for directors will be
arranged where necessary.

Board and Board Committee Meetings
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year ended December 31, 2011, regular Board
meetings were held at approximately quarterly intervals
for reviewing and approving the financial and operating
performance, and considering and approving the overall
strategies and policies of the Company.
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The attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the BE-Z——S+-A=1+—HIFE KEENEE
Board, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and & 1R%Z8e  FHZESeEZZTEE 2250 E
Audit Committee for the year ended December 31, 2011 are set  JEEC& 0 NAT/R ¢

out below:
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HE ERERE
Nomination Remuneration Audit

Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee
EEEB =g REZEE FHEES EREES
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhang Ruilin RIRF LA 6/6 — — —
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei HIRLE 6/6 — — —
Mr. Forrest Lee Dietrich Forrest Lee Dietrich %t 4 6/6 — — —
Mr. Allen Mak EHmEE 6/6 — — 4/4
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Wang Sing THEE 4/6 — — —
Mr. Law Cheuk Kin, Stephen EEBRLE

(alternate to Mr. Wang Sing) (EMEENBEES) 5/6 — — 1/4
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES

Directors
Mr. Mei Jianping WEFLE 5/6 1N 11 3/4
Mr. Jeffrey W. Miller Jeffrey W. Miller 5t & 5/6 171 171 4/4
Mr. Cai Rucheng T E 2/6 1N 1N 1/4
Practices and Conduct of Meetings EHREBRITEE

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting BFEHEFHARREEBNERRE —RIELELE

are normally made available to Directors in advance. ES

Code provision A.1.3 stipulates that at least 14 days’ notice TRIKGXFEAIIKEETHETSSBRELE L 14
should be given for a regular Board meeting. Az=%kmm e

Certain Board meetings held during the year ended December REBZE-_ZT——F+_A=+—HBIFE 5TE£Fg
31, 2011 were convened with less than 14 days’ notice. The &@EEFHPMI4BZHEEBAM - ARBIHBBEENH K
Company adopted a flexible approach in convening Board ZAHREZSEE#HLBERESAEAMERKEMERHEL
meetings and ensuring that sufficient time and adequate  AERE °

information were given to Directors for making informed

decisions.



30 ANNUAL REPORT 2011 - MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

.¢§E $& (@ﬂ

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep
Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management where
necessary.

The secretary of the meetings is responsible for taking and
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and final
versions are open for Directors’ inspection.

The Company’'s Articles of Association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely,
nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”),
remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”) and
audit committee (“Audit Committee”), for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of
reference which are posted on the web sites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company and available for public access.

All of the members of each Board committee are independent
non-executive Directors.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Mei Jianping (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr.
Jeffrey W. Miller and Mr.
independent non-executive Directors.

Cai Rucheng, all of them are
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

° To review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and make recommendations regarding any proposed
changes

° To develop and formulate relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors

° To identify suitable candidates for appointment as
Directors

° To make recommendations to the Board on appointment
or re-appointment of and succession planning for Directors

° To assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors

The Board took into consideration criteria such as skills,
experience, expertise that are necessary to achieve the Group’s
business development, strategies, operation and opportunities
when considering new director appointments during the year
under review. Each member of the Board shall possess, be
recognized for and be able to exhibit high and professional
standard of a set of core criteria of competence.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, no meeting of the
Nomination Committee was held. However, the Nomination
Committee held its meeting on January 19, 2012 and reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Company for the
year under review. The attendance records of the Nomination
Committee are set out under “Board and Board Committee
Meetings” on page 29.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Allen Mak, Mr. Wang Sing and Mr. Mei Jianping, shall retire by
rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the next forthcoming annual general meeting.
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The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment
of the Directors standing for re-election at the next forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company's circular shall contain detailed information of the
Directors standing for re-election.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, Mr.
Mei Jianping (Chairman of Remuneration Committee), Mr.
Jeffrey W. Miller and Mr. Cai Rucheng, all of them are
independent non-executive Directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
the following:

o To make recommendations on the establishment of
procedures for developing the remuneration policy and
structure for the executive Directors and the senior
management

° To review and approve the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and the senior management and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors

° To review and approve the compensation arrangements of
the executive Directors and the senior management

During the year ended December 31, 2011, no meeting of the
the
Remuneration Committee held its meeting on January 19, 2012,

Remuneration Committee was held. However,

reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of the Company
and approved the remuneration package as well as the annual
bonuses of the executive Directors and the senior management
for the year under review. The attendance records of the
Remuneration Committee are set out under “Board and Board

Committee Meetings” on page 29.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Jeffrey W. Miller (Chairman of
Audit Committee), Mr. Mei Jianping and Mr. Cai Rucheng.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

° To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
external auditors before submission to the Board

° To review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors

° To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures

The Audit Committee had 4 meetings during the year ended
December 31, 2011 to review the financial results and reports,
financial reporting and compliance procedures, the report on the
Company's internal control and risk management systems and
processes, and the re-appointment of the external auditors. The
attendance records of the Audit Committee are set out under
“Board and Board Committee Meetings” on page 29.

The Company's annual results for the year ended December 31,
2011 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding Directors’ dealings in the Company's
securities.
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Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended December 31, 2011.

No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code by the
employees was noted by the Company.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory
requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry
out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

External Auditors and Auditors’ Remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities for the financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on page 80.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company
in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year
ended December 31, 2011 amounted to HK$3,802,000 and
HK$2,270,000 respectively. Audit service rendered included
HK$863,000 for work relating to the Company’s senior notes
issued in May 2011. Non audit services rendered were due
diligence work performed on Emir-Qil for its acquisition.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and
Company assets and reviewing the effectiveness of such on an
annual basis through the Audit Committee.
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The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
to identify and manage potential risks, and to safeguard assets
of the Group. The senior management reviews and evaluates
the control process, monitors any risk factors on a regular basis,
and reports to the Audit Committee on any findings and
measures to address the variances and identified risks.

During the year under review, the Board with the support of the
Audit Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Company, including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

Communication with Shareholders and
Investors/Investor Relations

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group's business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

To achieve this, the Company maintains a website at
http://www.mienergy.com.cn, where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company’'s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted and available for
public access.

The general meetings of the Company also provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman should attend
the annual general meeting and arrange for the chairmen of the
audit, remuneration and nomination committees (as appropriate)
or in their absence, other members of such committees or their
duly appointed delegates, to be available to answer questions at
the annual general meeting.
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In the annual general meeting of the Company held on May 6,
2011 (the "2011 AGM"), Mr. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman of the
Board), Mr. Jeffrey W. Miller (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Mei Jianping (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee) and Mr. Cai Rucheng
(member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee) were unable to attend the 2011
AGM due to other important business engagements. In order to
ensure smooth holding of the 2011 AGM, Mr. Zhang Ruilin has
authorized Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, an executive Director of the
Company, to chair the 2011 AGM. They will use their best
endeavours to attend all future shareholder meetings of the
Company.

The notice of annual general meeting was sent to shareholders
at least 20 clear business days before the annual general
meeting.

Shareholder Rights

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
Directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each shareholder meeting.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company and its subsidiaries’ (“the Group”) principal business
is to engage in the exploration, development, production and
sale of crude oil through (1) MIE’s four production sharing
projects in China; (2) Emir-Qil’s exploration contract and three
production contracts in Kazakhstan and; (3) Condor's working
interest in the Niobrara Asset in the United States of America.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2011
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 86.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.044 per share, amounting to a total dividend of
HK$116,583,000 (RMB94,514,000) in respect of 2011 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on May 28, 2012. The proposed final dividend
will be paid on or about June 15, 2012, following approval at the
annual general meeting.

Any amount of dividends we pay will be at the discretion of the
Board and will depend on our future operations and earnings,
capital requirements and surplus, general financial conditions,
contractual restrictions and other factors that the Board
considers relevant. Our future declarations of dividends may or
may not reflect our historical declarations of dividends and will
be at the absolute discretion of the Board.

Reserves

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 88 and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
on pages 170 to 171 for movements in the reserves of the
Group and the Company, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2011.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the company are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
Senior Notes

Details of the senior notes are set out in Note 19(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the company at December 31, 2011
are disclosed in the consolidated statements of changes in
equity.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group is set out on page 5 of the annual report.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2011, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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Share Options

(i)

Stock incentive compensation plan (“Plan”)

The Board adopted the Plan prior to the Listing of the
Company on the Stock Exchange designed to attract and
retain the best available personnel for positions of
substantial responsibility, provide additional incentive to
employees and directors and promote the success of our
business. Under the Plan, a total of 29,902,758 share
options were granted to Directors, executives and
employees, of which 1,818,579 share options lapsed. The
share options were granted at nil consideration.

The exercise price of the granted share options is equal to
or higher than the market price of the shares on the date
of the grant. Each share option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one share of the Company. The share
options granted under the Plan typically vest over a two or
three year period at each anniversary of the grant date,
subject to the participant continuing to be an employee on
each vesting date.

The Company has undertaken not to grant and has not
granted further share options under the Plan upon the
listing of the Company, but the provisions of the Plan
remain in full force and effect in all other respects and
share options granted under the Plan prior to the listing of
the Company continue to be exercisable in accordance
with the Plan and agreements entered into pursuant to
the Plan.
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Details of the share options outstanding as at December
31, 2011 which have been granted under the Plan are as

RZBE——F+-A=+—B REZFAEICEK
HAERARTTER 2 BEEFBOT

follows:
Number of ~ Number of
options options
Held at granted exercised Held at Exercise
January 1, during during December price
Name 201 the year the year 31,201 (per Share) Date of grant Date of expiration Exercisable from Exercisable until
R=B--F KEE rEE RIB--F
-B-H Bitiz gz tZA=t-8
i3 BE BREZA BREZE %5 {TREER) BiB ) UFTHERRES UFTHEBLAS
Executive Directors
UTES
Mr. Forrest Lee Dietrich 2,273,163 2,273,163 US$0.13  November 20, 2009 November 20, 2019 November 20, 2010 November 19, 2019
Forrest Lee Dietrich 504 0.13%% ZEEAF+-AZTH ZF-AF+-AZ+B Z5-2F+-A-tB ZET-NFT-ATARB
2,273,163 2,273,163 US$0.13 - November 20, 2009 November 20,2019 November 20, 2011 November 19, 2019
0.13%% ZEEAF+-A=TA ZF-NE+-A=tB ZF——F+-F=tB ZE-hFT-ATAR
2,273,163 2,273,163 US$0.13  November 20, 2009 November 20, 2019 November 20, 2012 November 19, 2019
0.13%1 ZTEAFH-AZtE ZZ-AFT-AZTRE ZE-ZET-AZHE ZE-AET-ARB
Mr. Allen Mak 3,030,904 3,030,904 — US$0.13 November 20, 2009 November 20, 2019 November 20, 2010 November 19, 2019
ERf%E 0.13%% ZEENFT-A=TA ZF-N5+-A=tB ZE5-2F+-F=tB ZE-NFT-ATAR
3,030,904 3,030,904 US$0.13 - November 20, 2009 November 20, 2019 November 20, 2011 November 19, 2019
0.13%% ZEEAF+-A=TA ZF-NF+-A=tB ZF——F+-F=tB ZE-hFT-ATAR
3,030,904 3,030,904 US$0.13 November 20, 2009 November 20, 2019 November 20, 2012 November 19, 2019
0.13%% ZEENFT-A=TA ZF-NF+-A-tB Z5-ZF+-A=tB ZE-NFT-ATAR
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUKATES
Mr. Mei Jianping 633,967 633,967 US$0.25 November 23, 2010 November 23, 2020 November 23, 2011 November 22, 2020
BRTEE 025%7% —E-TF+-A=fZA ZF-FF+-A-1+=8 —T-—F+-F=t=RB ZE-FF+-A=fzAH
633,966 633,966 US$0.25  November 23, 2010 November 23, 2020 November 23, 2012 November 22, 2020
025%1 “T-THE+-AZtZR ZTZZTFEF-A-FEH ZE-ZET-ACHZR ZECEET-ACfCH
Mr. Jeffrey W. Miller 905,667 905,667 US$0.25  November 23, 2010 November 23, 2020 November 23, 2011 November 22, 2020
Jeffrey W. Miller 564 025%1 ZT-BE+-AtZR ZZZTFT-A-FZH ZF-—F+-AZt=H ZE-RET-AfCH
905,666 905,666 US$0.25  November 23, 2010 November 23, 2020 November 23, 2012 November 22, 2020
025%7% —F-FF+-A=fZA ZF-FF+-A-1+=B ZT-ZFt-F=t=RB -E-FF+-A=fzAH
Other employees
HET
3,030,904 3,030,904 — US$0.13  November 20, 2009 November 20, 2019 November 20, 2010 November 19, 2019
0.13%% ZEEAFT-A=TA —F-N§+-A=tB ZE5-2F+-F=tB ZE-NFT-ATAR
3,030,904 3,030,904 US$0.13 - November 20, 2009 November 20, 2019 November 20, 2011 November 19, 2019
0.13%% ZEEAF+-A=TA ZF-NF+-A=tB ZF——F+-F=tB ZE-hEFT-ATAR
3,030,904 3,030,904 US$0.13 November 20, 2009 November 20, 2019 November 20, 2012 November 19, 2019
0.13%1 ZTEAFH-AZtE  ZZ-AFT-AZTRE ZE-ZET-AZHE ZE-AET-RARB
Total &3t 28,084,179 — 6,061,808 22,022,371
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(i)

Share option scheme (“Scheme”)

On November 27, 2010, the Board adopted the Scheme
to enable the Company to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contributions
to our Group. Participants of the Scheme include any
executive Director, non-executive Director or full time
employee of the Group as invited by the Board. The
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing from the approval at the Scheme.

The exercise period of any option granted under the
Scheme must not be more than ten years commencing on
the date of grant. The acceptance of an offer of the grant
of the option must be made within 28 days from the date
of grant with a non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from
the grantee. The exercise price determined by the Board
will be at the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of the shares. The
share options granted under the Scheme typically vest
over three years on the last day of each year starting from
the subsequent year of the grant, subject to the participant
continuing to be an employee on each vesting date and
other performance evaluation results.

(ii)
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Under the Scheme, a total of 112,048,000 share options
were granted to Directors, executives and employees.
Details of the share options outstanding as at December

REBRERMEE

4 $£112,048,000 10 B I D 4%
FTEF TRABREES - REBREFEIER
HEER - E——F+-A=+—BHRTENE

31, 2011 which have been granted under the Scheme are IRFEHBEWT ¢
as follows:
Number of ~ Number of
options options
Held at granted exercised Held at Exercise
January 1, during during December price
Name 201 the year the year 31,201 (per Share) Date of grant Date of expiration Exercisable from Exercisable until
RZB--§ KEE AEE  RIB--F
-B-H Rtz Bt +=A=+-8
#E A BREHE BREHE BE fRESR) R\ H#A UFTHEERES UFTHEBLAS
Executive Directors
H17EE
Mr. Zhang Ruilin 782,333 782,333 HK$2.25  September 20, 2011 September 20, 2021 December 31, 2012 September 19, 2021
RIpRALE 22581 —E——FAA-TH ZZZ-5AAZTH CE-CEFCAST-B ZEC-ERATAR
782,333 782,333 HK$2.25  September 20, 2011 September 20, 2021 December 31, 2013 September 19, 2021
25%% “E——FAAZTR ZEZ-FAAZTR ZE-ZFftZA=t+-RB ZZ--FAATAA
782,334 782,334 HK$2.25  September 20, 2011 September 20, 2021 December 31, 2014 September 19, 2021
25%n “F——FAAZTR ZEZ-FAAZTR ZE-WETZA=+-B ZZ--FAATAR
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei 782,333 782,333 HK$2.25  September 20, 2011 September 20, 2021 December 31, 2012 September 19, 2021
HIBEE 22581 —E-—FAA-TH ZZZ-5AAZTH ZF-Z5+tZA=t-B ZZ=-FhAt+AA
782,333 782,333 HK$2.25  September 20, 2011 September 20, 2021 December 31, 2013 September 19, 2021
25%% “E——FAAZTR ZEZ-FAAZHR ZE-ZFftZA=t+-RB ZZ--FAATAA
782,334 782,334 HK$2.25  September 20, 2011 September 20, 2021 December 31, 2014 September 19, 2021
25%m “F——FAAZTR ZEZ-FAAZTR ZE-WETZA=+-B ZZ--FAATAA
Mr. Forrest Lee Dietrich 782,333 782,333 HK$2.25  September 20, 2011 September 20, 2021 December 31, 2012 September 19, 2021
Forrest Lee Dietrich 54 226%T —EF-—%AA=tA ZE--%AA=tH ZE-CE+ZA=+-B ZE--FEhATAR
782,333 782,333 HK$2.25  September 20, 2011 September 20, 2021 December 31, 2013 September 19, 2021
25%% “E——FhAZTR ZEZ-FAAZHR ZE-ZFftZA=t+-RB ZZ--FAATAA
782,334 782,334 HK$2.25  September 20, 2011 September 20, 2021 December 31, 2014 September 19, 2021
25%n “E——FAAZTR ZEZ-FAAZTR ZE-WETZA=+-B ZZ--FAATAR
Mr. Allen Mak 782,333 782,333 HK$2.25  September 20, 2011 September 20, 2021 December 31, 2012 September 19, 2021
ERfmiE 25%n ZE——%hAZtA  ZEZ-FAAZtR ZT-ZEftZR=t-B ZE--FAAtAA
782,333 782,333 HK$2.25  September 20, 2011 September 20, 2021 December 31, 2013 September 19, 2021
25%n “E——FhAZTR ZEZ-FAAZHR ZE-ZFTZA=+-RB ZZ--FAATAA
782,334 782,334 HK$2.25  September 20, 2011 September 20, 2021 December 31, 2014 September 19, 2021
25%n ZF——FAAZTR ZEZ-FAAZTR ZE-WETZA=+-B ZZ--FAATAR
Other employees
HET
34,220,000 34,220,000 HK$2.25  September 20, 2011 September 20, 2021 December 31, 2012 September 19, 2021
25%% “E——FAAZTR ZEZ-FAAZHR ZE-ZFTZA=t+-RB ZZ--FAATAA
34,220,000 34,220,000 HK$2.25  September 20, 2011 September 20, 2021 December 31, 2013 September 19, 2021
25%m “F——FAAZTR ZEZ-FAAZTR ZE-Z=H+ZA=t+-B ZZ--FAATAA
34,220,000 34,220,000 HK$2.25  September 20, 2011 September 20, 2021 December 31, 2014 September 19, 2021
22581 —E-——FAA-TH ZZZ-5AAZTH ZE-METZAST-B ZE2-EAATAR
Total 3t 112,048,000 — 112,048,000
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At September 19, 2011, the date before the options were RZE——FNA+IA @ EREREAER
granted, the market value per share was HK$2.22. The BERBRMOMER222ET BTSEATZER
value of the options granted to the respective parties is as EEEET
follows:
RMB'000

ARBEFT
Mr. Zhang Ruilin RIS 2,269
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei WIS A 2,269
Mr. Forrest Lee Dietrich Forrest Lee Dietrich 7t 4 2,269
Mr. Allen Mak EHEREE 2,269
Other employees HEmET 99,249
Total 45T 108,325
The fair value of options granted on September 20, 2011 REZE——FAA-TARHNBRENARE
determined using the Binomial Mode was HK$1.18 per EABHERE118E L NEAZEAERLE
option. The significant inputs into the model were fair F o BRATENHABMERNELANERA
value per share of HK$2.13 at the grant date, exercise AEE2.138T - (THREAETR2.254 87T  KiE
price of HK$2.254 per share, volatility of 66.01%, dividend 66.01% * IREE0% - BREFHTFRFER
yield of 0%, an option life of ten years, and an annual risk- [R5 1.44% o HREHEE TR T W IS AEE
free interest rate of 1.44%. The volatility measured at the AEMREDERBETERALRARGER
standard deviation of continuously compounded share DERRFET DT
returns is based on statistical analysis of weekly share
prices of comparable companies over the last ten years.
The total number of shares issued and which may fall to RIRIEEREETE - ZEt 8 R A QR R H AR
be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the IRt B H B RS AR TT (R R » B29T R Al g 8%
Scheme, the Plan and any other share option scheme of OFE2EENROBENTHEH @A HEA
the Company to each participant in any 12 month period TEHEBARAR TR ZEETRAN 1% - RIRE
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the AEARHERT &) - ZET &I AR R (R H fh B AR A AT
Company from time to time. The total number of shares EHTERENEBRERITER - AJEETH
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be R BEE X TEBAN EMBHABERITHRNG
granted under the Scheme, the Plan and any other share HER10% °
option scheme of our Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the Listing Date.
As at the date of this report the maximum number of RARE BB - RIRIERAE S 8 Rzt 8l m 81T
shares available for issue under the Scheme and the Plan 2RI H R AREE 5285,710,786 % + 1HE BT

is 285,710,786 shares, representing approximately 10.8% K#910.8% °
of the issued share capital.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei

Mr. Forrest Lee Dietrich

Mr. Allen Mak

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Sing
Mr. Law Cheuk Kin, Stephen (alternate to Mr. Wang Sing)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Mei Jianping
Mr. Jeffrey W. Miller
Mr. Cai Rucheng

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Allen Mak, Mr. Wang Sing and Mr. Mei
Jianping shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Mr. Mei Jianping, Mr. Jeffrey W. Miller and Mr. Cai Rucheng
are independent non-executive Directors and were appointed
for a three-year term expiring on November 26, 2013.

Directors’ Service Contracts

We had entered into letters of appointment with each of our
Directors, pursuant to which each of the executive Directors
and the non-executive Director is appointed for terms of three
years with effect from November 23, 2010, and each of the
independent non-executive Directors is appointed for terms of
three years with effect from November 27, 2010, subject to re-
election in accordance with our Articles of Association at our
annual general meetings.

BE
WAFEREZARERLY  JMEEEOT -

HITES

RIER A (/)
WITHTAE

Forrest Lee Dietrich 4t 4
BHmEE

FHITES

THELE
EREEREL (EMELENEBEEES)

BAFITES
1B EE

Jeffrey W. Miller 5t 4
A

REARRAGERMAE 16181G BHfBEL £
MEERGREFEEAREERRBFAE LHER
T ENAERBEEE-

Mg A - Jeffrey W. Miller S04 K A S B e £ 19 578
VHERTES #HAE=F RZZET—=F+—A
Z+NBER -

EERBEEME

RRABEMBSERITLEREE Bt SRTEERIE
WITESEZENERNA=F AT —ZF+—A
TH=ARAY - REEFATEFEZENEHR
=F BAIE-TFET AT ERRER  EARE
ARRESERANNARRBRBAF ARG LERE(T -
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On November 20, 2009, Mr. Zhang Ruilin (“Mr. Zhang") and Mr.
Zhao Jiangwei (“Mr. Zhao"), each an executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company and MIE
respectively, which is renewable yearly unless terminated (i)
with twelve month’s notice by either party, or (ii) by the
Company or MIE (as applicable) upon certain events such as the
Director having committed serious or persistent breaches of the
service contract. Should the Company or MIE (as applicable)
terminate the service contract, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao will be
entitled to receive a severance payment equivalent to one
year's basic pay under the service contract, save for
circumstances described in item (ii) above.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors had entered into
a service contract with us which does not expire or which is not
terminable by us within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts and Continued
Connected Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Group had the
following transactions with Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”)
and Jilin Guotai Petroleum Development Company (“Jilin
Guotai”), which are connected persons of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

(A) Lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to the Company
(B) Lease of office spaces by Mrs. Zhang to us
(C) Lease of vehicles by Jilin Guotai to us

(D) Provision of oilfield services by Jilin Guotai to us

Note: all above leases or services were provided at a fee chargeable to us
with reference to comparable market price and based on norma
commercial terms that are no less favorable than terms offered by
independent third parties to the Group as agreed.
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HTEREE(TBEE]) (BFRBITES) D RERRAFR
MIEFTZBRIG AR - BEARBERAIFFEL - BRIE)
BHAER—FEL @A RBAT AL i) N ER
ETERR(WESBREESKAREBESRBER) - A
ARABIHMIE (ZRE A ) F LA LE A2 &) 5k MIE (40
BER)EIERBER - ASREERBEEEG KR —Z
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Category | — Continuing Connected Transactions
Exempt from Independent Shareholders’ Approval

(A)

(B)

Lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to us

Mrs. Zhang is the spouse of Mr. Zhang Ruilin, and is
therefore a connected person of our company. Since
2008, Mrs. Zhang has been regularly leasing a substantial
number of vehicles to us.

On November 23, 2010, we entered into a framework
vehicle rental agreement with Mrs. Zhang on (the “Vehicle
Rental Agreement”), pursuant to which Mrs. Zhang
agreed to rent to us a number of vehicles for the purpose
of the day-to-day business operations of our Group,
subject to the entering into of individual contracts as
agreed between Mrs. Zhang and us pursuant to the
Vehicle Rental Agreement.

An individual car rental contract was entered into on
March 29, 2011, for an aggregate yearly rental fee of
approximately RMB3.5 million. The rental fees paid by us
to Mrs. Zhang are based on normal commercial terms and
negotiated on arm’s length basis between the parties, and
are no less favourable than terms offered by independent
third parties to our Group.

Lease of office spaces by Mrs. Zhang to us

We entered into a lease agreement with Mrs. Zhang on
November 28, 2010, pursuant to which Mrs. Zhang agreed
to lease to us with effect from January 1, 2011 and valid
until December 31, 2012 two office spaces located at
Suites 402 and 406, Block C, Grand Place, No. 5 Hui
Zhong Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC (the
"Office Premises”), for an aggregate rental fee of
approximately RMB1.3 million for year 2011 and RMB1.5
million for year 2012 respectively.

E— - RRBTHEURRIERE 2IFERE

x5
(A)

(B)

RAARMARREIHHETE

RARARBKRIMRTCEZERS B RRNARZH
BALT - BZZZNEFUR - RRA—EREM
EHHBEARETE -

RZZE—ZF+—A=+=H AAFMHAKKA
RIVIERAERERE(RERERZ] - it
REXARBAARALAL®EAE - LARAEASE
EMBEEBCE  WRETERERZ B
RAANBEARRRFIZERIER °

RRAARZEBE——F=ZAZTNBGIZERAE
HEAR FHEAHHAREIS0ET - ARE
ARAASXNHBEESIREEREHRGREES
BATELERET  BEBRRTERNBIE=
T RREBEFIRHEE o

G YNCTR N T fa el NES

ARRARZE—FF+—A=+/\BHEKREKAG]
VHERE Bl REARER-_ZT——F—
A—ARE-T——F+-_A=+—HILHH"
MARREBEMARP R ARG REEELREXN
RLCRE402 RABEMMEARANE([HAE
¥)) T ——FR-T—-FHHSLEI R
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(C)

On January 6, 2012, we entered into a supplemental
agreement with Mrs. Zhang and cancelled the lease of
office space located at Suite 406, Block C, Grand Place,
No. 5 Hui Zhong Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the
PRC. Then the aggregate rental fee for year 2012 was
reduced to RMBO0.7 million. The rental fees paid by us to
Mrs. Zhang are based on normal commercial terms and
negotiated on arm’s length basis between the parties, and
are no less favourable than terms offered by independent
third parties to our Group.

Lease of vehicles by Jilin Guotai to us

Jilin Guotai is owned by Mrs. Zhang and Mr. Zhao
Jiangwei, and is therefore a connected person of our
company.

On November 23, 2010, we entered into a framework
vehicle rental agreement with Jilin Guotai (the “Guotai
Vehicle Rental Agreement”), pursuant to which Jilin
Guotai agreed to rent to us a number of vehicles for the
purpose of the day-to-day business operations of our
Group, subject to the entering into of individual contracts
as agreed between Jilin Guotai and us.

An individual car rental contract was entered into for an
aggregate yearly rental fee of approximately RMB2.5
million on March 14, 2011. The rental fees paid by us to
Guotai are based on normal commercial terms and
negotiated on arm'’s length basis between the parties, and
are no less favourable than terms offered by independent
third parties to our Group.

(@
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Category Il — Non-exempt Continuing Connected FH - kRRTERERS

Transactions

(D)  Provision of oilfield services by Jilin Guotai to us (D) EHEIZE A K 1 AL 408 AR %

On November 23, 2010, we entered into a framework
oilfield service agreement with Jilin Guotai (the “Qilfield
Service Agreement”), pursuant to which Jilin Guotai
agreed to provide to us various oilfield services including
well maintenance services, well logging services, oil
tanker transportation services, oilfield construction related
works and other oil operations related services, subject to
the entering into of individual contracts as agreed between
Jilin Guotai and us pursuant to the Oilfield Service
Agreement. The service fees will be based on normal
commercial terms and negotiated on arm’s length basis
between the parties, and shall be no less favourable than
those offered by Independent Third Parties to our Group.

As listed below, the aggregate annual transaction amount
of each continuing connected transaction for the year
ended December 31, 2011 has not exceeded the
respective proposed annual cap granted by the Stock
Exchange and disclosed in the Company’s prospectus
dated December 1, 2010.

ARBAR—F-FF+ A+ =—REETMHEZE
FISAESUM M MRS e ([m B AR e 1) - 3t
EMEZRBRARREHEEHARYE - 25
B RS R RS  HEERRY - HERR
MHRE T2 R B A A i E X ARRE AR A - 1EAR I m A
R ek - BT S MEFREAR R ET 7 E &
AR REESRBEEAEGIBETRA
FEEERET BEGRTSERBLE=]
RASEEREE -

BINT XS - BRBERERIRBE_T——
FT_A=T"PBLFEZFERZHBITEB
B HAERARARIR TS5+ =_A—A 7
BIHRBRERRENERERFELR -

Transaction

Connected Person Nature of transaction Proposed annual cap amount in 2011

BMEAL RBMUE EEFELR —E——FRPH

Mrs. Zhang Lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to RMB5.0 million RMB3.5 million

FTERA the Company ARB00E T ARB3508 T
wRRAMARE HHERE

Mrs. Zhang Lease of office spaces by Mrs. RMB1.3 million RMB1.3 million

REA Zhang to the Company ARM1308 7T AR®1308 T
SRAARRABHERAE

Jilin Guotai Lease of vehicles by Jilin Guotai to RMB3.0 million RMB2.5 million

HMBEIZR the Company ARE3008 T AR 2608 T
HEMBEFERARQ T LIETE

Julin Guotai Provision of oilfield services by Jilin RMB169 million RMB163.3 million

HEMER Guotai to the Company AR 1.69187T AR#1.633187T

EMEZRE AR B0 A RS
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In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors, the
above transactions were carried out in the ordinary and usual
course of business; either under normal commercial terms or, if
there was no available comparison, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than those available from independent third
parties; and in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the shareholders of the
Company as a whole. Details of such connected transactions
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements
under header “Transactions with a Company/person related to
the controlling shareholder of FEEL".

The auditor has confirmed that for the year 2011 the continuing
connected transactions (i) have received approval of the Board
of Directors of the Company; (ii) are in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Company, where applicable; (iii) have
been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing the transactions; and (iv) have not
exceeded the respective cap amounts for the financial year
ended December 31, 2011 as disclosed in the prospectus of the
Company dated December 1, 2010.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
materials interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its
subsidiaries, including the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries to the Group.

Biographical Details of Directors

Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on page 14.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and/or
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or Any
Associated Corporation

As at December 31, 2011, the interests or short position of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ"), which will have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which will be required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein, or which will be required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code"”) contained in the Listing Rules, were detailed as
follows:

EERTETBAERERASHE[AAEEE
EaiRe  HEROREEZTFHEANESR
R/ S%kA

RIB——F+-A=+—H ARAEEFRIZBTH
ABRARBREBEHEE EE R B S RARGD([7F
FRHEED ) EXVER) B - BRI R EEE S
BERBESLBPERAIEXVIE7R8HBAME R
RE R ERIAR (BRRIEES KRS G
MR M E R REE R RAR) - HIRIEE
7 BB ARG 362 R R E BB RN IR ERL
AR ERSORR « JRBEEN EHRA ETHEITA
EFETEAFRZINRETA(RETA ) ANEAR
RN S =g U

Approximate
total

Number of percentage of
Name of Capacity/Nature Number of underlying interest in the
Name of Director corporation of interest shares shares corporation
EEERERMN
Bx=ps EEER B REtE RHEHE HERGHE BMRBEESL
Mr. Zhang Ruilin Our Company Interest of controlled 1,414,600,000 53.43%
RinaR e ZAYNG] corporation (Note 1)
XEHEEER (M 1)
Beneficial owner (Note 2) 2,347,000 0.09%
BEnEBAMT2)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei Our Company Interest of controlled 1,414,600,000 53.43%
WIREE ZAYNG] corporation (Note 1)
XEHEEER (M 1)
Beneficial owner (Note 2) 2,347,000 0.09%
EafBAMT2)
Mr. Zhang Ruilin FEEL Beneficial owner (Note 1) 999 9.99%
R Im AR 7L 4 EnlERAN M)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei FEEL Beneficial owner (Note 1) 9,000 90.0%
HISEE EnlERAN M)
Mr. Forrest Lee Dietrich ~ Our Company Beneficial owner 9,166,489 0.35%
Forrest Lee Dietrich 64 ANAT] E=nEAA
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Approximate
total

Number of percentage of

Name of Capacity/Nature Number of underlying interest in the

Name of Director corporation of interest shares shares corporation

EEEERED

BExps ZEERE B RRtE RHEAR HERGHE BHBT DL

Mr. Allen Mak Our Company Beneficial owner 3,030,904 8,408,808 0.43%
EREmft ARA) BEnEAA

Mr. Mei Jianping Our Company Beneficial owner 1,267,933 0.05%
BT EE ARA] EafAA

Mr. Jeffrey W. Miller Our Company Beneficial owner 1,811,333 0.06%
Jeffrey W. Miller % &£ /NG| EREBA

Notes:

(M

(2)

Save
“Sha
Direc

FEEL is held by Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao as to 9.99% and 90%,
respectively. On May 16, 2003,9,999 shares in FEEL were issued to
Mr. Zhang, who then transferred 9,000 shares out of his 9,999 shares
to Mr. Zhao on October 4, 2003. Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have
entered into an Acting-in-Concert Agreement under which they agreed
to act in concert in relation to all matters that require the decisions of
the shareholders of FEEL. Pursuant to the Acting-in-Concert
Agreement, if a unanimous opinion in relation to the matters that
require action in concert is unable to be reached, Mr. Zhang shall be
allowed to vote on both his and Mr. Zhao's shares. The Acting-in-
Concert Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of New York.
Our PRC legal counsel, Zhong Lun Law Firm, has confirmed that the
provisions of the Acting-in-Concert Agreement do not violate the
relevant laws of the PRC. After consultation with our U.S. counsel,
our Directors are of the view that the Acting-in-Concert Agreement is
a legally valid, binding and enforceable agreement of the parties.

These interests represent interests in outstanding stock options under
the Plan and the Scheme. For further details, please refer to the above
section headed “Share Options”.

as disclosed above and in the above section headed
re Options”, as at December 31, 2011, none of the

tors or the chief executive of our Company had any

interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company or any associated corporations

(withi
to be

n the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests

and s
have
to be

hort positions which he/she had taken or was deemed to
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required
entered into the register kept by our Company pursuant to

Section 352 of the SFO or which were required to be notified to

our C

Code;

ompany and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
nor had there been any grant or exercise of rights of such

interests during the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares of the
Company

As at December 31, 2011, the following persons (other than the
Directors, chief executive(s) or members of our Group) had
interests and/or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of our Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by our Company under Section 336 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance.

FERRRAQXTAHNRS - HERGPHES
MERR, KR

RZZBE——F+ZA=+—8 TIHAT(BREF x
ZITBABHAREEKE QRN RAR R Z ) 48
B R BB IRIBE 5 M E R DI S8 336 IR AR BIZAR
B BRMrcsnlalk, SKkR -

Total number Approximate
of shares percentage of
Party Capacity/ (assuming option interest in
Name of interested Nature of interest is not exercised) our company
RO B (RERAE LERNNETE Sy
ERHEH B REEtE TEBRRE) BHEDT
FEEL Beneficial owner (Note 1) 1,414,600,000 53.43%
BEmmaA(fi1)
Mr. Fung Che Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 252,196,000 9.53%
BELAE Rt EEE R (it 2)
Ever Union Capital Limited Beneficial owner and Interest of 252,196,000 9.53%
controlled corporation (Note 2)
EmfEB ARZENEE R (M it2)
Harmony Energy Beneficial owner (Note 2) 237,438,000 8.97%
EmEB A (Kit2)
David Bonderman Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 230,838,000 8.72%
RiEHEE R (M 5E3)
James Coulter Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 230,838,000 8.72%
RiEHEE R (H5E3)
TPG Star Energy Ltd. Beneficial owner (Note 3) 211,855,234 8.0%

BEnBEBANHE3)
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(M

(2)

3)

FEEL is held by Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao as to 9.99% and 90%,
respectively. On May 16, 2003, 9,999 shares in FEEL were issued to
Mr. Zhang, who then transferred 9,000 shares out of his 9,999 shares
to Mr. Zhao on October 4, 2003. Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have
entered into an Acting-in-Concert Agreement under which they agreed
to act in concert in relation to all matters that require the decisions of
the shareholders of FEEL. Pursuant to the Acting-in-Concert
Agreement, if a unanimous opinion in relation to the matters that
require action in concert is unable to be reached, Mr. Zhang shall be
allowed to vote on both his and Mr. Zhao's shares. The Acting-in-
Concert Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of New York.
Our PRC legal counsel, Zhong Lun Law Firm, has confirmed that the
provisions of the Acting-in-Concert Agreement do not violate the
relevant laws of the PRC. After consultation with our U.S. counsel,
our Directors are of the view that the Acting-in-Concert Agreement is
a legally valid, binding and enforceable agreement of the parties.

Harmony Energy Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ever Union
Capital Limited which also holds 14,758,000 shares directly amongst
252,196,000 shares. Mr. Che Fung is the sole shareholder of Ever
Union Capital Limited and has voting and investment control over the
securities beneficially owned by Ever Union Capital Limited.

The interests deemed to be held by each of David Bonderman and
James Coulter consists of 211,855,234 ordinary shares held by TPG
and 18,982,766 ordinary shares held by TPG Star Energy Co-Invest,
LLC,. The sole shareholder of TPG is TPG Star, L.P., a Delaware
limited partnership, which is managed by its general partner, TPG Star
GenPar, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, which is managed by its
general partner, TPG Star GenPar Advisors, LLC., a Delaware limited
liability company, whose sole member is TPG Holdings I, L.P., a
Delaware limited partnership, which is managed by its general partner,
TPG Holdings I-A, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, whose
sole member is TPG Group Holdings (SBS), L.P., a Delaware limited
partnership, which is managed by its general partner, TPG Group
Holdings (SBS) Advisors, Inc., a Delaware company, whose
shareholders are David Bonderman and James Coulter.

TPG Star Energy Co-Invest, LLC is a Delaware limited liability
company, whose managing member is TPG Star Advisors, L.L.C., a
Delaware limited liability company, whose sole member is TPG
Ventures Holdings, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company,
whose managing member is TPG Ventures Partners, L.P., a Delaware
limited partnership, which is managed by its general partner, TPG
Ventures Professionals, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, which is
managed by its general partner, Tarrant Advisors, Inc., a Texas
company, whose sole shareholder is Tarrant Capital Advisors, Inc., a
Delaware company, whose shareholders are David Bonderman and
James Coulter.

(1)
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2011, no person
(other than the Directors or the chief executive of our Company,
whose interests have been disclosed in the above section
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or Any Associated Corporation”) had an interest
or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by our
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Changes of Information of Directors

Mr. Law Cheuk Kin, Stephen, an alternate Director to Mr. \Wang
Sing who is a non-executive Director of the Company, has been
appointed as a non-executive Director of NT Pharma Group
Company Limited with effect from March 25, 2011.

Mr. Wang Sing, who is a non-executive Director of the Company
has been appointed as a non-executive Director and a member
of the audit committee and investment committee of China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited with effect from June 8,
2011.

Major Suppliers and Customers

During the year, the Group purchased 23.3% of its goods and
services from its largest supplier Jilin Guotai and around 52.7 %
of its goods and services from its 5 largest suppliers. The Group
sold 96.3% of the crude oil and gas produced to its largest
customer PetroChina and sold 100% of the crude oil and gas
produced to its b largest customers.

Jilin Guotai is owned by Mrs. Zhang and Mr. Zhao and is one of
our 5 largest suppliers. Save as disclosed above, none of our
Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of our share
capital) has any interest in the 5 largest suppliers or PetroChina.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is
confirmed that there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules during the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Competing Business

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of the
Company had an interest in a business which competes with
the Company or may compete with the business of the Group.
In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors, our
controlling shareholders are in compliance with the non-
competition deed executed by the controlling shareholders in
favor of the Company.

Use of Proceeds from the Global Offering

On December 14, 2010, the Company issued 662,000,000
shares at HK$1.70 per share by way of the global offering. The
net proceeds after deducting the relevant expenses were
approximately RMB503.8 million (without taking into account
the partial exercise of the overallotment option).

The use of proceeds as stated in the prospectus was as follows:

° Approximately 55% was expected to be used to expand
our operations by acquiring interests in other oil fields.

° Approximately 35% was expected to be used to drill new
wells and develop advanced technology.

° Approximately 10% was expected to be used for working
capital and general corporate purposes.

Up to December 31, 2011, the net proceeds received from the
global offering were applied in accordance with the application
described in the Company’s prospectus.
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Subsequent Events
(a) New bank facility

MIE entered into an RMB working capital loan agreement
with China Construction Bank (“CCB") on January 4, 2012
for a RMB50 million 6 month loan commencing from
January 13, 2012 at the interest rate of 7.015% per
annum. The interest rate is the base rate as published by
the People’s Bank of China at 6.1% per annum plus 15%
of that rate with the resulting effective interest rate at
7.015% per annum. The loan is secured by a pledge on
the sales income of MIE's entitlement from Moliging and
Miao 3 oil fields.

(b) Proposed dividend

A final dividend in respect of the year ended December
31, 2011 of HK$0.44 per share, amounting to a total
dividend of HK$116,583,000 (RMB94,514,000) is to be
proposed at the annual general meeting on May 18, 2012.
These consolidated financial statements do not reflect this
dividend payable.

Group’s Emoluments Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics. The Company has adopted a
share option scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible
employees.
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Closure of Register of Members

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled on
Friday, May 18, 2012. For determining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the annual general meeting, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, May 16, 2012
to Friday, May 18, 2012, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, all
transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 26th
Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, May 15, 2012.

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting.
The record date for entitlement to the proposed final dividend is
Monday, May 28, 2012. For determining the entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, May 24, 2012 to
Monday, May 28, 2012, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, May 23, 2012.

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Zhang Ruilin

Chairman

Hong Kong, March 26, 2012
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Business Review and Prospects

During 2011, the Company continued its rapid growth both on
its China assets and by acquiring Emir-Oil in Kazakhstan, our
first major international expansion and then the successful
acquisition of the Niobrara Asset in USA. After the successful
PO on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in
December 2010, the Company achieved another milestone in
the international capital market in May 2011 when the Company
tapped the debt capital market and raised US$400 million by
issuing senior notes listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. These senior notes will mature on May 12,
2016 and bear a coupon at 9.75% per annum.

As of December 31, 2011, we had estimated net proved,
proved+probable and proved+probable+possible crude oil
reserves of approximately 61.0 million barrels, 110.8 million
barrels and 138.8 million barrels respectively, an increase of
28.1 million barrels, 58.3 million barrels and 72.4 million barrels
respectively, as compared to our reserve as of December 31,
2010. Included in the crude oil reserves as at December 31,
2011, 27.0 million barrels, 60.5 million barrels and 79.0 million
barrels are contributed by Emir-Oil. Furthermore, Emir-Qil also
has 29,343 MMscf, 63,340 MMscf and 93,424 MMscf net
proved, proved+probable and proved+probable+possible gas
reserves as at December 31, 2011.

Our net daily crude oil production increased 13.4% from 9,349
barrels per day in 2010 to 10,601 barrels of crude oil per day in
2011, and our 2011 gross and net oil production for 2011 were
7.11 million barrels and 4.14 million barrels. These production
numbers include Emir-Oil production only for the 4th quarter of
2011.

During 2011, we made net investments in China of RMB1,228.2
million and drilled 467 wells, a record year in terms of number
of wells drilled in any one year since we became the operator of
Daan, Moliging and Miao 3 oilfields in May 2001. During 2011,
of the 467 wells drilled, we successfully drilled 118 infill wells.
By the end of year 2011, we had drilled 124 infill wells.
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Our operations continue at a rapid pace. As of December 31,
2011, we operated 2,095 gross productive wells comprising
2,071 wells in China and 24 wells in Kazakhstan. In 2011, we
concurrently operated 32 drilling rigs, of which 30 drilling rigs
were operated within our China oilfields and 2 drilling rigs were
operated within our Kazakhstan oilfields.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company’s total
revenue was RMB2,827.1 million, representing a 56.6%
increase over the previous year. The Company’'s EBITDA
increased substantially to RMB2,101.5 million, an increase of
80.8% over the previous year. The Company’s net profit was
RMB1,105.8 million, an increase of 162.7% over the previous
year, primarily as a result of significant increase in realized oil
prices and sales volume and the RMB460.3 million from the
gain arising from the acquisition of Emir-Oil.

The aggregate average realized oil price for China and
Kazakhstan was US$108.80 per barrel for the year ended
December 31, 2011, compared to US$77.99 per barrel for the
year ended December 31, 2010. For our China oilfields, the
average realized oil price was US$109.99 per barrel for the year
ended December 31, 2011, compared to US$77.99 per barrel
for the year ended December 31, 2010. During the three
months ended December 31, 2011 that we controlled Emir-Oil,
the average realized oil price was US$84.38 per barrel after
taking into consideration the transportation and marketing
discount and domestic sales.

Lifting cost was US$7.29 per barrel for the year ended
December 31, 2011, of which lifting cost was US$7.16 per
barrel for our China oilfields and US$9.70 per barrels for our
Kazakhstan oilfields respectively. Lifting cost includes directly
controllable costs to produce a barrel of oil. Other production
costs such as safety fee, environment expenses, technical &
research expense and overhead have not been included since
they are not directly attributable to the production of a barrel of
oil.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company's basic
and diluted earnings per share were both RMBO0.42 per share,
representing an increase of 121.1% over the previous year.
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In view of the strong performance of 2011 and given the low
interest rate environment, the Board recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.044 per share.

Our China oilfields continue to have strong growth potential,
and we are continually expanding our operations by drilling more
wells in Daan, Moliging and Miao 3 oilfields, which we believe
will contribute strong cash flow over the next several years. As
of December 31, 2011, we had identified 2,432 potential
locations containing proved, probable and possible undeveloped
reserves, respectively, for future drilling and within our
estimated net reserves we include estimated net proved,
probable and possible undeveloped reserves of 12.4 million
barrels, 9.6 million barrels and 5.8 million barrels, respectively,
for these locations.

In 2012, the Company plans to continue to make capital
expenditures to support its steady production growth for the
China oilfields. We currently plan to spend a net amount of
US$193 million and 367 wells are planned to be drilled in 2012
comprising 317 wells, 32 wells and 18 wells in Daan, Moliging
and Miao 3 oilfields, respectively, with an expected net
production in range of 11,000 BOPD and 12,200 BOPD.

Emir-Oil obtained three 25-year production contracts for each of
Aksaz, Dolinnoe and Kariman oilfields in September 2011 from
the Ministry of Qil and Gas in the Republic of Kazakhstan. All of
Emir-Oil's proven reserves and 85.6% of its probable reserves
are attributable to these three production contracts. We plan to
ramp up production of Emir-Oil as quickly as possible by
repairing four old wells currently shut-in, by performing modern
acid fracturing stimulation on at least two wells and by drilling
new wells. We began drilling a development well and an
exploration well shortly after we acquired Emir-Oil in September
2011, both of which encountered good potential oil zones and
which are in the process of being completed and tested. We
plan to drill at least five more wells by the end of 2012. We plan
investment expenditures of US$94 million for these 7 wells and
associated facility work. Net and gross production is the same
on these contracts and our targeted daily average production for
2012 is within a range of 2,700 BOPD to 4,500 BOPD. Within
the year end 2011 reserves report are 7 proved, 10 probable
and 16 possible locations, enough for continued production
growth for approximately seven years.
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During the year, we entered into the shale oil industry in the
USA through Condor, in which we have an 80% interest, with
an upfront cost of US$3 million. Condor has acquired a 31.25%
interest in 7,450 net acres (30.1 square kilometers) in the
Niobrara oil shale play located at Weld County, Colorado, USA.
While this acreage is currently not producing, as operator we
plan to drill at least one exploration well in 2012 with capital
expenditure budgeted US$16 million for this well and a follow-
up well. We will work side-by-side with USA experienced
technical experts, including those of South Texas Reservoir
Alliance LLC through its strategic alliance with Condor. The first
horizontal well with multi-stage fracture on the Niobrara Asset
has been designed and approved for drilling. Planning is
underway on the second well. While we will not forecast
production or book reserves for these wells until they are
production tested, we remain confident of achieving both our
profit and technology transfer objectives.

In China, we sell our oil to PetroChina at the Daging price; in
Kazakhstan, we export 90% of our oil at the Brent price. Since
the beginning of this year, Brent has been trading at US$108 to
US$128 per barrel and Daging has been trading at US$114 to
US$130 per barrel. Given the rising tension surrounding Iran’s
nuclear dispute, other issues in the Middle East, the gradual
improvement in the US economy and the stabilizing debt
problem in Europe, the Company believes the trend for strong
oil price will continue in 2012.

Financial Results
Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by RMB1,022.1 million, or
56.6%, from RMB1,805.0 million for the year ended December
31, 2010 to RMB2,827.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2011. This increase was primarily due to an increase in the
crude oil prices and our sales volume.

The average realized oil price was US$108.80 per barrel for the
year ended December 31, 2011, compared to US$77.99 per
barrel for the year ended December 31, 2010. Our sales volume
of crude oil was 4.03 million barrels for the year ended
December 31, 2011, compared to 3.42 million barrels for the
year ended December 31, 2010.

MAFE - BB ER Condor EEEBIM B A MITE -
BMEEPHEES0% #m - KA A3 EEXETT ° Condor
BN R EERIEN Z N EREH 517,450 7F )
(30.1%F 75 2 8 ) & Niobrara i B 5 #)31.25% % I
YEENiobrara EEIEZEE o Wh T B RTDREE * &
PHERIEXEFEN S ——FEZVBEFE—OEHHFRHA -
FUHDEBED 16 ABETHNEAAZTEEWREEZER
FAH - BMEECHLENEZERNTERER S
& - E R B 3#E 1% 1B South Texas Reservoir Alliance LLC
E Condor 7 ] & B B 1 Bk BR B E 5 4 © & 1 78 Niobrara
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During the three months ended December 31, 2011 that we

controlled Emir-Qil, revenue contributed by Emir-Oil was
RMB103.5 million.

o

China

In 2011, our China oil fields realized revenue of
RMB2,723.7 million. The average realized oil price was
US$109.99 per barrel for the year ended December 31,
2011, compared to US$77.99 per barrel for the year ended
December 31, 2010. Our sales volume was 3.84 million
barrels for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared
to 3.42 million barrels for the year ended December 31,
2010.

Kazakhstan

During the three months ended December 31, 2011 that
we controlled Emir-Qil, Emir-Qil realized revenue from oil
sales of RMB100.3 million. Emir-Qil exported 90% of its
sales volume of oil and realized Brent prices for these
sales. The average realized oil price comprising export and
domestic sales was US$84.38 per barrel for the three
months ended December 31, 2011. The average realized
oil price for the three months ended December 31, 2011
was US$90.01 per barrel from export sales (after
transportation and marketing commissions of US$20.22
per barrel) and US$31.02 per barrel from domestic sales.
Revenue from export sales of oil accounted for 96% of
Emir-Oil's total oil revenue during the three months ended
December 31, 2011. Emir-Qil’s oil sales volume was
187,912 barrels for the three months ended December
31, 2011, comprising 169,984 barrels from export sales
and 17,928 barrels from domestic sales.

During the three months ended December 31, 2011 that
we controlled Emir-Oil, Emir-Oil realized revenue from gas
sales of RMB3.2 million with a realized gas price of
US$1,148.51 per MMscf and a gas sales volume of 439.7
MMscf.
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Operating expenses

The Group's operating expenses increased by RMB557.0
million, or 47.6%, from RMB1,171.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010 to RMB1,728.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011, primarily due to an increase in special oll
levy in China as a result of the increase in realized crude oil
prices and sales volume, and an increase in other taxes in
Kazakhstan and employee compensation costs.

Emir-Oil's operating expenses for the three months ended
December 31, 2011 amounted to RMB111.0 million.

° Purchases, services and other expenses. Our purchases,
services and other expenses increased by RMB59.0
million, or 46.6%, from RMB126.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010 to RMB185.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2011. The increase in purchase,
service and other expenses for our China operations
was primarily due to: (i) the increase in sales volume in
2011 resulting in the increase in electricity and fuel
consumptions and transportation cost ; (i) the increase in
number of productive wells for our China operations
resulted in the increase in repair and maintenance cost,
materials, safety and environment protection expenses.
For our China operations, we operated 1,641 productive
wells as at December 31, 2010 and 2,071 productive wells
as at December 31, 2011; and (iii) we performed more
technical analysis in 2011 in our China oilfields to stabilize
and improve production levels.

During the three months ended December 31, 2011 that
we controlled Emir-Oil, Emir-Qil’s purchases, services and
other expenses amounted to RMB17.6 million.
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Employee compensation costs. The Group's employee
compensation costs increased by RMB86.8 million, or
78.7%, from RMB110.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010 to RMB197.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011. The increase in employee
compensation costs for our China operations was primarily
due to: (i) higher compensation of employees to retain and
hire qualified and talented people after listing; and (ii)
in 2011, we also hired more employees in our China oil
fields. As at December 31, 2010, we had 1,610
employees, and as at December 31, 2011, we had 1,844
employees for our China operations.

During the three months ended December 31, 2011 that
we controlled Emir-Oil, Emir-Oil's employee compensation
costs amounted to RMB15.6 million.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization. The Group's
depreciation, depletion and amortization increased by
RMB13.4 million, or 2.5%, from RMB528.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2010 to RMB542.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2011. The increase in
depreciation, depletion and amortization for our China
operations was mainly due to the increase in sales volume
in 2011, which is partially offset by the change in the
method of calculation for unit of production rates. The cost
of oil properties is amortized at the field level based on the
unit of production method. Unit of production rates were
previously based on proved developed producing oil
reserves estimated to be recoverable from existing
facilities based on the current terms of the respective
production agreements. From January 1, 2011, the Group
has applied the unit of production rates based on proved
and probable developed producing oil reserves estimated
to be recoverable from existing facilities based on current
terms of the respective production agreements. The
change in estimate is due to management’s view that
inclusion of probable developed producing reserve is more
reflective of the reserve base available to the Company
from its investment in the oil fields.
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During the three months ended December 31, 2011 that
we controlled Emir-Oil, Emir-Oil’s depreciation, depletion
and amortization amounted to RMB28.1 million, which is
also calculated using unit of production rates based on
proved and probable developed producing reserves.

Distribution and administrative expenses. The Group's
distribution and administrative expenses increased by
RMB43.2 million, or 55.0%, from RMB78.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2010 to RMB121.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2011. The increase in
distribution and administrative expenses was primarily due
to: (i) we issued US$400 million senior notes in May 2011
and incurred professional fees and other related expenses
of RMB24.7 million which were recorded in administrative
expenses; and (i) In 2011, more crude oil was allocated to
the foreign contractors at 80% compared to 48% as our
investments in the oilfields increased, so we had to bear
more administrative expenses for these three oilfields;
and (iii) after listing, the Company incurred more reporting,
legal expenses and other miscellaneous expenses for the
compliance with Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and other disclosure obligations.

During the three months ended December 31, 2011 that
we controlled Emir-Oil, Emir-Oil's administrative expenses
amounted to RMB3.3 million.
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° Taxes other than income taxes. The Group's taxes other e

than income taxes increased by RMB367.5 million, or
127.0%, from RMB289.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010 to RMB656.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011. The following table
summarizes taxes other than income taxes for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010:

BHE(FEHERIN) - NEBEOBIA(FTEBERIN)
REE-Z-—ZHF+-_A=1+-BLFEARK
2.893 R TTIE MM ARM3.6758TTH127.0% &
E-F—H+Z A=t HIEFEARK6.568
B T&ReERE-F——F+-_A=+—H
E=Z-—FF+_A=+-HLFENHRRFAEF
BERIN) -

Year ended December 31
BE+-A=1+—HLEFE

2011 2010
—EB——fF —E=-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
China =]
Special oil levy apk SRl €k 595,368 288,133
Urban construction tax and education W RABMNE
surcharge 13,825 1,163
609,193 289,296
Kazakhstan K EEHTE
Mineral extraction tax YRR 6,699 —
Rent export tax MeBOH 25,458 —
Rent export duty expenditures e HAEHES 5,527 —
Property tax LIESS) 7,549 —
Others Hith 2,340 —
47,573 —

656,766 289,296
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This increase in taxes other than income taxes for our
China operations was primarily due to an increase in the
special oil levy we paid to the PRC government in 2011
due to: (i) increased realized crude oil prices of year 2011
as the special oil levy is calculated and charged at
progressive ad valorem rates based on the price of crude
oil; and (ii) an increase in sales volume. For our China
operations, the average selling price for the year ended
December 31, 2010 and 2011 was US$77.99 and
US$109.99 per barrel, respectively, and the sales volume
for the year ended December 31, 2010 and 2011 was 3.42
million and 3.84 million barrels, respectively. During most
of the year ended December 31, 2011, we had to pay the
special oil levy based on the old rules starting at US$40
per barrel and the rate increases according to the crude oil
price.

In early 2012, the Ministry of Finance of the People's
Republic of China (“MOF") issued a notice regarding the
increase of the threshold of the special oil levy (Cai Qi
2011 No.480) (“Notice”) paid by crude oil producers.
Pursuant to the Notice, as approved by the State Council,
MOF has decided to increase the threshold of the special
oil levy from US$40 to US$55 per barrel, with effect from
November 1, 2011. Notwithstanding such adjustment, the
special oil levy will continue to have five levels and will be
calculated and charged according to the progressive and
valorem rates on the excess amounts. The special oil levy
will continue to be calculated on a monthly basis and paid
on a quarterly basis. Details of the level of the special oil
levy are as follows:

PRI A BIE (PTER RN IR E EHN M
RZT——FRREBAHSO AR =SS
Z2m-BE: () 2T ——FHEERFHAELEA
REFRIM S DERFAERIEZENEE R
H RN R R () SEHEE 00 o B E
KEmMs  BEZZ-ZER=F——F+=AH
=T—HIEFENTHEEEI R RERT7.99%T
}109.99% T MEBEE-_TE—ETR_T——4F
T A=T—HIEFENHEENFIA3A2EER
E3BAEER HE-Z—F+-A=+—H
IEFERRI D ER - BB A AR
me HIRBESREHER40ETHIE - LE
RAREBRER L7 -
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FRllaES BB B EMA0XTIREELLETT
WIB——F+— A —RRREX - REHFRE
AR ESEUID BT ABRERENEE X
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Level of

Crude oil prices (US$/barrel) special oil levy
BhERES

BhERE (1) Bk =
55-60 (inclusive) 55-60 (&) 20%
60-65 (inclusive) 60-65 (&) 25%
65-70 (inclusive) 65-70 (&) 30%
70-75 (inclusive) 70-75(%&) 35%
Over 75 75 £ 40%
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Prior to the issue of the Notice, the Group was paying
special oil income levy based on the following levels:

Crude oil prices (US$/barrel)

ZOBETIE 2 ARBEIRT I ERBN B HE

Level of
special oil levy

BhElkES
RRERE (Ex#) ikt =
40-45 (inclusive) 40-45 (&) 20%
45-50 (inclusive) 45-50(%) 25%
50-55 (inclusive) 50-55 (&) 30%
55-60 (inclusive) 55-60 (&) 35%
Over 60 60 A 40%

During the three months ended December 31, 2011 that
we controlled Emir-Oil, Emir-Oil’s taxes other than income
taxes amounted to RMB47.6 million. Please refer to above
for a breakdown of the different types of taxes other
income taxes paid by Emir-Oil.

Other losses. The Group's other losses decreased by
RMB12.7 million, or 33.8%, from approximately RMB37.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2010 to
approximately RMB24.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011. We had other losses of RMB24.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2011, primarily
due to the non-cash unrealized loss of RMB32.2 million
from the oil hedge options purchased in October 2010 and
October 2011 due to the movement in the fair value of the
oil hedge options. The accounting standard requires us to
perform a fair value valuation on the unexpired portion of
any oil hedge option at each reporting period. The fair
value valuation is determined by, amongst other things,
the spot price and the forward curve of oil prices at the
reporting period.

BE-"Z—F+-A=+—HI=@EA - &M
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In October 2010, the Group entered into the following oil
hedge options with Merrill Lynch Commodities, Inc
(“MLCI Oil Hedge") for the year ended 31 December
2011 and year ending 31 December 2012:

RZZE—FF 1+ A &% E EMerrill Lynch
Commodities, IncptElZE—FT——F+=A=+—
AtFERBE-_T——F+_A=+—HILF
BRI AT AMESE ((MLCIABERD) -

69

MIE sold MIE bought
put option put option
Monthly Annual at strike at strike
Notional Notional price price
Quantity Quantity (WTI price (WTI price
Contract Period (barrel) (barrel) per barrel) per barrel)
MIE H &R MIEBERE
MRETRE HMRETRE
BRE= BEER €=%" €=%:
ARHE HE(R) HE(R) WTIE#) WTIE#%)
Year ended December 31, HE—_Z——F
2011 +=-—A=+—H
1EFE 150,000 1,800,000 US$55 %7t US$7037T
Year ending December 31, Hz—2——F
2012 +=-—A=+—H
1EFE 100,000 1,200,000 US$55 %7t US$703=7T

The premium of US$8.74 million (RMB57.86 million) for
the above option is payable over 8 installments on a
quarterly basis from April 2011.

The spot price of WTI as at December 30, 2011 was
US$99.0 per barrel and the forward curve for WTI for that
date was higher than the spot price. Given the WTI spot
price and forward curve for WTI was higher than the strike
price of US$70 per barrel for MLCI Oil Hedge, the fair
value valuation requires us to book a non-cash loss of
RMB21.3 million for the MLCI Oil Hedge to write down
the financial derivative asset.

i EREMN 874 E XL (AR5, 786 B L) (B /A
—E——FNARKETES ST -

R-ZE——F+-—A=+B WINREEBEASTH
99.0%7T - MWTIERHIE BN ZABRREE AR °
M WTIER BB R WTHRBIfh R = A MLCI A M EH
THEEEMR70ET AR EETHEEREMH®
MLCIEMERLEIER S BRARE2,1308 T -
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In October 2011, the Group entered into three separate oil
hedge options with JPMorgan Chase Bank. N.A.
("JPMorgan”), Deutsche Bank AG (“Deutsche”) and
Standard Bank Plc (“SB PIc"”) at monthly notional quantity
of 60,000 barrel each for the year ending December 31,
2012 (or a total notional quantity of 720,000 barrels) at
Zero premium:

RZT——F+7 AEBEEERKBET(E
BARBE]) - EEERIT(EER] KStandard
Bank Plc ([{Z4R 1) 5T = E{ARI A h E HHHA 4 -
RTHREE BE_T——_F+-A=+—HL
FEMNTARERERG0000M(HALELEHE
7720,0004%)

Company Company Company

bought put sold call bought call

option at option at option at

strike price strike price strike price

(IPE Brent price (IPE Brent price (IPE Brent price

Counterparty per barrel) per barrel) per barrel)
ARBER ARHERE NRBERE

MREfTRME HAREfTRERE HMETRE

(BRIPE (BHIPE (BRIPE

REHT R RE) AERRE) HREEE)
JPMorgan AR K3 US$60.00% 7T US$131.00%7T US$170.00% 7T
Deutsche mEE US$60.00% 7T US$131.50% 7T US$170.003 7T
SB Plc 1EER US$60.00% T US$146.00% 7T US$186.00% 7T

The IPE Brent price as at December 30, 2011 was
US$106.51 per barrel and the forward curve for IPE Brent
price for that date was higher than the spot price. Given
the IPE Brent price and forward curve were approaching
the strike price of the sold put option, the fair value
valuation requires us to book a net non-cash loss of
RMB10.9 million for these three oil hedges and recognize
the financial derivative liabilities.

Profit from operations

The Group's profit from operations increased by RMB465.2
million, or 73.4%, from RMB634.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010 to RMB1,099.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011. This increase was primarily due to an
increase in revenue, partially offset by the increase in special oil
levy, other taxes in Kazakhstan and employee compensation
cost.

RZFB——F+-A=+1R SWHIPEMEHE
/3106.515E 7T - T IPEMD B 45 (B 12 B dh R N &%
BEIREERD o i IPET AR M B N g H i AR
MHEERAMENTTEE  RAEBEMEERR
Mz =R A mERLCEFRSFERARE
1,090 BT RERMEITERE -

R
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During the three months ended December 31, 2011 that we
controlled Emir-Oil, Emir-Qil incurred a loss from operations of
RMB7.5 million.

Finance income/(costs), net

The Group's finance cost (net) increased by RMB108.4 million,
or 210.9%, from RMB51.4 million for the year ended December
31, 2010 to RMB159.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2011. This increase was primarily due to: (i) the US$400 million
5-year senior notes issued in May 2011 with 9.75% annual
coupon rate to finance acquisition of Emir-Oil and to repay the
US$200 million CITIC bank loan, which resulted in a significant
increase in interest expenses; (i) early repayment of the CITIC
bank loan in May 2011 resulted in writing off the unamortized
non-cash expenses related to the CITIC bank loan of RMB29.3
million and an early repayment penalty of US$1.0 million
(RMB6.8 million) to CITIC bank; and (i) CITIC bank charged us
US$0.4 million waiver fee to allow us to go ahead with the
US$400 million 5-year senior notes fund raising. The increase in
finance costs was partially offset by the increase in finance
income due to the exchange gain caused by the appreciation of
the Renminbi against the US dollar in 2011 as our borrowings
were denominated and settled in US dollars.

During the three months ended December 31, 2011 that we
controlled Emir-Oil, Emir-Oil incurred finance costs of RMB9.4
million.

Gain arising from acquisition of Emir-Qil

On September 19, 2011, the Group acquired 100% of the share
capital of Emir-Oil and intercompany loans payable by Emir-Qil
to BMB Munai, Inc. for US$159,601,000 (RMB1,014.2 million).
Emir-Qil is an oil and natural gas exploration and production
company registered and operating in the Republic of
Kazakhstan. The Group assumed the control of Emir-Oil on
September 30, 2011.

According to the valuation report prepared by an independent
appraisal firm, the fair value of identifiable net assets of Emir-Qil
at the date the Group assumed control is RMB1,594.9 million
and total acquisition related cost is RMB120.3 million. The net
gain arising from acquisition of Emir-Oil is RMB460.3 million
accordingly.
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Profit before income tax

The Group's profit before income tax increased by RMB817.2
million, or 140.3%, from RMB582.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010 to RMB1,399.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011. This increase was primarily due to the
cumulative effects of the above factors.

Income tax expense

The Group had income tax expense of RMB161.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2010, compared to income tax
expense of RMB293.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2011. This increase was primarily due to an increase in profit
before income tax in 2011.

Net profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, our net profit for the year increased
by RMB684.9 million, or 162.7%, from RMB420.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2010 to RMB1,105.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2011. Net profit would be RMB768.3
million after taking into consideration the adjustments used for
adjusted EBITDA (below) for non-cash items except for
depreciation, depletion and amortization, such as share-based
compensation expense, realized and unrealized loss/(gain) on
the oil put option, gain arising from acquisition of Emir-Oil, LLC,
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, non-recurring
expenses related to the issuance of senior notes and any other
non-recurring or non-cash income/expenses such as the waiver
fee, early repayment penalty and write off of unamortized non-
cash expenses related to the CITIC Bank loan, which would
reflect net profit from core operations after adjustment for non-
cash and non-recurring items.

Emir-Oil's loss for the three months ended December 31, 2011
was RMB14.7 million.
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EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

We provide a reconciliation of EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA to
net profit for the year, our most directly comparable financial
performance calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS.
EBITDA refers to earnings before finance income, finance costs,
income tax and depreciation, depletion and amortization.
Adjusted EBITDA refers to EBITDA adjusted to exclude
non-cash and non-recurring items such as share-based
compensation expense, realized and unrealized loss/(gain) on
the oil hedge options, gain arising from acquisition of Emir-Qil,
loss on impairment of receivables, write-off of inventory, loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets,
expenses related to the issuance of senior notes given these
expenses are related to financing activities, and any other non-
recurring or non-cash income/expenses. The Group's adjusted
EBITDA reflects the Group's cash flow earnings from its core
operations.

We have included EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA as we believe
EBITDA is a financial measure commonly used in the oil and gas
industry. We believe that EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA are
used as supplemental financial measures by our management
and by investors, research analysts, bankers and others, to
assess our operating performance, cashflow and return on
capital as compared to those of other companies in our industry,
and our ability to take on financing. However, EBITDA and
adjusted EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or
construed as alternatives to profit from operations or any other
measure of performance or as an indicator of our operating
performance or profitability. EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA fail to
account for tax, finance income, finance costs and other non-
operating cash expenses. EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA do not
consider any functional or legal requirements of the business
that may require us to conserve and allocate funds for any
purposes.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of EBITDA and

adjusted EBITDA to net profit for the years ended December

31, 2011 and December 31, 2010:

TREHJEBITDAR KL FHBREBITDAREE — T ——4F
+-—A=+-Brk_Z—ZF+_A=+—HIEFEZ

o FEYE AR

Year ended December 31
BE+-A=+-BLEE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Net profit for the year FRF A 1,105,842 420,864
Income tax expenses FrigFiF 2 293,909 161,705
Finance income IR 1 ON (74,728) (35,344)
Finance cost 8758 A 234,482 86,788
Depreciation, depletion and amortization WE - B 542,002 528,582
EBITDA EBITDA 2,101,507 1,162,595
Share-based compensation expenses R% 1% B4 B 52 18,042 29,429
Loss on oil hedge options AR E SR EE 32,137 44,692
Gain arising from acquisition of Emir-Qil, Y8 Emir-Oil, LLC 7|15
LLC (460,345) —
Expenses related to issuance of senior BATE SR BRAIERER X
notes 24,127 —
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HERHE « TREEENER
equipment 1,089 —
Other acquisition expenses HAth BB R 2 8,760 —
Adjusted EBITDA K FHEEBITDA 1,725,317 1,236,716

The Group’s EBITDA increased by approximately RMB938.9
million, or 80.8%, from approximately RMB1,162.6 million for

the year ended December 31, 2010 to approximately
RMB2,101.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. The
increase was primarily due to the increase in realized oil price

and sales volume.

NEBEMEBITDABMEBE - —ZSF+-_A=+—H81
FEMHARKE11.626FBTE NN ARE.3891E T
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The Group's adjusted EBITDA increased by approximately A& EBENKEFAZEBTDAREZ T —ZF+ - A
RMB488.6 million, or 39.5%, from approximately RMB1,236.7 =+—HBILFENHARE12.367ETEMOARE
million for the year ended December 31, 2010 to approximately — 4.886 1B T&39.6% EHE " T——F+-_A=+—8H
RMB1,725.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. The It FE K AR 17253187 4L ZEEBITDAK HNJR
increase in adjusted EBITDA was also primarily due to the FTEHNEIRAMER LS -

increase in realized oil price and sales volume.

The Group’'s EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA by operating AN BIZLE &5 282] 5 B EBITDA K AL 95 EBITDA £ 5]
segment are set out below: o

Year ended December 31, 2011
BE-2-——-F+-A=1+-HLEE

Intersegment
China  Kazakhstan Others  transaction Total
TE REREE it 2PERS it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR

Net profit for the year FRFHEA 917,388 (14,690) 203,144 — 1,105,842
Income tax expenses FEHAY 296,075 (2,166) — — 293,909
Finance income BBWA (72,174) — (11,918) 9,364 (74,728)
Finance cost MBER 69,024 9,364 165,458 (9,364) 234,482
Depreciation, depletion and WE - HEREHE

amortization 513,834 28,103 65 — 542,002
EBITDA EBITDA 1,724,147 20,611 356,749 — 2,101,507
Share-based compensation expenses {74 H % 18,042 — — — 18,042
Loss on oil hedge options RHERSEER 21,276 — 10,861 - 32,137
Gain arising from acquisition of Y88 Emir-Oil, LLCFI15

Emir-Oil, LLC — — (460,345) — (460,345)
Expenses related to issuance of BTRAZBENEERS

senior notes — — 24,127 — 24127
Loss on disposal of property, HETHE  THRRZEN

plant and equipment &8 — 1,089 — — 1,089
Other acquisition expenses HipliER% - - 8,760 — 8,760

Adjusted EBITDA KR EBITDA 1,763,465 21,700 (59,848) — 1,725,317
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

The Group's primary sources of cash during 2011 were cash
flow from operating activities and cash flow from financing
activities. We used cash primarily to repay the US$200 million
CITIC bank loan, and fund capital spending program and acquire
Emir-Qil, LLC.

In 2011, we had net cash generated from operating activities of
RMB1,246.1 million, net cash used in investing activities of
RMB2,476.5 million, net cash generated from financing
activities of RMB1,093.8 million and a translation loss of foreign
currency of RMB10.4 million resulting in a net decrease in cash
and cash equivalent of RMB147.0 million.

Cash generated from operating activities

Net cash generated from operating activities was RMB1,246.1
million in the year ended December 31, 2011. In the year ended
December 31, 2011, our net cash generated in operating
activities included profit before income tax of RMB1,399.8
million adjusted for, among other things, depreciation, depletion
and amortization of RMB542.0 million, gain arising from the
acquisition of Emir-Qil, LLC of RMB460.3 million, net interest
expenses of RMB220.2 million, unrealized foreign exchange
gain of RMB70.7 million, and a fair value loss on oil hedge
Option of RMB32.1 million, offset by changes in working capital
which included a increase in trade and other payables of
RMB221.0 million, a increase in trade and other receivable of
RMB209.8 million and a increase in inventories of RMB17.6
million.

Net cash generated from operating activities was RMB1,015.0
million in the year ended December 31, 2010. In the year ended
December 31, 2010, our net cash generated in operating
activities included profit before income tax of RMB582.6 million
adjusted for, among other things, depreciation, depletion and
amortization of RMB528.6 million, higher net interest expenses
of RMB86.6 million, a fair value loss on oil hedge option of
RMB44.7 million and an unrealized foreign exchange gain of
RMB35.2 million, offset by changes in working capital which
included a increase in trade and other payables of RMB9.5
million, a decrease in trade and other receivable of RMB86.4
million; and a decrease in inventories of RMB41.0 million.
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Cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2011 amounted to RMB2,476.5 million, mainly
as a result of project development costs of RMB1,241.9 million,
net cash payment of RMB985.9 million for acquiring of Emir,
increase in pledged deposits of RMB205.3 million, payment of
RMB18.9 million for acquiring preferred shares and mineral
extraction right from PEDCO and net loans granted to GOC of
RMB28.6 million, partially offset by the interest received of
RMB4.1 million.

Net cash used in investing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2010 amounted to RMB1,001.8million, mainly as
a result of project development costs of RMB910.2 million, and
loans granted to GOC of RMB91.6 million.

Cash generated from financing activities

Net cash generated from financing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2011 amounted to RMB1,093.8 million due to
proceeds from the issuance of US$400 million senior notes of
RMB2,524.6 million in May 2011, offset by: (i) RMB1,308.3
million used for the repayment of US$200 million CITIC bank
loan in May 2011;(ii) 2010 final cash dividend of RMB76.8
million paid in May 2011;(iii) payment of RMB10.7 million for the
fees incurred during the initial public offering; (iv) payment of
RMB34.5 million for the expenses related to the issuance of
US$400 million senior notes ;and (v) repayment of RMBO0.3
million for capital lease liability.

Net cash generated from financing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2010 amounted to RMB376.7million due to:(i)
proceeds from initial public offering of RMB605.2 million in
December 2010, offset by:(i) a cash dividend of RMB136.5
million paid in March 2010; (i) payment of RMB64.9 million for
the fees incurred during initial public offering; and (iii) payment
of RMB27.1 million for arrangement fee for the US$200 million
CITIC bank loan.
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Our gearing ratio, which is defined as total borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents (“Net Borrowings”) divided by the sum of
Net Borrowings and total equity, increased slightly from 23.77%
as at December 31, 2010 to 39.45% as at December 31, 2011,
principally due to the issuance of the US$400 million senior
notes.

Our Total Borrowings to EBITDA ratio, which is defined as total
borrowings divided by EBITDA increased from 1.11 as at
December 31, 2010 to 1.17 as at December 31, 2011.

Our Total Borrowings to Adjusted EBITDA ratio, which is
defined as total borrowings divided by Adjusted EBITDA
increased from 1.04 as at December 31, 2010 to 1.43 as at
December 31, 2011.

Market Risks

Our market risk exposures primarily consist of fluctuations in oil
prices and exchange rates.

Oil price risk

The Group is engaged in crude oil development, production and
selling activities. Prices of crude oil are affected by both
domestic and global factors which are beyond the control of the
Group. The fluctuations in such prices may have favourable or
unfavourable impacts to the Group. Prior to 2008, the Group did
not use any derivative instruments to hedge against potential
price fluctuations of crude oil and therefore the Group was
exposed to general price fluctuations of crude oil. During the
year ended December 31, 2010 and 2011, the Group entered
into oil hedge options contracts to manage its price risk. If the
crude oil price were to increase or decrease by US$1, the
impact on the Group's profit before income tax for the year
ended December 31, 2011. as a result of revaluing the oil hedge
options would be a decrease of RMB2,698,000 and increase of
RMB2,326,000 (2010: decrease of RMB1,566,000 or increase
of RMB1,652,000), respectively.
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Currency risk

The majority of the Group’s China operation sales are in US
dollars, while production and other expenses are incurred in
RMB. The RMB is not a freely convertible currency and is
regulated by the PRC government. Limitation in foreign
exchange transactions imposed by the PRC government could
cause future exchange rates to vary significantly from current or
historical exchange rates. Management is not in a position to
anticipate changes in the PRC foreign exchange regulations and
as such is unable to reasonably anticipate the impacts on the
Group's results of operations or financial position arising from
future changes in exchange rates.

Employees

As at December 31, 2011, the Group had 2,222 employees,
with 1,844 based in China and 378 based in Kazakhstan.

We have adopted a market-oriented employment system and a
more competitive remuneration scheme. The remuneration
scheme and employment system are periodically reviewed.
Apart from pension funds and in-house training programs,
performance bonuses and share options may be awarded to
employees according to evaluation of individual contribution.

Contingencies

On August 28, 2000, MIE entered into a PSC with Sinopec for
exploration and development of Luojiayi 64 block at Shengli
oilfield in Shandong Province. In 2000, MIE began the trial-
development phase of its operations at Luojiayi 64 block at
Shengli oilfield and drilled a dry hole. The project has been
suspended since the end of 2004. In April 2005, MIE requested
an extension from Sinopec to restart the project at Shengli. On
September 27, 2006, MIE received a letter from Sinopec
denying the request to restart the project and seeking to
terminate the PSC on the grounds that the extension period of
the trial-development phase had expired and MIE had not met
its investment commitment of at least US$2 million under the
PSC. MIE believes its investment in the project at Luojiayi 64
block at Shengli oilfield had met the required commitment
amount under the PSC. The PSC with Sinopec has not been
formally terminated and the dispute has not entered any judicial
proceedings.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BAZHAMBRES

o
pwec

To the shareholders of MIE Holdings Corporation
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MIE
Holdings Corporation (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 204, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at December 31, 2011, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

BRERAE

BMIBEREZERARAFTRRE
(RELFMK B R 7))

AAZEED (WA TR [ 11)) B2 35U BN 2825 204
EMI SRR RERAT A TR BAR)) RS
AR (T8 [ B E ) A SIS HRE - LAHNBRE
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BERAHRERER  UREBRHBEHERL
FEERIEEH -

ESHEHUBRRARENSE

BERRESAREARBERMEHREER LB E(AF
GO RERERESFIERE - AL A HHBER
RIFHEEMATHRER - LEEHERBRHEAHUE
WRVBH)RBIES] - AEAFHBERRTFEAR
AP AR M BB E AT RIR -

RBENEE

BANEERRERMNETEZSTAHPHRERFEL
B - MO REEBREAEAETRN - RFRRE
KEFETEEMRE - WHRBIRITES LA ERETE
BHPBEREEE TMFEEMERERRAL -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B RBENREE (F)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at December 31, 2011, and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Other Matters

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and
only for you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 26, 2012
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

82 ANNUAL REPORT 2011 - MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION

B Ot AR R R
As at December 31,
R+=ZBA=+—H
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
HaE AR¥ T ARBET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment TEE - THEE&ME 6 5,267,499 3,024,482
Intangible asset mEE 7 584,322 1,677
Investment K& 8 3,966 —
Derivative financial instruments TESMT A 9 — 20,285
Trade and other receivables JE WS K% EL fth JiE U FRIE 10 32,032 24,212
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 12 7,530 —
5,895,349 3,070,656
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 11 51,837 36,664
Derivative financial instruments PTESRITE 9 9,151 11,168
Trade and other receivables FE LU N E fth FE U 3k TR 10 703,068 398,294
Pledged deposits EHRER 12 233,891 29,916
Cash and cash equivalents Re KA eEEY 13 533,029 680,033
1,530,976 1,156,075
Total Assets BMEE 7,426,325 4,226,731
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to BEBRAATMESE
owners of the Company
Ordinary shares EEA% 14 17,627 17,588
Share premium A= B 15 835,709 826,477
Other reserves HihfEE 15 102,083 91,919
Retained earnings B
— Proposed final dividend — IR R HA R A 27 94,514 77,933
— Others —H A 1,909,216 946,014
Equity attributable to owners BERAQRREEERS
of the Company 2,959,149 1,959,931
Non-controlling interest FEEFIE RS 3,504 —
Total Equity RS 2,962,653 1,959,931
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

B OB ISR & ()

As at December 31,

W+=A=+-8
2011 2010

S i

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

fifat AR¥T T ARBTT

LIABILITIES =V
Non-current liabilities kFRBERE
Asset retirement obligations BEREEERR 16 21,876 9,270
Deferred income tax liabilities- net FELEFEHRaE 17 213,447 8,694
Trade and other payables JE - K EAtb FE AT IR 18 110,358 137,598
Borrowings EEN 19 2,463,004 1,191,862
Derivative financial instruments TEemIT A 9 85,157 —
2,893,842 1,347,424
Current liabilities =R
Trade and other payables FEAS N Efth S F0 18 18 1,495,602 775,137
Current income tax liabilities BERFTS A E 63,610 44,898
Borrowings B 19 - 99,341
Derivative financial instruments TESMT A 9 10,618 —
1,569,830 919,376
Total Liabilities waE 4,463,672 2,266,800
Total Equity and Liabilities HEZNERE 7,426,325 4,226,731
Net current (liabilities)/assets wE (AR EEFE (38,854) 236,699
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERE 5,856,495 3,307,355

The notes on page 91 to 204 are an integral part of these 91 B& %2048 WEBARAHBBHE Y —35 o
financial statements.

The financial statements on page 82 to 204 were approved by H 82 B EZF2M4E 2 M BREDOR _E——F = A
the Board of Directors on March 26, 2012 and were signed on —+NAEEZEEQERITETNE  Yh TESSR

its behalf. REE:
Zhang Ruilin Allen Mak
RIZH BEHMm
Director Director

B=x 5=
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Statement of Financial Position

B HRR
As at December 31,
BR+=—HA=+-—H
2011 2010
—2——-F =
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ftat AR¥ T AREFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment TEE - THMEE 1,584 —
Investments in subsidiaries HFRNFHRE 25 1,418,594 1,400,552
Amount due from subsidiaries BERFFRA 25 3,329,987 602,021
Investment K& 8 3,966 —
Prepayments to third parties B E =R 12,063 —
4,766,194 2,002,573
Current assets REEE
Amount due from subsidiaries ERTFRA 25 94,514 —
Other receivables H b FE U FE 3 —
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 13 52,381 342,950
146,898 342,950
Total Assets BWEE 4,913,092 2,345,523
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves EXRFHE
Ordinary shares A% 14 17,627 17,588
Share premium RA @B 15 835,709 826,477
Other reserves Ebf# 15 1,332,718 1,367,599
Retained earnings BIFias
— Proposed final dividend — FER R ERARF 27 94,514 77,933
— Others — Efb 59,144 11,316
Total Equity R 2,339,712 2,300,913




Statement of Financial Position (continued)
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B AR R TR (8])
As at December 31,
R+=-—BA=+—H
2011 2010
—=2——fF —E-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Kt et AR¥ T AREFT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Borrowings EEN 19 2,463,004 —
2,463,004 —
Current liabilities REBAE
Salary payable FEf s & 31,576 5,960
Interest payable FEASTFI B 33,689 —
Stock appreciation rights liabilities RO IgEERE 18 33,512 21,260
Derivative financial instruments TESRITE 9 10,618 —
Other liabilities EMEE 981 17,390
110,376 44 610
Total liabilities FR =R 2,573,380 44,610
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES HEZRAE 4,913,092 2,345,523
Net current assets REEEFRE 36,522 298,340
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 4,802,716 2,300,913

The notes on page 91 to 204 are an integral part of these E£918ZF 2048 2B AASHTBERES —25H o

financial statements.
The financial statements on page 82 to 204 were approved by F 82 B EF204B 2B REER —_E——F= A1

the Board of Directors on March 26, 2012 and were signed on —+ ~BEZEefEREETNS  THTHESTeHK

its behalf. xx= .
Zhang Ruilin Allen Mak
[k EiEm
Director Director
BF BF
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

eftamalaR
Year ended December 31,
BE+t-A=t+—-HLEE
2011 2010
—2——-F =
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
KtaF ARET R AR®ET T
Revenue g & 5 2,827,141 1,804,976
Operating expenses ReEHX
Purchases, services and other g - R R EM (185,494) (126,517)
Employee compensation costs 8 TH A 20 (197,052) (110,346)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization #7& - 18 K& # 44 (542,002) (528,582)
Distribution expenses HERX (31,472) (28,424)
Administrative expenses EEEMA (90,297) (50,154)
Taxes other than income taxes BIE (T EBRIN) 21 (656,766) (289,296)
Other losses H b8 22 (24,898) (37,644)
Total operating expenses EA S S (1,727,981) (1,170,963)
Profit from operations SRR 1,099,160 634,013
Finance income B U A 23 74,728 35,344
Finance costs HISER 23 (234,482) (86,788)
Finance costs — net FHKER 23 (159,754) (51,444)
Gain arising from acquisition of U & Emir-Oil, LLC |18
Emir-Qil, LLC 30 460,345 —
Profit before income tax RR P 1888 AT F 1,399,751 582,569
Income tax expense FEHBxX 24 (293,909) (161,705)
Net profit for the year FRFEA 1,105,842 420,864
Attributable to: BB
Owners of the Company KRBIEE 1,106,072 420,864
Non-controlling interest JEPR M AE RS (230) —

1,105,842 420,864
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)

BOtEERE R (F)

Year ended December 31,
BE+-BA=+—HILEE

2011 2010
—=2——fF —E-TF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Hiat AR¥T T AEBTTT
Earnings per share, Basic EXRSRKE (BRARY)

(expressed in RMIB per share) 32 0.42 0.19
Earnings per share, Diluted HEESREE (BRARY)

(expressed in RMB per share) 32 0.42 0.19
Dividends distributed during the year ZRERE X 76,842 217,584
Dividends proposed after the EEABARREDIK

balance sheet date )=t 27 94,514 77,933
Net profit for the year FRFER 1,105,842 420,864
Other comprehensive income: Hitir ez
Currency translation difference EETEER (44,697) (10,941)
Other comprehensive income FREMGESRERZFE

for the year, net of tax (44,697) (10,941)
Total comprehensive income FRGFEWRBE

for the year 1,061,145 409,923
Attribute to: FER
Owners of the Company KATFIREE 1,061,375 409,923
Non-controlling interest FEFE SR A (230) —
Total comprehensive income for FRGEEWFLEE

the year 1,061,145 409,923

The notes on page 91 to 204 are an integral part of these 91 BEF 204 B 2 [ BASHEIGHR*R 2 —251H -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EHEREER
Attributable to owners of the Company
BERRARMEE
Ordinary  Preferred Share Other  Retained Total
shares shares  premium  reserves  earnings equity
LRk BER  BAEE  HEtREE  Brks  Esgd
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
i AREBTT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETR
As at January 1, 2010 R-E-25-A-H 659 171 339,449 64,460 848,707 1,253,446
Comprehensive income FEkE
for the year
Net profit for the year FERFRF — — — — 420,864 420,864
Transfer to safety fund reserve ERZZ2ESHE — — — 28,040 (28,040) —
Currency translation difference E#E=R — — — (10,941) — (10,941)
— — — 17,099 392,824 409,923
Transactions with owners HIBERS
Employees stock options ESBERE 14(b), 20 — — — 10,360 — 10,360
Cancellation of ordinary shares ¥ # [ EEE L@k 14(a) (124) —  (614,047) — —  (614,171)
Issuance of Series B preferred AR @ARET
shares in exchange of Z5|BELMR
ordinary shares — 249 613,923 — — 614172
Cash dividend distribution ReREDIK — - — — (136,532) (136,532
Deemed dividend distribution R A&RE 5K - - — — (81,052)  (81,052)
Conversion of Series A shares B ZF| ABELERE
to ordinary shares TR 14(a) 17 (171) — — — —
Conversion of Series B shares B ZF|BEXKE
to ordinary shares Tk 14(a) 124 (249) 125 — — —
Capitalization issuance of RAHE-ZT—TF
ordinary shares to +—-A=+=H
shareholders registered on BEDNREREARL
November 23, 2010 BITERR T4(a) 13,822 - (13,822) - - —
Issuances of ordinary shares A2 HEERTLER
for Global Offering 14(a) 2,936 — 500,849 — — 503,785
Total transactions with owners ~ BFTEER 5 A% 16,929 (171) 487,028 10,360  (217,584) 296,562
As at December 31, 2010 R-E-2F+=A
=+-A 17,588 — 826477 91,919 1,023,947 1,959,931
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
B EREE R (E)

Attributable to owners of the Company

BERALRMEE
Non-
Ordinary Share Other  Retained controlling Total
shares  premium  reserves  earnings Total interest equity
FERME

EER BRAEE  HURE  ErkE &t Bt ERES
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

M AR%Tn ARMTR ARMTT ARMTR ARETR AREBTR ARET:R

As at January 1, 2011 R=E--%-F-H 17,588 826,471 91919 1,023,947 1,959,931 - 1,959,931
Comprehensive income SEWE

for the year
Net profit for the year FRFRH = = - 1,106,072 1,106,072 (230) 1,105,842
Transfer to safety fund reserve EEZR2HAH(E - - 49,447 (49,447) = = =
Currency translation difference E¥TEZE - - (44,697) - (44,697) - (44,697)

- - 4,750 1,056,625 1,061,375 (230) 1,061,145

Transactions with owners EfEERZ
Employees stock options EERRE 14(b), 20 - - 5,414 - 5,414 - 5414
Cash dividend distribution ReRENK 27 - - - (76,842)  (76,842) - (76,842)
Exercise of employee {TF R EERE

stock option 14(a) 39 9,232 - - 921 - 9,271
Capital contribution from FEHIRE A AR

Non-controlling interest 8 - - - - - 3,734 3,734
Total transactions with owners EiffA% X 5E% 39 9,232 5,414 (76,842)  (62,157) 3,734 (58,423)
As at December 31, 2011 R-E--E+-fA=+-H 17,627 835709 102,083 2,003,730 2,959,149 3,504 2,962,653

The notes on page 91 to 204 are an integral part of these 591 EZE%204 B Z M BAS GBI BIREZ —#17 -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHRERER

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—HILEE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Hiat AR¥T T AEBTTT
Cash flows from operating activities K& EZEHELNESRE
Cash generated from operations KEEFRNIRE 28 1,657,769 1,344,234
Interest paid AL (147,573) (72,420)
Income tax paid BERFTEH (264,120) (256,915)
Net cash generated from operating KRB EA RIS A
activities 1,246,076 1,014,899
Cash flows from investing activities BRETHFFANBRESRE
Acquisition of Emir-Qil, LLC, net of U B Emir-Oil, LLC, 0B
cash acquired EARIRS 30 (985,925) —
Acquisition of preferred shares and 1B B B IR F AR
mineral extraction rights 8 (18,903) —
Purchases of property, plant and BETEE - THMKRE
equipment (1,241,908) (910,244)
Increase in pledged deposits B IRF AL A0 (205,271) (114)
Loan granted to PSC partner RYERDKEREBEHER (92,330) (91,586)
Repayment of loan by PSC partner ENERDKERBHEENR 63,779 —
Interest received BT E 4,066 143
Net cash used in investing activities WEERBFTANIE ST (2,476,492) (1,001,801)
Cash flows from financing activities @& IBELNRESRE
Proceeds from issue of Notes, net FITELEEZEAEHE 2,524,589 —
Payment of expenses for issuance FITEAERERBEER
of Notes (34,511) —
Repayments of borrowings BEER (1,308,329) —
Payment of loan arrangement fees INERREEA — (27.114)
Capital element of finance lease ENFBEERSH
rentals paid BARE S (348) —
Proceeds from Global Offering R E RIS IIE - 605,219
Payment of fees relating to Global TR ENEEREER
Offering (10,725) (64,909)
Cash dividends paid EIRERE (76,842) (136,532)
Net cash generated from financing BETBHELANEESESE
activities 1,093,834 376,664
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HERBESZEMHCRL)
cash equivalents 18N8 (136,582) 389,762
Exchange losses on cash and cash RERESEEYNER
equivalents BE (10,422) —
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year FYRE MRS EEY 680,033 290,271
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRESRESEEY
of the year 13 533,029 680,033

The notes on page 91 to 204 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FNAEZF 24 EZWEBARAHBBHRRZ &7 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot R R TR

General information

The Company was incorporated by Far East Energy
Limited ("FEEL"), a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability on March 20, 2008. The address of its
registered office is Maples Corporate Services Limited,
P.O. Box 309 Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries’ (“the Group”) principal
business is to engage in the development, production and
sale of crude oil through (1) Ml Energy Corporation’s
(“MIE") four production sharing projects in China; (2) Emir-
Oil, LLC's (“Emir-Qil, LLC") exploration contract and three
production contracts in Kazakhstan and; (3) Condor Energy
Technology LLC's (“Condor”) working interest in the
Niobrara asset in the United States of America.

On May 26, 2001, MIE was assigned all of Microbes,
Inc.’s, its then parent company, 90% foreign participating
interest in the production sharing contracts (“PSCs”) of
four oil blocks, namely, Daan, Moliging and Miao 3 in Jilin
Province with PetroChina and Luojiayi 64 block in Shengli
of Shandong Province with China Petroleum and Chemical
Corporation (“Sinopec”). The Daan and Miao 3 projects
were established in 1997, and the Moliging project was
established in 1998. The duration of those three projects
are 30 years with the commercial production period being
up to 20 years. Daan, Moliging and Miao 3 will expire in
year 2024, year 2028 and year 2028 respectively. The
Group acts as the operator of these four PSCs. The Group
and Global Qil Corporation (“"GOC"), hold a 90% interest
and a 10% interest in the foreign participating interest in
the PSCs for Daan, Moliging and Miao 3, respectively
(Note 2(c)). As of January 1, 2005, the Daan project was in
the commercial production phase. As of October 1, 2008,
the Miao 3 project attained commercial production. As of
December 1, 2008, the Moliging project reached
commercial production. In 2006, the Luojiayi 64 block
stopped work and in 2005 MIE's related investment was
fully written off (Note 29(b)).

—REHR

7K/ B[ Far East Energy Limited ([FEEL]) (—%
MREBTMKZHBR AT 200843 A 20 H
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Cayman KY1-1104 » Cayman Islands ° ZX A &) £
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B F B aR MY = ()

1 General information (Continued)

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi

("BRMB") unless otherwise stated. These financial

statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on March 26, 2012.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation

of these financial statements are set out below. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the years

presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of MIE
Holdings Corporation have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS"). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Net current liabilities

As at December 31, 2011, the Group has a
deficiency in net current assets of
RMB38,854,000 which was driven mainly by
significant capital expansion program
undertaken by the Company in 2011 of
RMB1,398,147,000 that was funded by trade
payables. The Group generated positive
cash flow from operating activities of
RMB1,246,076,000 and RMB1,014,899,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
respectively and expects to continue to
generate positive cash flow in year 2012. It has
also secured a facility for a term loan of
RMB50,000,000 from a bank (Note 33).

After taking into consideration the positive
operating cash flow and the availability of the
undrawn loan facilities above, the Board of
Directors believe that the Company has
sufficient cash to enable it to pay its debts as
and when they fall due.

Change in accounting estimates

The cost of oil and gas properties is amortized at
the field level based on the unit of production
method. Unit of production rates were previously
based on proved developed producing oil
reserves estimated to be recoverable from
existing facilities based on the current terms of
the respective production agreements.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Change in accounting estimates
(Continued)

From January 1, 2011, the Group has applied
the unit of production rates based on proved
and probable developed producing oil reserves
estimated to be recoverable from existing
facilities based on current terms of the
respective production agreements. The change
in estimate is due to management’s view that
inclusion of probable developed producing
reserve will be more reflective of the reserve
base available to the Company from its
investment in the oil and gas properties. The
change resulted in increase of net profit by
RMB128 million for the year ended December
31, 2011. It is impracticable to estimate the
amount of impact for future years.

New accounting pronouncements

(A)  New standards, amendments to and
interpretations on existing standards
adopted by the Group are as follows:

° Revised IAS 24, 'Related party
disclosures’, issued in November
2009. It supersedes |IAS 24,
‘Related party disclosures’, issued
in 2003. The revised IAS 24 is
required to be applied from January
1,2011.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i) New accounting pronouncements
(Continued)

(A)  (Continued)

IAS 1 (Amendment) 'Presentation
of financial statements’, effective
for periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2011. The amendment
removes the requirement for each
item of other comprehensive
income to be presented separately
in the statement of changes in
equity.

IFRS 7 (Amendment) 'Financial
instruments: disclosures’, effective
for periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2011. The amendment
clarifies the nature and extent of
risks arising from financial
instruments.

The adoption of these new standards and

amendments did not have a material

impact on the Group’s or Company's

financial statements.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i) New accounting pronouncements

(Continued)

(B) New standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards not
yet effective and not early adopted by

the Group:

IAS 12 (Amendment), 'Income
taxes’ on deferred tax. This
amendment currently requires an
entity to measure the deferred tax
relating to an asset depending on
whether the entity expects to
recover the carrying amount of the
asset through use or sale. This
amendment is not applicable until
January 1, 2012 but is available for
early adoption.

Revised IAS 27, 'Separate financial
statements’. This includes the
provisions on separate financial
statements that are left after the
control provisions of IAS 27 have
been included in the new IFRS 10.
This revised IAS 27 is not applicable
until January 1, 2013 but is available
for early adoption.

Revised IAS 28, 'Associates and
joint ventures’. This includes the
requirements for joint ventures, as
well as associates, to be equity
accounted following the issue of
IFRS 11. This revised IAS 28 is not
applicable until January 1, 2013 but
is available for early adoption.

2

EESHBEREE (B)

(a)

RBLEXE ()

(iif)

#aT g ER ()

(B)

i AR AR R R AT R A B T RT
AR BB EAMNEET A KRR
BT

BIRR B T S R RSB 12 5%
(BRTA) TFSHL] » itig
WBRRELRUARE
8 ERBENRERER
FIRREEYAIEBE
A EREZEEN R
E{E - ZEEHAN—F—=
F-A—AREM 1R
FELERIERA o

SIS RT R 2RI 5 27
SEIBM I HRE ] iz
HI R B RIEEIAE
PREAFS R AERIE 1055
B gt ERFE 2755 (=
T——F ) RAmMEE
128 98 3L B 755 SR R MO ST o
ISR R 25 R| 5 27
WR—_E—=F—HF—H
&I - MR ELRRTERA o

SIS FT R g5t 2R 5 28
SRIBEMEE ] EBRE
BTSSR AR B4 1%
BIFR & 52 S5 28 S B 4E
BB A AT &R
EANRKIRTE © KIEFTH
REETER|E 28N = F
—=—F—A—R%ER"
MR FERR BT ERAN o



ZT——FFR - M BERERERAR 97

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF Bt R MY = ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 EZS:HBEMEE)
(Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) #RBUEZE ()
(i) New accounting pronouncements (iii)  Fral =&t 2R (&)
(Continued)
(B) (Continued) B (&)

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’,
issued in November 2009. This
addresses the classification and
measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities and is likely
to affect the Group’s accounting for
its financial assets and financial
liabilities. The standard is not
applicable until January 1, 2015 but
is available for early adoption.

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial
statements’. The objective of IFRS
10 is to establish principles for the
presentation and preparation of
consolidated financial statements
when an entity controls one or
more other entity (an entity that
controls one or more other entities)
to present consolidated financial
statements. This standard is not
applicable until January 1, 2013 but
is available for early adoption.

IFRS 11, 'Joint arrangements’. This
clarifies joint arrangements by
focusing on the rights and obligations
of the arrangement rather than its
legal form. Proportional consolidation
of joint ventures is no longer allowed.
This standard is not applicable until
January 1, 2013 but is available for
early adoption.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii)

New accounting pronouncements
(Continued)

(B)

(Continued)

IFRS 12, 'Disclosures of interests in
other entities’. This includes the
disclosure requirements for all
forms of interests in other entities,
including joint arrangements,
associates, special purpose vehicles
and other off balance sheet
vehicles. This standard is not
applicable until January 1, 2013 but
is available for early adoption.

IFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’.
IFRS 13 aims to improve consistency
and reduce complexity by providing
a precise definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across IFRSs.
This standard is not applicable until
January 1, 2013 but is available for
early adoption.

The Group is in the process of reviewing

the impact of the above standards and do

not expect these standards to have a

material impact on the Group’'s or

Company’s financial statements at the

current stage.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

Consolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the group controls another entity. The
group also assesses existence of control where it
does not have more than 50% of the voting power
but is able to govern the financial and operating
policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-facto control
may arise from circumstances such as enhanced
minority rights or contractual terms between
shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from
inter-company transactions that are recognized in
assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognizes any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognized amounts
of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized
in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Business combination (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If this consideration is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognized in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Separate financial statement

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)

Production sharing contracts

The Group’s development and production activities
in China are conducted jointly with others through
PSCs. These PSCs establish joint control over the
development and production activities. The assets
are not owned by a separate legal entity but are
controlled by individual participants in the PSCs.
Each participant is entitled to a predetermined share
of the related output and bears an agreed share of
the costs.

The consolidated financial statements reflect:

(i) MIE's assets used in jointly controlled operations;

(i) any liabilities that MIE has incurred;

(i)  MIE's share of any liabilities incurred jointly
with the other PSC partners in relation to the
joint production;

(iv) any income from the sale or use of MIE’s
share of the output of the production, together
with its share of any expenses incurred in the

production; and

(v)  any expenses that MIE has incurred in respect
of its interest in the production.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)

Production sharing contracts (Continued)

Pursuant to the three PSCs with PetroChina, the
annual gross production of the crude oil shall, after
payment for value added tax and royalty, be firstly
deemed as the cost recovery oil and shall be used
for cost recovery in the following sequence:

Payment in kind for the operating costs actually
incurred by MIE and GOC (collectively “the
foreign partners”) and PetroChina.

The remainder of the cost recovery oil shall, after
payment for the operating costs, be deemed as
investment recovery oil. Such investment
recovery oil shall be used for the simultaneous
recovery of the pilot test costs and the
development costs incurred by foreign partners
and the predevelopment costs spent by
PetroChina in proportion of 20% by PetroChina
and 80% by foreign partners. The unrecovered
costs of the parties shall be carried forward to
and recovered from the investment recovery oll
in succeeding calendar years until being fully
recovered.

After all pilot test costs and development costs
incurred up to that time have been recovered,
the remainder of the gross production of crude
oil for that period is referred to as profit oil and
shall be allocated in proportion of PetroChina
52% and foreign partners 48%.

The operating costs so incurred after the date
of commencement of commercial production
shall be paid respectively by PetroChina and
foreign partners in accordance with the
proportion of oil allocated to each party.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Production sharing contracts (Continued)

GOC is entitled to a 10% share of the foreign
partners’ interest in property, plant and equipment,

income and expenses. The Group received income

and paid expenses on behalf of GOC. These are

recorded in the relevant accounts with GOC (Note

31).

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The functional currency
of the Company is United States Dollar
("US$")
consolidated financial statements is the RMB.

. The presentation currency of the

Transactions and balances of each entity

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iif)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

° income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

° all resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings are taken
to other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded
in equity are recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of
the gain or loss on sale.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties, is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation, depletion, amortization and
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditures that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income during the
reporting year in which they are incurred.

Except for oil and gas properties, depreciation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Gas utilization facility 10 years
Buildings and improvements 7-10 years
Office equipment 3 years
Motor vehicles and production equipment 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress is not depreciated until it is
ready for its intended use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognized within other income or other expense
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.

Exploration and evaluation assets and oil
and gas properties

The successful efforts method of accounting is used
for oil and gas exploration and production activities.
Under this method, all costs for development wells,
support equipment and facilities, and proved mineral
interests in oil and gas properties are capitalized.
Geological and geophysical costs are expensed
when incurred. Costs of exploratory wells are
capitalized as exploration and evaluation assets
pending determination of whether the wells find
proved oil and gas reserves. Proved oil and gas
reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil
and natural gas which geological and engineering
data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be
recoverable in future years from known reservoirs
under existing economic and operating conditions,
i.e., prices and costs as of the date the estimate is
made. Prices include consideration of changes in
existing prices provided only by contractual
arrangements, but not on escalations based upon
future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(f)

Exploration and evaluation assets and oil
and gas properties (Continued)

Exploratory wells in areas not requiring major capital
expenditures are evaluated for economic viability
within one year of completion of drilling. The related
well costs are expensed as dry holes if it is
determined that such economic viability is not
attained. Otherwise, the related well costs are
reclassified to oil and gas properties and subject to
impairment review. For exploratory wells that are
found to have economically viable reserves in areas
where major capital expenditure will be required
before production can commence, the related well
costs remain capitalized only if additional drilling is
under way or firmly planned. Otherwise the related
well costs are expensed as dry holes. The Group
does not have any costs of unproved properties
capitalized in oil and gas properties.

Identifiable exploration assets acquired are recognized
as assets at their fair value, as determined by the
requirements of Business Combinations (Note 2(b)(i)).
Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred
subsequent to the acquisition of an exploration asset
in a business combination is accounted for in
accordance with the policy outlined above.

The cost of oil and gas properties is amortized at
the field level based on the unit of production
method. Unit of production rates are based on oil
and gas proved and probable developed producing
reserves estimated to be recoverable from existing
facilities based on the current terms of the
respective production agreements. The Group's
reserves estimates represent crude oil and gas
which management believes can be reasonably
produced within the current terms of their production
agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent computer software,
mineral extraction rights and mining rights. Acquired
computer software licences are capitalized on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
use the specific software. These costs are amortized
over their estimated useful lives of 3 years.

Mineral extraction rights are amortized using the
straight-line method over the licensed period. Mining
rights are amortized using the unit of production
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B F B aR MY = ()

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

()

(k)

Loans and receivables

The Group’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade
and other receivables’ in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for expected realization is
greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period, if these are classified as non-current assets.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized
at fair value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
their fair value. The method of recognizing the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and
if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

For derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of these
derivative instruments are recognized immediately in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Leases

Leases where the Group is a lessee in which a
significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor)
are charged to the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(1

(m)

Inventories

Inventories are crude oil and materials and supplies
which are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Materials and supplies costs are
determined by the first-in first-out method. Crude oil
costs are determined by the weighted average cost
method. The cost of crude oil comprise direct labour,
depreciation, other direct costs and related
production overhead, but excludes borrowing costs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment
of trade receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables. The factors the Group
considers when assessing whether a trade
receivable is impaired include, but are not limited to
significant financial difficulties of the customer,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganization and default or delinquency in
payments. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the
amount of the loss is recognized in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against expenses in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks with original
maturities of three months or less from the time of
purchase.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in
equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
territories where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the balance
sheet liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized. Deferred income tax is
provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortized cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortized over the period of the facility to which
it relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

All borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has
present legal or constructive obligations as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligations,
and reliable estimates of the amounts can be made.

Provision for future decommissioning and restoration
is recognized in full on the installation of oil and gas
properties. The amount recognized is the present
value of the estimated future expenditure
determined in accordance with local conditions and
requirements. A corresponding addition to the
related oil and gas properties of an amount
equivalent to the provision is also created. This is
subsequently depreciated as part of the costs of the
oil and gas properties. Any change in the present
value of the estimated expenditure other than due to
passage of time, which is regarded as interest
expense, is reflected as an adjustment to the
provision and oil and gas properties.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Defined contribution plan

The Group has various defined contribution
plans for state pensions, housing fund and
other social obligations in accordance with the
local conditions in China and Kazakhstan and
practices in the municipalities and province in
which they operate. A defined contribution
plan is a pension and/or other social benefits
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and
will have no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. The contributions are
recognized as employee benefit expenses
when they are due.

Equity-settled share-based compensation
— Stock options

The Group operates a stock incentive
compensation plan for share-based payment
transactions, including stock options under
which the entity receives services from
employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is
recognized as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options on the grant date. The
total amount expensed is recognized over the
vesting period, which is the period over which
all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Equity-settled share-based compensation
— Stock options (Continued)

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and other reserves
when the options are exercised.

(i) Cash-settled share-based compensation
— Stock appreciation rights

Compensation under the stock appreciation
rights is measured based on the fair value of
the liability incurred and is expensed over the
vesting period. The liability is remeasured at
each reporting period to its fair value until
settlement with all the changes in liability
related to the vested portion recorded as
employee compensation costs in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the related liability is included in the
salaries and welfare payable.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognized only when the Group has
transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities, and where the
amount of revenue and the costs incurred or to be
incurred in respect of the transactions can be
measured reliably and probable economic benefit
will flow to the Group.

In China, revenues are recognized upon delivery of
crude oil that are allocated to MIE under PSC (See
Note 2(c)).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
PetroChina had taken more oil than its entitlement
(over lifted) and hence MIE is deemed to have sold
the over lift to PetroChina.

Repairs and maintenance

Repairs and maintenance are recognized as
expenses in the year in which they are incurred.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issuance of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividend distributions

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognized as a liability in the Group's and
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is determined by dividing
the profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
participating shares outstanding during the reporting
year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares and adjusting the profit or
loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
accordingly for related amounts. The effect of
potentially dilutive ordinary shares are included only
if they are dilutive.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(y)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner

consistent with the internal reporting provided to the

chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating

decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the

operating segments, has been identified as the
Board of Directors (Note 5).

3 Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of

financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and

liquidity risk.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The majority of the Group’s China
operation sales are in US dollars, while
production and other expenses are
incurred in RMB. The RMB is not a freely
convertible currency and is regulated by
the PRC government. Limitation in
foreign exchange transactions imposed
by the PRC government could cause
future exchange rates to vary significantly
from current or historical exchange rates.
Management is not in a position to
anticipate changes in the PRC foreign
exchange regulations and as such is
unable to reasonably anticipate the
impacts on the Group's results of
operations or financial position arising
from future changes in exchange rates.
The Group may enter into forward foreign
exchange contracts to manage the risk of
unfavourable fluctuations in the foreign
exchange rate.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, if the
US dollars had weakened/strengthened
by 1% against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, the Group's
profit before income tax for the year
would have been RMB12,535,000 and
RMB9,660,000 higher/lower respectively,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of US-
denominated trade and other receivables,
bank deposits and borrowings.

The functional currency of the Kazakhstan
subsidiary is in US dollars. The transactions
of the Kazakhstan subsidiary which are
denominated in the Kazakhstan Tenge are
exposed to fluctuations in the US dollars
and Kazakhstan Tenge exchange rate. If
the US dollars had strengthen/weakened
by 1% against Kazakhstan Tenge, the
Group’s profit before income tax would
have been RMB5,000 higher/lower.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has no material interest
bearing cash assets. The Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of the changes in market
rates. The Group's interest rates risk
arises from borrowings. As at December
31, 2011, the Group's borrowings
comprise the Notes which bear interest
at the rate of 9.75%, therefore, the
Notes are not subject to any interest rate
risk. A detailed analysis of the Group's
borrowings, together with their
respective effective interest rates and
maturity dates, are included in Note 19.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(iif)

QOil price risk

The Group is engaged in crude oil
development, production and selling
activities. Prices of crude oil are affected
by both domestic and global factors
which are beyond the control of the
Group. The fluctuations in such prices
may have favourable or unfavourable
impacts to the Group. Prior to 2008, the
Group did not use any derivative
instruments to hedge against potential
price fluctuations of crude oil and
therefore the Group was exposed to
general price fluctuations of crude oil.
During the year ended December 31,
2011 and 2010, the Group entered into
oil hedge options contracts (Note 9) to
manage its price risk. If the crude oil
price were to increase or decrease by
US$1, the impact on the Group's profit
before income tax for the year ended
December 31, 2011 as a result of
revaluing the oil hedge options would be
a decrease of RMB2,698,000 and
increase of RMB2,326,000 (2010:
decrease of RMB1,566,000 or increase
of RMB1,652,000), respectively.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

As the majority of the cash at bank balance is
placed with state-owned banks and financial
institutions, the corresponding credit risk is
relatively low. Therefore, credit risk arises
primarily from trade and other receivables. The
Group has controls in place to assess the credit
quality of its customers. The carrying amounts
of cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
amounts due from a related party and trade and
other receivables included in the consolidated
statements of financial position represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk for its cash and cash equivalents.
The Group has one customer in each of China
and Kazakhstan which in aggregate accounts
for almost 100% of the Group's revenue and
as such, has concentration of credit risk for its
trade and other receivables. However, the
Group regards it as low risk as the customer in
China is PetroChina, a state-owned enterprise
with a high credit rating in China and the major
customer in Kazakhstan, Titan Oil, is one of the
largest trading companies in Mangistau region
(Western Kazakhstan).

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the
Group made a refundable deposit of
RMB80,000,000 for the purchase of development
property (Note 10). The Company decided not to
proceed with the purchase and has taken steps
to recover the refundable deposit and has also
obtained certain security. The Group does not
expect any non-performance by the counter party.
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group's liquidity risk management involves
maintaining sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities.

The table below analyses the Group's financial
liabilities and net-settled derivative financial
assets and liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining year at the
end of the reporting period to their contractual
maturity dates.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows of
principal amount and interests.

Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying amounts as the impact of discounting
is not significant.
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of Debt over
EBITDA. Debt is calculated as total borrowings
including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position. EBITDA is calculated as profit before
finance income, finance cost, income tax and
depreciation, depletion and amortization.

3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 BKRERERE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BKREMBEZE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) ) REBELER (&)
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2and5 Over
1 year years years 5 years
DR—& —-EWE —ERf HEELE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETRL
At December 31, 2011 RN-E——F
+=B=+-8H

Borrowings e 245,735 245,735 3,101,127 -

Derivative financial instruments  #74&fTE —
— oil hedge options (Note 9)  AMEHRERE (Ff£9) 10,618 = = =

Trade and other payables FER T Eot fE A
(Note 18) I (frEF18) 1,386,266 91,628 6,894 11,487

At December 31,2010 R-E-ZF
+=ZA=1+—H

Borrowings &3 158,575 583,844 727,196 —

Trade and other payables JEf R E At e A
(Note 18) HEB(H5F18) 718,729 137,598 — —

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEmER

REREAMS  ARBEEEFEFAERL
ERIRES - ARBRARR - S AEMAIEE
EREVEN - R T RFEARBREICIA

A5 B DUME 5 B B3 AT & 8 & K (EBITDA)
LR BEEERHER - ERFFIME AR
(BREGAREERBRMIIRN R MIE
mEMEF ) - EBITDAS KRB BUA - B
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3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 BKRERERE(E)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 32 BEXREMRERE(E)
The Debt over EBITDA ratios at December 31, 2011 RZBE——FR=_ZT-ZTF+-_A=+—H
and 2010 were as follows: FETS 4 EE B EBITDAKILL R BN T

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—8"
2011 2010
—2——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBETT

Total borrowings (Note 19) e iess (M 19) 2,463,004 1,291,203
Profit before income tax % PS54 Al i A1) 1,399,751 582,569
Finance income BISUA (74,728) (35,344)
Finance cost W58 R 234,482 86,788
Depreciation, depletion and amortization #7 & - 718 K #4 542,002 528,582
EBITDA EBITDA 2,101,507 1,162,595
Debt over EBITDA ratio BB REEA EBITDA AL K 1.2 1.1
The Debt over EBITDA ratio increase from 1.1 to 1.2 BN ABEEEBITDANLL XA T —TF
was mainly due to higher borrowings as at +ZA=+—HMIIEE_T——FM12
December 31, 2011 as compared to December 31, FTERHRESMNEBRAEERY -

2010.
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M RERER (&)
DAEEMGE

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3

The methods and assumptions applied in
determining the fair value of each class of financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Group are
disclosed in the respective accounting policies. The
carrying amounts of the following financial assets
and financial liabilities approximate their fair value as
all of them are short-term in nature: cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, current portion of
trade and other receivables, current portion of trade
and other payables and current portion of
borrowings.

The Group adopted the amendment to IFRS 7 which
requires disclosure of fair value measurements by
level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

(@) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

(b)  inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (is as prices) or indirectly
(ie. derived from prices) (Level 2); and

(c) inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).
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FRENEBD ©

AEBERNBERPBEREEINE 7R ZIER]
Ao WETAREAABEFERERTIIA
REEFERBRR T ARE

(@) HREEXABLERTENEHRECK
R (FE—R) -

b) FAEEMEEXAEMS  BAZ
EUNERUERER) NERE(ITE
BEEBR(E-R)  ME—RAE
SHRERIN © R

0 FAEENEEXREEMS  BAZ
EWIFREBEAERNTHER (A
BRNBAEE)(E=H) -



126 ANNUAL REPORT 2011 - MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B F B aR MY = ()

3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 BRRBRERE(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 QAREEME (E)
The following table presents the assets and liabilities TREIR-ZE——FR_ZT-ZF+=A
measured at fair value at December 31, 2011 and =t+—HURABEFENEERAE
2010:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E— B8 F=4K

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETZ

Assets BE
As at December 31, 2011 R-ZB——F
+=—A=+—H
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIA
— Oil hedge options — BmEHIEE — 9,151 —
As at December 31, 2010 R-B—TF
+=ZA=+—H
Derivative financial instruments PTAESRIT A
— Oil hedge options — RHESEE — 31,453 —
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
- B E=ZR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AEBTT AEBTT
Liabilities afE
As at December 31, 2011 N-s——F
+t=A=+—H
Derivative financial instruments PTEemMITA
— Oil hedge options — RHEHERE - 10,618 —
— Option to ACAP — T ACAP HERE — - 85,157
As at December 31, 2010 R-ZE—ZF
+=ZB=+—H
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIA

— Oil hedge options — BhE A — — —
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Critical accounting estimates and

judgements

Estimates and judgements are regularly evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The matters described below are considered to be the

most critical in understanding the estimates and

judgements that are involved in preparing the Group's

consolidated financial statements.

(a)

Estimation of proved and probable reserves

Proved reserves are those quantities of petroleum
that by analysis of geoscience and engineering data,
can be estimated with reasonable certainty to be
commercially recoverable, from a given date
forward, from known reservoirs and under defined
economic conditions, operating methods, and
government regulations. Economic conditions
include consideration of changes in existing prices
provided only by contractual arrangements, but not
on escalations based upon future conditions. Proved
developed producing reserves are expected to be
recovered from completion intervals that are open
and producing at the time of the estimate. Proved
undeveloped reserves are quantities expected to be
recovered through future investments: from new
wells on undrilled acreage in known accumulations,
from extending existing wells to a different (but
known) reservoir, or from infill wells that will
increase recovery. Probable reserves are additional
reserves that are less certain to be recovered than
proved reserves but which, together with proved
reserves, are as likely as not to be recovered.

The Group's reserve estimates were prepared for
each oilfield and include only reserves that the Group
believes can be reasonably produced within current
economic and operating conditions.
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(a)

Estimation of proved and probable reserves
(Continued)

Proved and probable reserves cannot be measured
exactly. Reserve estimates are based on many
factors related to reservoir performance that require
evaluation by the engineers interpreting the available
data, as well as price and other economic factors.
The reliability of these estimates at any point in time
depends on both the quality and quantity of the
technical and economic data, and the production
performance of the reservoirs as well as engineering
judgement. Consequently, reserve estimates are
subject to revision as additional data become
available during the producing life of a reservoir.
When a commercial reservoir is discovered, proved
reserves are initially determined based on limited
data from the first well or wells. Subsequent data
may better define the extent of the reservoir and
additional production performance. Well tests and
engineering studies will likely improve the reliability
of the reserve estimate. The evolution of technology
may also result in the application of improved
recovery techniques such as supplemental or
enhanced recovery projects, or both, which have the
potential to increase reserves beyond those
envisioned during the early years of a reservoir’s
producing life.
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4  Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(a)

Estimation of proved and probable reserves
(Continued)

Proved and probable reserves are key elements in
the Group’s investment decision-making process.
They are also an important element in testing for
impairment. The Group classified its Proved
Reserves into Proved Developed Producing
Reserves and Proved Undeveloped Reserves.
Probable reserves are also classified into Probable
Developed Producing Reserves and Probable
Undeveloped Reserves. Prior to January 1, 2011,
Proved Developed Producing Reserves was used for
the calculation of unit-of-production depreciation,
depletion and amortization recorded in the Group's
consolidated financial information for property, plant
and equipment related to oil and gas production
activities. From January 1, 2011, the Group has
applied the unit of production rates based on Proved
and Probable Developed Producing Reserves. An
increase/decrease in Proved and Probable
Developed Producing Reserves will decrease/
increase depreciation, depletion and amortization
charges (assuming constant production) and
increase/reduce net profit. Proved and Probable
Reserve estimates are subject to revision, either
upward or downward based on new information,
such as from development drilling and production
activities or from changes in economic factors,
including product prices, contract terms or
development plans.

In general, changes in the technical maturity of
reserves resulting from new information becoming
available from development and production activities
and change in oil and gas price have tended to be
the most significant cause of annual revisions.
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Estimation of impairment of property, plant
and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties, are reviewed for possible impairments
when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Determination as to whether and how much an
asset is impaired involve management estimates
and judgements such as future prices of crude oil
and production profile. However, the impairment
reviews and calculations are based on assumptions
that are consistent with the Group's business plans.
Favourable changes to some assumptions may allow
the Group to avoid the need to impair any assets in
these years, whereas unfavourable changes may
cause the assets to become impaired.

Estimation of asset retirement obligations

Provisions are recognized for the future
decommissioning and restoration of oil and gas
properties that will cease operation prior to the
expiration of PSCs. The amounts of the provision
recognized are the present values of the estimated
future expenditures that the Group is expected to
incur. The estimation of the future expenditures is
based on current local conditions and requirements,
including legal requirements, technology, price level,
etc. In addition to these factors, the present values
of these estimated future expenditures are also
impacted by the estimation of the economic lives of
oil and gas properties. Changes in any of these
estimates will impact the operating results and the
financial position of the Group over the remaining
economic lives of the oil and gas properties.
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Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the Board of Directors
that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors considers the business performance
of the Group from a geographic perspective being China and
Kazakhstan.

The China segment derives its revenue from the sale of
oil. Revenue is realized from the sale of the Group’s share
of crude oil to PetroChina pursuant to three PSCs: Daan,
Moliging and Miao 3. The Kazakhstan segment derives its
revenue from the sale of oil and gas.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on each segment'’s profit from
operation.
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5 Segment information (Continued) 5 ZIEEmE (&)
The segment information provided to the Board of HE-_T——F+_A=T—HRESRHY
Directors for the reportable segments for the year ended KESEMEEBIAT ¢

December 31, 2011 is as follows:

Inter-

segment
China Kazakhstan Others* transaction Total
FE  REREE Hitt* 2BRiEE Foy

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TRT AR®TR AR¥TR AR¥TR

Segment revenue DEBA 2,723,671 103,470 - - 2,827,141
Revenue WA 2,723,671 103,470 - - 2,827,141
Purchases, services and other HE - REBREM (167,912) (17,582) - - (185,494)
Employee compensation costs 8 T# Bl & (121,391) (15,561) (60,100) - (197,052)
Depreciation, depletion WE - FEREH

and amortization (513,834) (28,103) (65) - (542,002)
Distribution expenses HERY (31,472) - - - (31,472)
Administrative expenses EREH (54,319) (3,343) (32,635) - (90,297)
Taxes other than income taxes  FIB(Ffit21)

(Note 21) (609,193) (47,573) - - (656,766)
Other losses Hibfsia (15,237) 1,200 (10,861) - (24,898)
Profit from operations e 1,210,313 (7,492) (103,661) - 1,099,160
Finance income BB 72,174 - 11,918 (9,364) 74,728
Finance cost BB A (69,024) (9,364) (165,458) 9,364 (234,482)
Gain arising from acquisition Wi Emir-Oil, LLCFI15

of Emir-Qil, LLC (Note 30) (H3:#30) - - 460,345 - 460,345
Income tax expense PSR Y (296,075) 2,166 = = (293,909)
Net profit for the year FRFHEF 917,388 (14,690) 203,144 - 1,105,842
Total assets HWEE 5,239,096 2,078,556 99,522 - 7,417,174
Total assets includes: BEERFE:

Property, plant and equipment  RE)E « T &R 3,850,626 1,415,288 1,585 - 5,267,499
Intangible assets BREE 6,275 559,377 18,670 — 584,322
Additions to non-current assets  JFRENE EIL N 1,347,546 74,254 1,648 - 1,423,448

Total liabilities mas 1,331,285 354,077 187,044 - 1,872,406
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5 Segment information (Continued)

The Group operates as a single operating segment in

T TFAREEIERE —EE D EHITES -
China in 2010. The segment information for the year HEZZ—ZTF+A=T—HEEHFEEW
ended December 31, 2010 is as follows: T
China Others* Total
s Efh* @5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREEF T ARBEFT AREETTT
Segment revenue D EBUIA 1,804,976 — 1,804,976
Revenue WA 1,804,976 — 1,804,976
Purchases, services and other PR - RS M EHAM (126,517) — (126,517)
Employee compensation costs 8 T3k A (108,244) (2,102) (110,346)
Depreciation, depletion E - B REE

and amortization (528,582) — (528,582)
Distribution expenses HEMX (28,424) — (28,424)
Administrative expenses EEEBH (50,081) (73) (50,154)
Taxes other than income taxes I\ (KaE21)

(Note 21) (289,296) — (289,296)
Other losses HMEsE (37,644) — (37,644)
Profit from operations R A 636,188 (2,175) 634,013
Finance income BRI 37,645 (2,301) 35,344
Finance cost % E R (86,788) — (86,788)
Income tax expense iS5 =2 (161,705) — (161,705)
Net profit for the year FRFRF 425,340 (4,476) 420,864
Total assets HWEE 3,852,326 342,952 4,195,278
Total assets includes: BMEERE

Property, plant and equipment THE « THMERE 3,024,482 — 3,024,482

Intangible assets L E 1,667 — 1,667
Additions to non-current assets FEmEEEE 889,600 — 889,600
Total liabilities F =R 875,025 44,610 919,635
* Others include costs incurred which are not directly attributable * E A BIEN N AL B 5B A P B SR B 5o AT 55 B

to oil and gas operations in China and Kazakhstan.

REFELEERIET -
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Segment information (Continued)

The revenue reported to the Board of Directors is
measured consistently with that in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

The amounts provided to the Board of Directors with
respect to total assets are measured in a manner consistent
with that of the consolidated financial statements. These
assets are allocated based on the operations of the
segment and the physical location of the asset.

The derivative financial instruments held by the Group are
not considered to be segment assets.

Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets
as follows:

D EB R (%)

v
P % 45 A RV A B A B A U
KA A8 -

MEFEREABAEENTSRE  SRRUER
RNEBNGTAFERN - WEBERED AL
EMEENBRUEDE

HASESAENITEEZRTAMNMIR AR D HE

REDHEERBEERDHIT

2011 2010
—E——f —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARBETT

Segment assets for reportable segments HED IR DILE 7,317,652 3,852,326
Other segments assets Hithn i &E 99,522 342,952
7,417,174 4,195,278
Unallocated: KoM :
Current derivative financial instruments METESRITE 9,151 11,168
Non-current derivative financial instruments JEREITA SR T A — 20,285
Total assets per consolidated statement EESEBXRANBEE
of financial position 7,426,325 4,226,731

The amounts provided to the Board of Directors with
respect to total liabilities are measured in a manner
consistent with that of the consolidated financial
statements. These liabilities are allocated based on the
operations of the segment.

MESFSRHAFHLABENESE RIERENK
BENERBN TN E - HEFRERED WAL
ENAEENERUENE -
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5 Segment information (Continued) 5

The Group's derivative financial instruments and interest-
bearing liabilities are not considered to be segment
liabilities.

Reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to total
liabilities as follows:

2B ()

AEBRANITESR T AN EABTHRA

ENEEE -

2011 2010
—E——f —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Segment liabilities for reportable segments sR&ED A BEE 1,685,362 875,025
Other segments liabilities Hiv BB E 187,044 44,610
1,872,406 919,635
Unallocated: K@
Current derivatives financial RHEMTESRITARNS
instrument premium 25,644 33,577
Non-current derivatives financial REEMTEeRTARENS
instrument premium 6,843 22,385
Current derivative financial instruments RETESRIA 10,618 —
Non-current derivative financial instruments KEIOTA SR T A 85,157 —
Current borrowings FEERE R — 99,341
Non-current borrowings RAER 2,463,004 1,191,862
Total liabilities per consolidated EEABERANEEE
statement of financial position 4,463,672 2,266,800
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5 Segment information (Continued) 5 oEEmE (&)

Breakdown of the revenue is as follows: WA BARLN T
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT

Analysis of revenue by segment WA RERI B

Sale of crude oil in China AR B EB IR S E U 2,723,671 1,804,976
Sale of oil and gas in Kazakhstan & B 72 BT D 2R R A E WA 103,470 —
2,827,141 1,804,976

Revenues in China of approximately RMB2,723,671,000
(2010: RMB1,804,976,000) are derived from a single
external customer, PetroChina.

Revenues in Kazakhstan of approximately RMB96,760,000
are derived from Titan Qil.

R FEE WAL B AR 2,723,671,00070(=
T —TF . AR 1,804,976,0007T) ° FT B YA
BB —IINBEEHR B RRARAT °

5 B 75 Hir 18 5 SR8 & A £ Z 2R Titan Oil » 49
A AR # 96,760,000 7T ©
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6

Property, plant and equipment

6 THE-

Oil and gas Construction

TRk &®E

Motor
vehicles and
Office  production

properties  in progress  equipment  equipment Total
ARER
HREE ERIE HOERRE £ERE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At January 1, 2010 R-Z-ZE5-H—-H
Cost A 4,054,702 147,325 7,987 23,836 4,233,850
Accumulated depreciation RitiE (1,558,951) — (4,317) (5,439) (1,568,707
Net book value REFE 2,495,751 147,325 3,670 18,397 2,665,143
Year ended December 31,2010 HZ-E—ZF

TZRA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book value FNREFE 2,495,751 147,325 3,670 18,397 2,665,143
Addition 2m 2,038 878,266 1,108 7,196 888,608
Transfer inf(out) R 835,415 (835,415) — — —
Charge for the year FREH (525,890) — (755) (2,624) (529,269)
Closing net book value FRIEEFE 2,807,314 190,176 4,023 22,969 3,024,482
At December 31, 2010 R-E-Z&
T=A=+-8

Cost XA 4,892,155 190,176 9,095 31,032 5,122,458
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (2,084,841) — (5,072) (8,063) (2,097,976)
Net book value REFE 2,807,314 190,176 4,023 22,969 3,024,482
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6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 6 FTEHE  IRKRZEE)
Motor
Exploration vehicles
Gas and Buildings and
Oiland gas  Construction utilization evaluation and Office production
properties in progress facility assets improvements equipment equipment Total
AREE ERIR RARRE BERFEEE EERXR WAERE REREERR Fob
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT
Year ended BE-E—-F&
December 31, 2011 TZAZ+-BLEE
Opening net book value ENEEEE 2,807,314 190,176 = = = 4023 22,969 3,024,482
Exchange differences EiZHE (9.872) (628) (1,217) (38) (90) (7) (139) (11,991)
Acquisition of Emir-Oil, LLC 4t Emir-Oil, LLC
(Note 30) (Hrz£30) 1,140,481 78,849 144,862 238 10,179 831 17,048 1,392,488
Additions 10 38,752 1,326,954 - 10,699 4,233 2,502 15,007 1,398,147
Disposals HeE (85) - - (853) (151) - = (1,089)
Transfer in/(out) B 1,304,336 (1,299,196) - - (2,923) (26) (2,191) -
Charge for the year FRER (523,776) - (3,916) - (473) (825) (5,548) (534,538)
Closing net book value FREEFE 4,757,150 296,155 139,729 10,046 10,775 6,498 47,146 5,267,499
At December 31, 2011 R-B--#+-B=1+-H
Cost WA 7,361,858 296,155 143,524 10,046 11,214 12,366 60,684 7,895,847
Accumulated depreciation ZHFTERRE
and impairment (2,604,708) - (3,795) - (439) (5,868) (13,538) (2,628,348)
Net book value FEFE 4,757,150 296,155 139,729 10,046 10,775 6,498 47,146 5,267,499

Included in property, plant and equipment are assets used
in the PSCs. These assets amount to RMB3,850,477,000
comprising cost of RMB6,456,137,000 less accumulated
depreciation and impairment of RMB2,605,660,000 as at
December 31, 2011 (2010: RMB3,024,326,000 comprising
cost of RMB5,121,063,000 less accumulated depreciation
and impairment of RMB2,096,737,000) directly used in
and operated under the Group’'s three PSCs with
PetroChina in China.

The additions of oil and gas properties of the Group for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 included
RMB1,375,000 and RMB2,038,000 respectively relating to
the asset retirement obligations recognized during the
year (Note 16).

Depreciation charges of RMB8,380,000 and RMB11,837,000
relating to the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
respectively, have been capitalized in inventories (Note 11).

R-_ZT——F+_A=+—8 T8HE - THL
RfEE R ARME3,850,477,000 7T (A & A R #
6,456,137,000C i 2T E R A E AR
2,605,660,000T ) ( = T — T F: AR
3,024,326,000 7T & #& pX A~ A R #5,121,063,000
TR REHITE KRB A R ¥ 2,096,737,0007T)
BEDREBERNEESR AR IHN=MERD K
ARIEETAMERREE -

AEBREBE-ZZE——FRER=ZZ—ZF+=A
“+—HLEFERABENHIEET  2RBAR
#1,375,000 7T &2 A R 2,038,000 7T £2 AN F & 7%
RMEEEEEHA M (MIFE16)

HE_Z——FKk-_ZE-TF+-A=+—HL
FE £ %A ARKS380,0007T kAR
11,837,000 THINEBEAE D RIRTFEFR FLUXE
S (MIEE1) ©
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6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 6 TEE- - IEmE®REE)

During the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the BHE-_ZT——FKk-_ZE-ZF+-A=+—HI
Group did not capitalize any borrowing costs. FE - RNEBREEMAEREAR T AERL
7 Intangible asset 7 BEEE
Mineral
extraction

rights Mining

Software (Note 8) rights Total
TEEMERRE
B4 (Pff=E8) PRUERE Bt

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTIT ARBTT AR®TT AR®TT

At January 1, 2010 R-ZE—ZF—HF—H
Cost j%N 6,049 — — 6,049
Accumulated amortization Sty (3,450) — — (3,450)
Net book amount RMEFE 2,599 — — 2,599
Year ended BE-_ZT—-ZF

December 31, 2010 +ZA=+—BLEEE
Opening net book amount HRYIAREFE 2,599 — — 2,599
Additions byl 992 — — 992
Amortization charge e R (1,914) — — (1,914)
Closing net book amount FREEZFEE 1,677 — — 1,677
At December 31, 2010 R-ZB—FF

+=—RA=+—H

Cost j%N 7,041 — — 7,041
Accumulated amortization Bty (5,364) — — (5,364)

Net book amount BRMEE{E 1,677 — — 1,677
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7 Intangible asset (Continued) 7 BEEEE)

Mineral
extraction
rights Mining

Software (Note 8) rights Total
TEEBRAE
B4 (Ff=E8) HRUERE e

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETRT ARBTT ARBTET

Year ended BE-S——&

December 31, 2011 +TZA=+t—HLEE
Opening net book amount BIYIAR TR E 1,677 — — 1,677
Exchange differences PE N ZXE 693 — (4,853) (4,160)
Acquisition of Emir-Qil, LLC Uz B8 Emir-Oil, LLC

(Note 30) (Kt3#30) 43 — 577,305 577,348
Additions 140 6,630 18,671 — 25,301
Amortization charge s R (2,720) = (13,124) (15,844)
Closing net book amount FEXRIREZE 6,323 18,671 559,328 584,322
At December 31, 2011 RZE——F

t=A=+-—-H

Cost %N 14,407 18,671 572,399 605,477
Accumulated amortization 2EtE Y (8,084) — (13,071) (21,155)

Net book amount REFE 6,323 18,671 559,328 584,322
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8 Investment

On October 31, 2011, the Company paid US$3,000,000
(RMB18,903,000) to Pacific Energy Development Corp
("PEDCO") to acquire:

(a)

4,000,000 shares of restricted A convertible
preferred stock in PEDCO at US$0.75 per share
("preferred share”). The initial fair value of the
preferred shares is approximately RMB3,966,000.

31.25% working interest in the Niobrara formation
within DJ basin located at Weld County, Colorado,
United States (“mineral extraction rights”) acquired
by Condor Energy Technology LLC (“Condor”) from
PEDCO. MIE Jurassic Energy Corporation ("MIE
Jurassic”) (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group)
and PEDCO hold 80% and 20% interest respectively
in Condor. As MIE Jurassic has control over Condor,
and the Group has consolidated the 31.25% working
interest as mineral extraction right with initial fair
value of RMB18,671,000 (Note 7), the Group’s share
of the 80% of the mineral extraction rights is
approximately RMB14,937,000. The capital
contribution from non-controlling interest is
approximately RMB3,734,000.

RrE

AABR =T ——%+ A =+—H" Pacific Energy
Development Corp ([PEDCO]) 3 3,000,000 7T
(AR¥18,903,0007T) BRUEEA T EE ¢

(a)

4,000,000 B & H% 0.75 T H) PEDCO nJ 84
ABZRELR(TEER]) - BEKRNVIA
DA BEHARE3,966,0007T °

Condor Energy Technology LLC ([ Condor])
M PEDCOYAE TR EBIRI B % MNER
=% DJ 2 1 %) Niobrara B #9 31.25% {F 2 12
% ° MIE Jurassic Energy Corporation ([ MIE
Jurassic|) (K& E 2 & F A7) MIPEDCO %
71#5 5B Condor #917) #8 £ 80% #120% ° M7
MIE Jurassic E1f5 7 #f Condor H4E 5l #23r A
REEDK31.25% WEERRIEREERM
RENVIIHB AR EBEARK 18,671,000 7T
BR(BFFE7) - Bk A& E 80% 17 FE A1 E F3
BRARH) B AR 14,937,0007T o FEFEHI 1
wmERIREL /AR 3,734,000 7T ©
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9 Derivative financial instruments 9 fTEEETHE

As at December 31,

R+t=A=+—-8"
2011 2010
—g—-% —T IF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBTT

Assets BE
Oil hedge options BhE AR 9,151 31,453
Less: non-current portion: HIERBIES D ¢ = (20,285)
Current portion meE s 9,151 11,168
As at December 31,
Rt+t=A=+—8"
2011 2010
=% —TTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBT T
Liabilities =L
Current B
Oil hedge options AHMEREE 10,618 —
Non-current IR ED

Option to ACAP (Note 30) T ACAP H[RI& & #E (H17F30) 85,157 —
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9 Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Qil hedge options

(i

In October 2010, the Group entered into the
following oil hedge options with Merrill Lynch
Commodities, Inc (“MLCI") for the year ended
December 31, 2011 and year ending 31,
December 2012:

TTEERIA (&)
(a) AMEHE

i) ZZT—FF+AH K&EYMeril
Lynch Commodities, Inc. ([MLCI ) &
AATRBESRRE HE-_T——

FR-F-——Ft+-A=t—Hik:

MIE sold MIE bought
Monthly Annual put option put option
Notional Notional at strike price at strike price
Quantity Quantity (WTI price (WTI price
Contract Period AEHH (barrel) (barrel) per barrel) per barrel)
MIEEE MIEBERY
Aoh R HRETRE
TREMRER (AERE
BRE® SEE REHDE H+E
BE () HE (1) B/ 54) B/ 81)
Year ended BE_Z—F
December 31, 2011 +=-A=1+—H 150,000 1,800,000 US$55.00 US$70.00
Year ending HE-T——-F
December 31, 2012 +=-A=1+—H 100,000 1,200,000 US$55.00 US$70.00

The premium of US$8.74 million (RMB57.86
million) for the above option is payable over 8
instalments on a quarterly basis from April
2011 (Note 18).

B-ZE——SWARNEZEHME
AEBE K AmRBERRAETLIE
EL(ARKS7868)HEMSH N\
REZRMLCI AT (MiFE18) e
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9

Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Oil hedge options (Continued)

(ii)

On October 2011, the Group entered three into
separate oil hedge options with the following
banks at monthly notional quantity of 60,000
barrel each for year ending December 31, 2012
(or total notional quantity of 720,000 barrels
per annum) at zero premium:

9

PTTEEmMIA (&)
(a) AMEMHE(E)

(i) ZF——FTH SEUTEZEH
FHMATERTEE - B HESHH
o E-E-——F+-A=+—8
1IF - A% % H 560,000 (kT F

#ET & E 720,000 1) ¢
The Company The Company The Company
bought sold bought
put option call option call option

at strike price at strike price at strike price

(IPE Brent price (IPE Brent price (IPE Brent price

Counterparty EREA per barrel) per barrel) per barrel)
AFBER NEHERE NEBERE
SHERREITREE HETEE HETEE
(e RE  (FREFEAE (fRsRaE
Bi&/8%) ®/88) - Y&=1")

JPMorgan Chase Bank. N.A. JPMorgan Chase Bank.
N.A. US$60.00 US$131.00 US$170.00
Deutsche Bank AG Deutsche Bank AG US$60.00 US$131.50 US$170.00
Standard Bank Plc Standard Bank Plc US$60.00 US$146.00 US$186.00

The change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments, which are not designated as cash
flow hedges for accounting purposes, are
recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and as an asset for oil
hedge options entered into in October 2010
and as a liability for oil hedge options entered
into in October 2011 in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at December
31, 2011.

SETESRIAYIFURSRED
REONNAREBEED TEAHESE
WaERkhEIAWE RAKER-F
—— 5+ A=t—HWAHMHEESR
BRPE_E——F+AB AR
HARBE B_T-—ZF+ABA
MHIERRREE -
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9 Derivative financial instruments (Continued) 9

(b)

Option to ACAP

The Company has granted Acap Limited ("ACAP"),
which is providing general consulting services to the
Company in relation to the acquisition of Emir, a right
to co-invest with the Company or its associates for
up to 9.9% of the assets acquired in the acquisition,
on the same terms and conditions under the
Purchase Agreement within 36 months from the
closing of the transaction. The change in fair value of
the option to ACAP is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

10 Trade and other receivables 10

(a)

Summary of trade and other receivables

3=

o1

(b)

STRT A (&)

F ACAP H[EIRE#E

Acap Limited ([ACAP]) & Zx A 7] #£ UK 88
Emir B2 — MR AR o 4N 2 7]/ ACAP
BT HERER - AR S R ARG
FAMEHET - ACAPEEEA QT SREAE
FHEREERBAEEEN R 9.9% K
1788 o ACAP A 1 32 & 8 Ak IR 3 32 &Il SE AR 12
3618 ARFTHEZLRIZER - TACAP A
BEENARBEEHEESHGRERER
HHER o

FE W R E At B WK TR

(a)

FE W e H At FE WU RR IR AR A

As at December 31,

Rt=A=+-8
2011 2010
—g—-—5 -z-z%
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

Financial assets cWMEE
Current B

Trade receivables from PetroChina JEW R AR B Sk (HE31)

(Note 31) 166,204 25,973
Trade receivable from EUREE = R

other third parties 44,399 —
Other receivables due R g 77 L FE LR

from related parties

— PetroChina (Note 31) — Eh (KYaE31) 37,993 33,225

— Global Oil Corporation — B ARAZRIREA H

(Note 31) (K1:£31) 142,500 137,690

Advances to employees m{E B EH B 5,937 7,134
Unbilled receivables from PetroChina REE I AR

(Note 31) (Kt5%31) 134,710 145,011
Other receivables — others HithfE U sk — HAb 4,409 576

536,152 349,509
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10 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(a)

Summary of trade and other receivables (a)

(Continued)

10 BB EAREWKRE(R)
FE W e LAt PR IR LA (48

As at December 31,

R+=—BA=+—8"
2011 2010
—EB——f —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Non-current IR E
Amounts due from related party JRE Ak B B 5 R E
— Global Oil Corporation (Note 31) — SBAM TR AR (K17 31) = 24,212
Long term VAT recoverable A B & B E R 19,969 —
556,121 373,721
Non-financial assets kEeMEE
Current B
Advances to suppliers — others MEEEELRR — Bt 45,717 1,210
Less: provision for impairment of W I ERE L B FORE
advances to suppliers — others B — Hib (1,123) —
Advances to suppliers — others MEEEEDRR — &t
— net — FE 44,594 1,210
Refundable deposit paid for ERABEREMRETS
development property (Note 3.1(b)) (Ktz£3.1(b) 80,000 —
Advances to suppliers R EEEL RN — B
— related party (Note 317) (K17E31) 31,718 45,283
Prepayments to third parties % = F{EHTERFRIA 9,657 2,292
Other deferred assets HtnREEE 947 —
166,916 48,785
Non-current R B
Prepayments to third parties A5 =77 fELTE N R 12,063 —
178,979 48,785
Total &st 735,100 422,506
Total current REBEE 703,068 398,294
Total non-current ERBEF 32,032 24,212
Total a% 735,100 422,506
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10 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b)

(c)

10 B EARBWKRER)

The fair values of trade and other receivables financial (b) EREEMEVRFIESHEENALEEN
assets are as follows: TATA
As at December 31,
R+=A=+—8"
2011 2010
—=——fF —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Trade receivables from PetroChina KPR AERE SR 166,204 25,973
Trade receivable from other third parties [EWE =TI 44,399 —
Unbilled receivables from PetroChina REEEEW AR AMR 134,710 145,011
Other receivables due from related parties B3 75 H {th & U 5% 180,493 195,027
525,806 366,011
Other receivables — third parties HEMERSR —FE=7 30,315 7,710
556,121 373,721

The aging analysis of trade receivables were as

(c)

FEW IR IR DOATAAT

follows:
As at December 31,
Rt+=-—BA=+—H"
2011 2010
= L
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBT T
0-30 days 0E30H 197,123 25,973
31-180 days 312180 H 13,441 —
over 180 days 180 HMA £ 39 —
210,603 25,973

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were no
trade receivables past due which are impaired.

R-F-——FRZF-FFT-_A=1—
A SECADHSEDREMNEKR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B F B aR MY = ()

10 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
are denominated in the following currencies:

(d)

10 BB EAREWKRE(R)

JE U 2 E At 8 WO IE B B TD LA T 51 B HE 5)
=

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—8"
2011 2010
—=——fF —E=-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETT ARETT

Renminbi AR 364,887 218,297
United States Dollars ET 348,019 204,209
Kazakhstan Tenge MiERETAER X 22,194 —

735,100 422,506

Movements in the provision for impairment of
advance to suppliers are as follows:

(e)

Hit B sRREREZESH T

As at December 31,

Rt=ZA=t+—8"
2011 2010
—2——-F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARBETT

At January 1 A—A—H — _
Provision for impairment of MEEEELBR

advance to suppliers BB 1,123 —
At December 31 WR+=—B=+—8 1,123 —

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the fair value of each class of trade
and other receivables mentioned above. The Group
does not hold any collateral as security.

The Group's trade receivables have credit terms of
between 30 days to 60 days.

(f)

RERH - RANEERR A LASERE
Yl Eopth FEUGRIR ) R 2 B E © AR
R AT R ERER -

REBRKIERNERHAI0E60H -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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1

12

Inventories 11 FE
As at December 31,
Rt+=—B=+—H"
2011 2010
2% —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBET T
At cost PR At E
Oil in tank E1FH 11,873 15,648
Materials and supplies WL R AL E S 39,964 21,016
51,837 36,664

Depreciation charges of RMB8,380,000 and RMB 11,837,000
have been included in the balance above for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (Note 6).

Pledged deposits and restricted cash

BHE_T—FRK_ZT—ZTF+_A=+—HIt
FE - LiliEsn B8 iE AR 8,380,000 T kA

R#11,837,000 T EE R (fizE6) °

12 EREFERNZRERE

As at December 31,

Rt=ZA=t+—8"
2011 2010
—E——F —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBEFT
Pledged deposits EHFR 233,891 29,916

As at December 31, 2011, pledged deposit is interest
bearing and represents bank deposit pledged for notes
payable (Note 18). The carrying amounts of pledged
deposits are denominated in Renminbi.

RZB——F+-A=+—B BRERE/E
NRBERFEROTERITER(MEE18) < KA

FROEEAARERIIE -
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12 Pledged deposits and restricted cash 12 EHERMZRHES (E)
(Continued)
As at December 31, 2010, pledged deposit represents RZZE—ZF+-_A=+—8 " BREFHIELHE
bank deposit pledged for borrowings. The carrying TR IR & AR 5 W IR1TTE FUREIER AR
amounts of pledged deposits are denominated in United TR WRFHHEEBENUETAIIE -

States Dollars.

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—8"
2011 2010
—=——fF —=-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET T ARETT

Restricted cash 2R B3R & 7,530 —
Under the laws of the Republic of Kazakhstan, the IRERIER TR RFEDERE - ARFIARBESE
Company is required to set aside funds for environmental EAEAMBENREEE R _ZT——F+ A
remediation relating to its operations. As of December 31, =+—HB ' AREFLLE B ZRHIEE1,195,000
2011 the Company had restricted cash balances ET o BREREA S EZTEHEWHA
amounting to USD1,195,000 set aside for this purpose. R - S eBW I BAERHERE -

Management is unable to estimate reliably when these
amounts will be utilized, and therefore, these amounts are
classified as a non-current asset.
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13 Cash and cash equivalents 13 RERBFESEEY
Group
A EE
As at December 31,
R+=—A=+—8H"
2011 2010
—E——f —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

Cash in hand B4 296 33
Cash at bank RITFR 532,733 680,000
533,029 680,033
Company
¥INNE
As at December 31,
R+=—HA=+—8"

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETE

Cash at bank IRITIER 52,381 342,950
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B F B aR MY = ()

13 Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the

following currencies:

13

RERREEEY ()
RERALEEMATIIERTIE :

Group
rEE
As at December 31,
R+=-—A=+—8"
2011 2010
—=E——fF —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Renminbi AR 227,103 273,371
Hong Kong Dollars ot 97 342,936
United States Dollars EIT 304,234 63,726
Kazakhstan Tenge MiEF ETIRER X 1,153 —
European Union Euros B 2R BT 442 —
533,029 680,033
Company
AN
As at December 31,
Rt=ZA=t+—8"

2011 2010
—2——F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBEFIT
Hong Kong Dollars B 97 342,936
United States Dollars ETT 52,284 14
52,381 342,950
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13 Cash and cash equivalents (Continued) 13

ReEkREEEY (&)

ZTE——FFHR - M EERERER DA

Renminbi-denominated deposits are placed with banks in
the PRC. The conversion of these Renminbi-denominated
deposits into foreign currencies and remittance out of the
PRC are subject to certain PRC rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. Also, the exchange rates are determined by
the PRC government.

There are also exchange restrictions and currency controls
relating to converting Kazakhstan Tenge into other
currencies. Kazakhstan Tenge is not freely convertible in
most countries outside of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

14 Share capital

14

AARBIIEN RN BIRART © #%
EUARBIENTR LB R/INEREHPEA
38 5T R B IR AR A O 35 T AP B OMNE B R ARG BOE
o FE - EREXRHPERFETE -

WS B e HTHE BR O B At MR TR ) 3L M 1 X B SN Y
EIEMBS - B — AR A ERR 1 BE 52 T8 LAY
BRETERLIE -

@S

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—8"
2011 2010
—E——F T -FF
‘000 ‘000
TR T &
Authorized ordinary shares: KIREZER
Ordinary shares of US$0.001 per share MR MEE0.001 E LT B 100,000,000 100,000,000

As at December 31,

Rt+t=A=+—8H"
2011 2010
—=2——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
Ordinary shares EiBmA% 17,627 17,588

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the total number of
authorized shares is 100,000,000,000 ordinary shares with
a par value of US$0.001 each. Each share has one vote.

BHE—_Z——FRk-_ZT—ZFF+=-A=+—HL"
R HE N1 #8145 100,000,000,000 & @A% - FAX
HfE0.001 %)L - BB —SIRERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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14 Share capital (Continued) 14
(a) Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

The details of the issued and fully paid ordinary share
capital of the Company for the relevant periods are
as follow:

MR ()
(a) ERTRFZHEZER

RRARRA AR B 17 REUR B9 T i AR
REFFEINOT

As at December 31,

R+=—A=+—-8H"
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTTT
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At January 1, 2010 R-E—ZTF—A—H
96,356,270 ordinary shares at 96,356,270 % © T
US$0.001 each fE1E0.001 3T & Ak 659
At March 10, 2010 RZZE—ZTF=A+H
Cancellation of 18,212,560 ¥$518,212,660 % © &A%
ordinary shares at US$0.001 each E{E0.001 ELE AR (124)
At December 14, 2010 RZE-FF+_-_HA-+MA
Conversion of 25,101,220 Series A @125 101,220 L & 51| A
preferred shares to 25,101,220 fB5EARE 25,101,220 1%
ordinary shares at US$0.001 each FAXEE0.001 ETE B 171
Conversion of 36,425,120 Series B B34 36,425,120 L £ 51| B
preferred shares to 18,212,560 B5EARZE 18,212,560 %
ordinary shares at US$0.001 each SPLTEE 0.001 =T B 124
Capitalization issuance of 2,078,542,5610 MR -_ZE—ZFF+—A_-+=H
ordinary shares at US$0.001 each BB RE AT
to shareholders registered on 2,078,542,510 % -
November 23, 2010 BARME{E0.001 T E B 13,822
Issuance of 441,334,000 MR EEREAEEE1T 441,334,000 A&
ordinary shares at US$0.001 each FREEE0.001 FE T E B
during Global Offering 2,936
At December 31, 2010 R_E-ZF+-_A=+—H
2,641,334,000 ordinary shares at 2,641,334,000 f% + &A%
US$0.001 each {8 0.001 £ T & BAR 17,588
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14 Share capital (Continued) 14 B (4E)

(a) Issued and fully paid ordinary shares (a) ERITRBEZNEZER(E)
(Continued)

As at December 31,

R+t=A=+—8"
2011 2010
—E——fF —ZT-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ET T ARBETT

At January 1, 2011 RZE——F—HF—H
2,641,334,000 ordinary shares 2,641,334,000 f% * &h%

at US$0.001 each H{E0.001 ELE R 17,588
At April 28, 2011 R-E——FNMA=+\H
Issue of 800,000 ordinary shares BIEBIRET SIS

at US$0.001 each for exercise of TEEAZ0.001ETT

employee stock option 771 800,000 HE % ## 5
At June 9, 2011 —E——%NANH
Issue of 900,800 ordinary shares RIZEERRAERT SIS

at US$0.001 each for exercise of AL 0.001 37T

employee stock option 771£900,800 i B 4 6
At August 22, 2011 RZE——FNAZ+=H
Issue of 3,030,904 ordinary shares BIEERETZINE

at US$0.001 each for exercise of @AY 0.001 =T

employee stock option 7718 3,030,904 $E f 1 19
At November 4, 2011 R-—ZE——F+—HAWEH
Issue of 1,330,104 ordinary shares BIEBIRETZIAE

at US$0.001 each for exercise of A% 0.001 XL

employee stock option 171% 1,330,104 B pi#ge 9

39

At December 31, 2011 R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H
2,647,395,808 ordinary shares 2,647,395,808 % + &A%

at US$0.001 each M{E0.001 ELEEM 17,627
The above movements have been reflected in the BB A EREBRARER -

consolidated statements of changes in equity.
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14 Share capital (Continued)

(b)

Stock incentive compensation plans

Details of the equity-settled share option schemes

and stock appreciation rights adopted by the

Company are as follows:

(i)

Stock incentive compensation plan

The Plan was adopted on November 20, 2009
with the purposes of providing additional
incentive to employees, directors and
consultants to attract and retain the best
available personnel for positions of substantial
responsibility. The Company originally reserved
6,072,870 ordinary shares for issuance under
the Plan. The Plan was terminated on November
27, 2010. Any options granted prior to the
termination of the Plan remain subject to the
ordinary vesting and exercise provisions set out
in the award agreement. A total of 4,422,000
shares originally reserved for the Plan were
cancelled upon the termination of the Plan.

(A)  Stock options

The options granted under the Plan are
evidenced by an option award agreement
between the Company and its employees
that contains, among other things, the
number of shares granted and provisions
concerning exercisability and forfeiture
upon termination of employment, as
determined by the board of the Company.

14 RRA(4E)

(b) B4R BN = =T &)

AN RIBR A O DA R 4 55 e R AR A AL A0 5
B EIFIREIIIT

(i)

Betn BB At &)

RAAREFTER_ZTZTNF+—A
Z+BEATERMAN ARG ZEB 5 E
EEAEAEZRENBUBERE
BREFNAIAAE U AEE &
EREMRHEINEE - ARFIRE
TEH 6,072,870 E B A TR E IR K
HEMEstE  REXR_Z—FF
T—AZTERENEERE  AAA
RIET R BB S 5T EI o (AR
B IERIE A ERRD T ARE - &
BRI EREER RO T RRE
HRFEBIGER - REAZTEREN
HRE 54,422,000 f% B 7 B% 15 42 B B
SETEIK RS -

(A HERRAE

REBEROZBH S ERED
BREALAQAREEES ZH
B — 10 BB R 28R 1% 8 R R EE
ZBEEII (P EE) AR
BB E RRILEREEH
15 SR B0 BT 7T 458 1 K08 UK O 16k
X(BARREEGHMERE) °
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14 Share capital (Continued)

(b) Stock incentive compensation plans
(Continued)

(i)  Stock incentive compensation plan
(Continued)

(A)

Stock options (Continued)

Vesting schedule The options granted
under the Plan vest over a two or three-
year period following a specified vesting
commencement date. Typically, the
options granted vest at each anniversary
of the grant date within the vesting period,
subject to the participant continuing to be
an employee on each vesting date.

Right to exercise The term of the options
granted under the Plan will not exceed
ten years from the grant date. Upon
termination by the participant or
termination of the participant without
cause by the Company, any portion of
the options that had not vested on or
before such termination shall lapse
immediately; any portion of the options
that were vested before such termination
to the extent not exercised within thirty
days after such termination shall also
lapse. Upon termination of the participant
due to the participant’s death, permanent
disability or injury, the options remain
subject to ordinary vesting schedule and
exercise provision where the option
agreement permits. Upon termination of
the participant by the Company for cause,
any portion of the options not already
exercised lapse immediately.

14 PR (48)

(b) MR fERENEN 25T ()

(i) ROZEEBEEE (E)

(A)

BhE ()

BB & &R B R ) SRR B 2 5t
EREMNBREREERER
BRI R MR = FHRA
B o — MR - TR
hREERBHANRLE B
BFEERARE HE2EEA
RERBRHDRESR

TTIEERERD REM 253
BEHmBRENSREELA
HEGFTEBBE+F - WK
BHBERFTEARZEERE
EARBNERBEIARF
BEYRESEEZNRENE
Pt BlERITERBENE
RN Bl ERE=+—
B AR IE o 1 B8 AR 13 5% 72 7T /B
RBEENGH - KEBRKRK
XEEYERRBAFRKLRER
FERITE MBRENASR
TEBREAERTE AR
REMEESBER  HARTT
VBB BN S 2R R
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14 Share capital (Continued)

(b) Stock incentive compensation plans
(Continued)

(i)  Stock incentive compensation plan
(Continued)

(A)  Stock options (Continued)

Movements in the number of share
options outstanding and their related
weighted average exercise prices are as

14 PBRA(48)

(b) MBS 8 (&

(i)

R ZR & ()

(A EBAHE ()

AT 68 6 MR B B B 0 2
HFITEROBHNT -

follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF

Average Average

exercise exercise

price price
per share Options per share Options

FHTEE FI917{E(E
STET ke BRET HitE
At January 1 »n—A—H US$0.14 28,084,179 US$0.13 26,823,492
Granted [k - - US$0.25 3,079,266
Forfeited B84 - - US$0.13 (1,818,579
Exercised 217E US$0.13  (6,061,808) — —
At December 31 R+=-—BA=+—8 US$0.14 22,022,371 US$0.14 28,084,179

Out of the 22,022,371 options (2010:
28,084,179 options), 12,147,767 options
(2010: 8,334,971) were exercisable.

1£22,022,371 R 1718 #y HA 4 R
(Z =& — T % :28,084,179 85
) 12,147,767 ( — T —F 4 :
8,334,971) HAkER] TAT(E o
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14 Share capital (Continued)

(b) Stock incentive compensation plans
(Continued)

(i) Stock incentive compensation plan
(Continued)

(A)

Stock options (Continued)

Share options outstanding at the end of

14 PR (48)
(b) RPEBEEETE (&)

(i) Ri7ZEM A (&)

(A RBAHE ()
EFERBEARTERENDIHA

the year have the following expiry date MITEENT -
and exercise prices:
Exercise
price
Expiry date per share Options
TEE
EHB BRER HikE
2011 2010
—B——fF —E-EF
November 20, 2019 US$0.13 18,943,105 25,004,913
—T-hAFt+—RZ+H 0.13%7T
November 23, 2020 US$0.25 3,079,266 3,079,266
—ZTEF+—HAZ+=H 0.25%7T

22,022,371 28,084,179
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14 Share capital (Continued)

(b)

Stock incentive compensation plans
(Continued)

(i)

Stock incentive compensation plan
(Continued)

(B)

Stock appreciation rights

Stock appreciation rights granted under
the Plan and on February 26, 2010 are
evidenced by a stock appreciation rights
award agreement between the Company
and employees that contains, among
other things, the number of notional
ordinary shares to which the stock
appreciation rights relate and the
provisions concerning exercisability
and forfeiture upon termination of
employment or consulting arrangement.

Vesting schedule Stock appreciation
rights granted under the Plan vest over a
three-year period following a specified
vesting commencement date. One-third
of the stock appreciation rights granted
vest at each anniversary of the grant date
within the three-year vesting period,
subject to the participant continuing to be
an employee or a service provider on
each vesting date.

Right to exercise The term of stock
appreciation rights granted under the
Plan will not exceed ten years from the
grant date. When a participant exercises
the stock appreciation rights, the
Company will pay such participant
an amount in cash determined by
multiplying (i) the excess of the fair
market value of an ordinary share on the
exercise date over the grant price by (ii)
the number of notional ordinary shares to
which the stock appreciation rights relate
stated in such participant’s exercise
notice.

14 PBRA(48)

(b)

MR 10 R BN =5t 8 (&)

(i)

R 1n R 2t &) (&

Bt 1B (a1

RIER D BB & 5T & B A
D IGEELNEARAIREE Z
MR—ZE—=—F-_A=+<H
H— RO ERERRER
BE - ZmEHEHI(EHEE)
RHIGEEEBEHNEE LT BR
H B R IFERAN AR
BRI EENAITE
M R WEE S o

FEGEBE_STNERG
REBM T8 R BN EE
ENEEFRBRHRAMKR=F
HERNEE - =02 — WK
iR ERE=F5FBHENR
MELAEAFENARE
H2EEARERBEHRDA
BE RGBS -

TTIEERE RN REM 258
BRHmkfngERNHIRAE R
AR TEEB T F - M
SEETERMHEER  AAX
RABAREMZ B2 RE L
N—228 ZeBRDEEHK
ZBRBEEREITEBERR
S50 —REBBERITER
HWms AR BEBHITEE
R ERRRIAGIR D B ERSR
M ER L BEEEAETE -
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14 Share capital (Continued)

(b) Stock incentive compensation plans
(Continued)

(i)  Stock incentive compensation plan
(Continued)

(B)

Stock appreciation rights (Continued)

Movements in the number of stock
appreciation rights outstanding and their

14 anlx(nﬁ)
(b) RPEBENSETE (B)

(i)

R 1n R 2t &) (&

(B)  BefpiE({EtE (&)

AITERNBRMIZERRE KB
R INEFAITEENE SN

related weighted average exercise prices N
are as follows:
2011 2010
g% —T-3F
Average Average
exercise Stock exercise Stock
price appreciation price  appreciation
per share rights per share rights
BiTEE F917{E(E
BRErT ROEERE BRET ROEEE
At January 1 n—HA—H US$0.13 46,600,713 US$0.13 46,373,391
Granted B&RE — - US$0.26 454,644
Forfeited BRI US$0.13 (628,923) US$0.13 (227,322)
Exercised 217E US$0.13 (227,322) — —
At December 31 Wt+=HA=+—H US$0.13 45,744,468 US$0.13 46,600,713

Out of the 45,744,468 outstanding stock
appreciation rights (2010: 46,600,713 stock
appreciation rights), 30,135,123 stock
appreciation rights (2010: 15,169,856) were
exercisable.

1E 45,744,468 K 17 5 6 i 15 18
B S =ZF - FT F:
46,600,713 1% 1% i E R )
30,135,123( = & — & ¢
15169856)%%*15%7
fiE o

161



162 ANNUAL REPORT 2011 - MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B F B aR MY = ()

14 Share capital (Continued)

(b) Stock incentive compensation plans
(Continued)

(i) Stock incentive compensation plan
(Continued)

(B)  Stock appreciation rights (Continued)

Stock appreciation rights outstanding at
the end of the year have the following
expiry date and exercise prices:

14 PBRA(48)

(b) MMM AT ()

(i) Ri7ZEM A (&)

(B)

Exercise price

Bein 1 EHE (&)

FEFRERITEBRMIGERED
FMAFMITEENT

Expiry date per share Stock appreciation rights
TEE
ZEI#A BRER R IBERE
2011 2010
—®-—%  —T-TF
November 20, 2019 US$0.13
—T-NF+—A=+H 0.13% 7T 45,289,824 46,146,069
February 26, 2020 US$0.26
—E-_TF_A-+7"AH 0.26 7T 454,644 454,644
45,744,468 46,600,713
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14 Share capital (Continued)

(b) Stock incentive compensation plans
(Continued)

(i)  Stock incentive compensation plan
(Continued)

(C)

Fair values of stock options

The fair value of options granted on
November 20, 2009 determined using
the Binomial Model was US$1.93 per
option. The significant inputs into the
model were fair value per share of
US$3.30 at the grant date, exercise price
shown above, volatility of 64.7%,
dividend yield of 0%, an option life of ten
years, and an annual risk-free interest
rate of 3.417%. The volatility measured
at the standard deviation of continuously
compounded share returns is based on
statistical analysis of weekly share prices
of comparable companies over the last
five years.

The fair value of options granted on
November 23, 2010 determined using
the Binomial Mode was US$0.11 per
option after taking into capitalization
issue. The significant inputs into the
model were fair value per share of
US$0.22 at the grant date, exercise price
shown above, volatility of 58.56%,
dividend yield of 0%, an option life of ten
years, and an annual risk-free interest
rate of 2.86%. The volatility measured at
the standard deviation of continuously
compounded share returns is based on
statistical analysis of weekly share prices
of comparable companies over the last
five years.

14 PR (48)

(b) MR fERENEN 25T ()

(i) Ry ZEEM a2 (&

BRI 25 (1B
R-FENAET—A-TRE
RN D 2 HEATH

BERE1.93% T TIEHRAB 1
AEAET ZEANEENG
ABEARETENGRAA
B{E3.30% T« EXFamfT
B FIE647% - Ik B X
0%  BREFHT+ELREFER
[ELE M K 3.417% o $R3EEE T
% = U AR R E ST E MR
BIHERBERFERAILER
B EERDERRFET DT -

ERINARNMET RZT—
TE+—A-+-BRHNE
BENAAREBEARENBERE
01MZERT DEAZEAESR
EE- ZEMNSEMNH ARE
BRETFENERAREE.22
ET - EXETIAITTIRE « KIE
58.86% - % 5. % 0% - 5 ik #
FHTFRFEERR T X
2.86% ° IZEBEE AR TR =B
PERBEFENRRBBIDERA
AAFRALE QA GARD
BRI FET AT o
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14 Share capital (Continued)

(b)

Stock incentive compensation plans
(Continued)

(i)

Stock incentive compensation plan
(Continued)

(C)

Fair values of stock options (Continued)

The fair value of stock appreciation rights
granted on November 20, 2009 as of
December 31, 2010 determined using
the Binomial Model was US$0.11 per
right. The significant inputs into the
model were the fair value per share of
US$0.22 as of December 31, 2010, the
exercise price of US$0.13, volatility of
58.62%, dividend yield of 0%, stock
appreciation rights remaining life of 8.89
years, and an annual risk-free interest
rate of 3.15%. The fair value of stock
appreciation rights granted on November
20, 2009 as of December 31, 2011
determined using the Binomial Model
was US$0.13 per right. The significant
inputs into the model were the fair value
per share of US$0.25 as of December
31, 2011, the exercise price of US$0.13,
volatility of 61.68%, dividend yield of 0%,
stock appreciation rights life of 7.89
years, and an annual risk-free interest
rate of 1.53 %.

14 RRA(4E)

(b)

Rt REE <58 (&)

(i)

R0 Rt & ()

(®)
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EEANF+—AZTARLEN
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14 Share capital (Continued)

(b) Stock incentive compensation plans
(Continued)

(i)  Stock incentive compensation plan
(Continued)

(C)

Fair values of stock options (Continued)

The fair value of stock appreciation rights
granted on February 26, 2010 as of
December 31, 2010 determined using
the Binomial Model was US$0.08 per
right. The significant inputs into the
model were the fair value per share of
US$0.22 as of December 31, 2010, the
exercise price of US$0.26, volatility of
58.62%, dividend yield of 0%, stock
appreciation rights remaining life of 9.16
years, and an annual risk-free interest
rate of 3.15%. The fair value of stock
appreciation rights granted on February
26, 2010 as of December 31, 2011
determined using the Binomial Model
was US$0.09 per right. The significant
inputs into the model were the fair value
per share of US$0.25 as of December
31, 2011, the exercise price of US$0.26,
volatility of 61.68%, dividend yield of 0%,
stock appreciation rights life remaining of
8.16 years, and an annual risk-free
interest rate of 1.75%.
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14 Share capital (Continued)

(b)

Stock incentive compensation plans
(Continued)

(ii)

Share option scheme

As approved by shareholders of the Company
at a meeting held on November 27, 2010, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme
("Scheme") in accordance with Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group.

The Company's Directors may, at their absolute
discretion, invite any person belonging to any of
the following classes of participants, to take up
options to subscribe for the shares: (i) any
employee (full time) of the Company or any of
the subsidiaries, including any executive
Director; and (ii) any non-executive Director
(including independent non-executive Director)
of the Company or any of the subsidiaries.

The subscription price for shares under the
Scheme shall be a price determined by the
Directors, but shall be the highest of (i) the
closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations on the Offer Date;
(ii) the average closing price of shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for
the five trading days immediately preceding
the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal value of
the shares. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00
is payable on acceptance of the grant of an
option.

14 PBRA(48)

(b)
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14 Share capital (Continued)

(b) Stock incentive compensation plans
(Continued)

(ii)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company
(including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each participant in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of any outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options (excluding,
for this purpose, options which have been
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company) to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares in issue as at the Listing Date (i.e.
264,133,400 shares).

An option may be accepted by a participant
within 28 days from the date of the offer of
grant of the option. An option may be
exercised in whole or in part in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during a period to be notified by the Directors
to each grantee, which period may commence
on the date upon which the offer for the grant
of options is made (”“Offer Date") but shall
expire on the day immediately preceding the
tenth anniversary of the Offer Date.

14 PR (48)

(b) BR{DERENEN 5T (&)

(ii)
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14 Share capital (Continued)

(ii)

14 PBRA(48)

(b) Stock incentive compensation plans (b) RpEBMEITE (&
(Continued)
Share option scheme (Continued) (i) FEARHEETZI (&)
At December 31, 2011, the number of shares RZE——F+-A=+—H"  #H%
in respect of which options had been granted FTEI TR T AR R A IR B S B
under the Scheme and remained outstanding RATIBBITIREM4.2% ©
was approximately 4.2% of the Company’s
shares in issue at that date.
The following table discloses details of the ZAE TARFEL(REESR) A
Company'’s options under the Scheme held by HIRITEMBENSHREHNEE &
employees (including Directors) and movement EBRAMIRNT
in such holdings during each of the two years
ended December 31:
2011 2010
—E—-F —T-TF
Average Average
exercise exercise
price price
per share Options per share Options
5 Tk
FHTEE B TTEE HiRg
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At January 1 »n—A—H - - — —
Granted [RE; i 2.254 112,048,000 — —
Forfeited B8 - - — —
Exercised 2171 - — — —
At December 31 R+=-A=+—8 2.254 112,048,000 — —

Out of the 112,048,000 options (2010: nil), no
options (2010: nil) were exercisable. The share
options issued pursuant to the Scheme
outstanding as at December 31, 2011 were
112,048,000 with exercise price of HK$2.254.

£ 112,048,000 K 1T R HiMEH (=2
—ZTF ) T(ZE-TF:T)H
A TIIE e RZE——F+=A
=+—H - ZErE TERITENER
7 5112,048,00015 + 17{# (& A2.254
B o
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14 Share capital (Continued)

(b)

Stock incentive compensation plans
(Continued)

(ii)

Share option scheme (Continued)

Share options issued pursuant to the Scheme

14 PR (48)

(b) MRN8 (&

(i) FEARE & (&)
HEREZAE T RIT R DI

outstanding at the end of the year have the AAITEERT :
following expiry date and exercise prices:
Exercise price
Expiry date per share Options
TEE
|8 A BRBE HARE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
September 20, 2021 HK$2.254
—E—FNAZ+H 2.254 7T 112,048,000 —

The fair value of options issued pursuant to the
Scheme and granted on September 20, 2011
was determined using the Binomial Mode at
HK$1.18 per option. The significant inputs into
the model were fair value per share of HK$2.13
at the grant date, exercise price of HK$2.25
per share, volatility of 66.01%, dividend yield
of 0%, an option life of ten years, and an
annual risk-free interest rate of 1.44%. The
volatility measured at the standard deviation of
continuously compounded share returns is
based on statistical analysis of weekly share
prices of comparable companies over the last
ten years.

MN-T——Fh A -+ AREZHE
REHNEREN AR BEREHER
B118EE - NRAZHEARLE
E o HENSEENEG ABEANET
HREBRAAREBE213BE - 1THE
2257 M- i 1866.01% - & B &
0% - BREFH+FRFEERBT
F1.44% - REBEBEFIRZWRZHEZ
ERENERBIHERBETFR
AR A R GRR D EEOFETIIT
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15 Share premium and other reserves

(a)

15 BRAREMEAREE

Group (a) A&KE
As at December 31,
R+=—BA=+—H"

2011 2010
= —ETTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBT T
Share premium P& A B 835,709 826,477
Capital reserve N =1 (270) (270)
Share option reserve BEAS RS 16,998 11,684
Safety fund reserve (i) REESFEE) 140,993 91,546
Currency translation reserve EEITEER (55,638) (10,941)
Other reserves Hi S 102,083 91,919

(1)

Safety fund reserve

Pursuant to certain relevant PRC laws and
regulations, the Group is required to set aside
a certain amount in proportion to its production
income for the relevant year as safety fund
reserve. As the Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay out these
amounts at point of recognition, the amount
has been treated as an appropriation of
reserves in the equity account. The fund can
be used for improvements of safety at the oil
exploration and development projects, and is
not available for distribution to shareholders.
Upon incurring qualifying safety expenditure,
an equivalent amount is transferred from the
safety fund reserve to retained earnings.

() ZE2EETHE

REETARPBEZERIER A%
EABHEEAHFENEERRNK
LRI ERARBER L2 ESHE -
HAAREY EERAMEEEBEAR

RZBEXNZERE  WEBEE
ERESRASIE B R - %
FEVARKELMARKEENR
2 BATARENS R - REE
HerHnZexE —2%5ES
BRETEESFHEERERTRE -
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15 Share premium and other reserves

(Continued)

15 RAREMEAiRFHE(E)

(b) Company (b) 7T
As at December 31,
R+=A=+—8"
2011 2010
= —TTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AEBTT
Share premium AR E 835,709 826,477
Capital reserve BREE 1,366,956 1,366,956
Share option reserve IR ERE 16,998 11,684
Currency translation reserve EEITEER (51,236) (10,941)
1,332,718 1,367,599
16 Asset retirement obligations 16 BERERK
As at December 31,
BR+=—A=+—8"
2011 2010
—2——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
At beginning of the year F) 9,270 6,978
Acquisition of Emir-Oil, LLC (Note 30) U 8 Emir-Oil, LLC (H5F 30) 10,060 —
Liabilities incurred (Note 6) BEMAG (T 1,375 2,038
Accretion expenses EEEA 1,276 254
Exchange differences MEHZE (105) —
At end of the year TR 21,876 9,270
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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17 Deferred income tax 17 EIEFREH

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when BRI KA BT 1B & E BN EATR IE B FHE
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax VEEATEAITIER - BIRIEFRIS FH I A — FH 75 1
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred Al AR BEEMSHEERELEMSHE R
B - MEST|HOT -

income taxes relate to the same tax authority. The offset
amounts are as follows:

As at December 31,

R+t=—A=+—8H"
2011 2010
—2——F ZT-ZF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Deferred tax assets: EEHIBEE
Deferred tax assets to be recovered #1218 A 1% Ug Bl #Y R IE
after more than 12 months MIBEE 38,873 5,378
Deferred tax assets to be recovered B 1218 A Rk [E] /9 IR E
within 12 months HIBEE 61 1,675
38,934 7,053
Deferred tax liabilities: EEBEEE :
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled B 1218 A 1BEERIEL
after more than 12 months MIEAE (250,286) (12,789)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled BN 121ME B NEENEL
within 12 months MIEAE (2,095) (2,958)
(252,381) (15,747)
Deferred income tax liabilities — net Bit — RIEEHAE — F58 (213,447) (8,694)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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17 Deferred income tax (Continued) 17 EZEFEH (E)
The movements in the deferred tax account are as BEEFTBEREFNEEEH T -
follows:

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—8"
2011 2010
—E——f —=-TF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

At beginning of the year F1) (8,694) (86,400)
Exchange differences PEH Z%E 1,189 —
Acquisition of Emir-Oil, LLC (Note 30) Uz B8 Emir-Oil, LLC (ff7F30) (192,559) —
(Charged)/Credited to the consolidated RIFAWERAN (B ) /AR

statement of comprehensive income (Kt7E24)

(Note 24) (13,383) 77,706

At end of the year F (213,447) (8,694)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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17 Deferred income tax (Continued) 17 EIEFTEH (&)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during BEMRBEEERBENAFEARANEZ S (Tt RE
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting — B EEEASAEE) T
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:
Deferred tax assets BEEMIEEE
Asset Commercial
retirement  discovery Tax
obligations bonus losses Others Total
BE [GES
EEERK BBEAF e Hith e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT ARETRT
At January 1, 2010 R=-ZE-ZF—-H—H 1,744 — — 6,411 8,155
Credited/(charged) to RIFEWEZRA
the consolidated statement ~ ABE,/(%1%)
of comprehensive income 573 — — (1,675) (1,102)
At December 31, 2010 R-ZE—-2F
+=B=+—8 2,317 — — 4,736 7,053
Acquisition of Emir-Qil, LLC U B Emir-Oil, LLC 2,802 6,752 — 6,080 15,634
(Charged)/credited to RiralEm R A
the consolidated statement  (%13%),/ A8
of comprehensive income (139) (6,777) 25,696 (2,336) 16,444
Exchange differences lEHERE (21) (33) (95) (48) (197)
At December 31, 2011 R-B——F
+=A=+—H 4,959 (58) 25,601 8,432 38,934

Others include mainly the interest expenses incurred in

2007 that are tax deductable over six (6) years as allowed

by the local tax authority.

HMETZRREN-_ZETLFRENTEMAX - &
EHHEEBAMART - RN (6) FHRRAR RN

IF o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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17 Deferred income tax (Continued) EEFTEH (&)
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBEEE
Accelerated Fair value
tax gains of
depreciation mining rights Total
PRUERE
MEHRERE ALEEFE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTFT ARBTTT
At January 1, 2010 R=-ZE—2F—-H—H (94,555) — (94,555)
Credited to the REFRERAAR
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 78,808 — 78,808
At December 31, 2010 R-EB—FF
+=B=+—H (15,747) — (15,747)
Acquisition of Emir-Oil, LLC U B Emir-Oil, LLC (92,732) (115,461) (208,193)
(Charged)/credited to RERE W E R A
the consolidated statement of CIFIYIN:
comprehensive income (31,860) 2,033 (24,690)
Exchange differences P& Z%E 851 535 1,386
At December 31, 2011 R=-TB——F
+=A=+—H (139,488) (112,893) (252,381)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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18

Trade and other payables

(a) Summary of trade and other payabl

18 FENRHEMENKIE
es (a) FENAREMENTRIERE

As at December 31,

Rt+t=—A=+—8"
2011 2010
—E——f —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREBTIT
Financial liabilities o h=Li
Current B
Trade payables JERTIR IR 687,392 527,319
Amount due to related parties (Note 31) [ EE: 75 5738 (K135 31) — 616
Notes payable® T ZEEO 233,891 —
Interest payable FERTHE 33,689 1,244
Derivatives financial instrument ERTTES R TEENS
premium payable (Note 9) (K179 25,644 33,577
Other tax payable H b AR 51,448 22,728
Special oil levy BaERIkES 348,960 87,939
Other payables H At FE 5K 5,242 45,306
1,386,266 718,729
Non-current FFRE
Derivatives financial instrument AT T EENS
premium payable (Note 9) (Kt 9) 6,843 22,385
Trade payables JERIR IR 103,166 115,213
1,496,275 856,327
Non-financial liabilities kemens
Current HE
Salary and welfare payable!® FEREH T k@R 108,234 56,408
Capital lease liability PHHEETHEL 1,102 —
109,336 56,408
Non-current FEFRE
Capital lease liability PHHETWER 349 —
109,685 56,408
Total a5t 1,605,960 912,735
Total current mEAEr 1,495,602 775,137
Total non-current FEREAE 110,358 137,598
Total &5t 1,605,960 912,735




ZTE——FFHR - M EERERER DA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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18 Trade and other payables (Continued)

(a) Summary of trade and other payables
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

As at December 31, 2011, MIE has a total of
16 effective notes payables agreements with
China Construction Bank (“CCB") amounting
to RMB233,891,000 with a term of six months
from the date of issuance (“Notes Payables”).
The Notes Payables are secured by pledged
deposits amounting to RMB233,891,000 which
are interest bearing (Note 12). Under this
arrangement, MIE would enter into a notes
payables agreement with CCB. Pursuant to the
agreement, MIE will issue Notes Payables
backed by CCB to certain of its suppliers/
service providers to settle equivalent amounts
of trade payables. Upon maturity of the Notes
Payables, the pledged deposits will be released
by CCB to the suppliers/service providers.

Stock appreciation rights liabilities of
RMB33,512,000 (2010: RMB21,260,000) has
been included in salaries and welfare payable
for the year ended December 31, 2011.

18 FEfT R HAbFEAFRIE (&)
(a) BENREMEMNTEHRE(E)

(i)

HEZ_FT——F+=ZA=+—8"
MIE SR B R R 1T ([ 4R7T 1) B
16 BB MR ENER  BREANE
A 5 A R #233,891,0007T ([ &
REE] - ENEENHESERER
#$233,891,000 7T (Mt 5E12) « £ L 1H
AT MIEERSRITIER BN B+ -
RIEZ e - MIE R IE IR T7 SR8
MIE 5 B 45 4 FE 75, AR 725 454 B 72 ) B
NEEBERSE - EEMNREIEE -
RITEGERF R E N E R R E
7, AR e RS o

g fn 1L B4 & F A R 33,512,000 7T
(ZZ—Z4F : AR#¥21,260,0007T)
Bt ABE=ZE——F+=-A=+—
HIEFERNERMN T REF -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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18 Trade and other payables (Continued)

(b)

(c)

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the ageing analysis
of the trade and other payables is as follows:

18 B REAENFE (&)

(b)

R_BE-——FR_ZE-—ZEF+_HA=+—
B EREEE AR EN & E AR RIERR

AR

As at December 31,

R+=—A=+—-8"
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
< 6 months LR 61E A 1,299,650 608,245
6 months-1 year 6lEAAZE1F 160,788 212,457
1-2 years 1&228 123,733 50,232
2-3 years 2E34F 2,954 35,305
> 3 years % 3F 18,835 6,496
Total ast 1,605,960 912,735

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables

are denominated in the following currencies:

(c)

e R Bt A IR EE A T OB

B :

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—8"
2011 2010
—2——F —ZE-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREETFTT
Renminbi AR 1,329,941 850,813
United States Dollars eI 41,808 61,922
Kazakhstan Tenge MiEFHETIRER X 234,211 —
1,605,960 912,735

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables

approximate their fair values.

e R EMEMRENEEERSENAAE

ERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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On May 12, 2011, the Company issued US$400
million 9.75% senior notes (the “Notes”) due 2016.
The Notes bear coupon rate of 9.75% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears on May 12
and November 12 of each year, commencing on
November 12, 2011. The net proceeds of the
issuance of the Notes, after deduction of
underwriting fees, discounts and commissions and
other expenses payable in connection with the
issuance of the Notes, amounted to approximately
US$390 million. A portion of the proceeds from the
issuance of the Notes was used to repay in full
MIE’s credit facility with CITIC Bank. The remaining
proceeds were used to finance the Company's
acquisition of Emir-Oil, LLC from BMB Munai, Inc.
and for working capital and general corporate
purposes. The Notes were listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited on May 13,
2011.

19 Borrowings 19 EX
(a) Summary of borrowings (a) EREE
As at December 31,
R+=A=+—-8"
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBETFTT
Bank borrowings RITIER
Non-current IER — 1,191,862
Current pinE2)] — 99,341
Total bank borrowings BIRITIE R = 1,291,203
Senior notes BERE
Non-current SETRED 2,463,004 —
Total borrowings arE 2,463,004 1,291,203
Senior Notes EBEER

AARRZE——FRA+TZABTRZ
—ANFRH4EETIIENEERE(R
&)  ZERNZEEAEILZERNET5EE
H BZZ——F+—-A+T-ARBESY¥
FHRNEEREAT-_BE+—A+-HX
o EMBREBITRBABNEEER 7
ELAeUREMMAT RN ERE  B1TR
BOFRSRIBFELEIIEET - BIEH
ENFBHREAER —FHBRANEREZH
MI Energy Corporation 45 /R FR{ZSR1T R A
RARIRFRERITEMNMEE : EHRIER
7 [ BMB Munai, Inc. 4 & Emir-Oil, LLC -
RiEgEES R —MEERE - ERERZ
T——FRAT=AENNEELFRZME
FRARF LT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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19 Borrowings (Continued)

(a)

Summary of borrowings (Continued)
Senior Notes (Continued)

The Notes are general obligation of the Company
and senior in right of payment to any existing
and future obligations of the Company and its
subsidiaries expressly subordinated in right of
payment to the Notes.

The Notes and the guarantees provided by the
certain subsidiaries will limit the ability of the
Company and certain of its subsidiaries to, among
other things (and subject to certain qualifications and
exceptions), incur additional indebtedness and issue
preferred stock, make investment.

At any time on or after May 12, 2014, the Company
may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at a
redemption price equal to the percentage of principal
amount set forth below, plus accrued and unpaid
interest to the redemption date, if redeemed during
the 12-month period commencing on May 12 of any
year set forth below:

19 BR(E)

(a)

ERBE ()
BRI ()

RERARAN—RAE  EXEREN LE
ERARRREFRARIERERRIBUEBE
ERBNERRELARREE -

FEB N A T B QR R AR AR
REIAD R REETH B A BEELEIM
815 BITEEBRARRES I HAEES (IE
ANEETEREPIIMERERIN) o

RZZE—MFRH A+ =Bk 2 &I AR -
ARBARBER T XA SEA DA
BRESMAZERAHEAREED B
H1) T RIS (208 ) (R T XXAEL
ERFEELA+ BB+ @A HEE
@) EE 25 E O RE -

Period Redemption Price
HARS BEE
2014 104.8750%
2015 102.4375%
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19 Borrowings (Continued)

(a)

Summary of borrowings (Continued)
Senior Notes (Continued)

At any time prior to May 12, 2014, the Company
may at its option redeem the Notes, in whole but
not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of
the principal amount of the Notes, plus the applicable
premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest to
the redemption date.

In addition, at any time prior to May 12, 2014, the
Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate
principal amount of the Notes with the net cash
proceeds of one or more sales of common stock of
the Company in an equity offering at a redemption
price of 109.75% of the principal amount of the
Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date, provided that at least 65% of the
aggregate principal amount of the Notes issued on
the original issue date remains outstanding after
each such redemption and any such redemption
takes place within 60 days after the closing of the
related equity offering.

19 (H =k

J=

B 7FA (:nﬁ )

(a)

BB ()
BRI (E)

RZZT—NFERA+ZHAEAER - AAQ
AITERERBASRERARNSE100% EEE
SNEEER A ETRIEER B 8)/E
FA B LA R B R AR FIR (0 F) - BEE
HimIEBHRE

pEoN  RZZ—MFE R A+ = B AT
- ARFARBAENEHBAE5109.75%
BEE SNEZERAHCENREER
HE) R RARNFE (F) - LARAF
E—RRAFEER —RKZREE LB
FReFHEBLOESZAEBEAETDY
35% ' MEREMEITHRETHRERSZ
FZE L 65% T XA BIEE &) M A EE A
RAT( B BRI RN A IR AN S A RE N+
REEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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19 Borrowings (Continued) 19 BR(E)
(b) The Notes included in the consolidated statement of (b) REHEAHEEBBRBE ZEAEND
financial position were calculated as follow: ™~
As at December 31,
Rt=A=+—8"
2011 2010
=F——% —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AEBTT
Carrying amount as at January 1, HE-A—BEBREREREE - —
Issue of the Notes BITEE 2,528,955 —
Amortization of the Notes SREH 897 —
Exchange difference &N =5 (66,848) —
Carrying amount of the Notes HE+-_A=1+—HBZ%E
as at December 31, FREEE 2,463,004 —
(c) The effective interest rates at the dates of the (c) REBEHEBEBBRAS  THEMEL
consolidated statements of financial position are as T
follows:
As at December 31,
Rt=ZA=t+—8"
2011 2010
—2——F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBEFT
Effective interest rates on ERERF =
the bank borrowings — 5.85%

Effective interest rates on the Notes BAEEBRERAE 10.91% —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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19 Borrowings (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to contractual
interest rate changes based on LIBOR + 4.5% at
December 31, 2010 are as follows:

19

ek (&)

(d) mx&EEEFEGNENR _Z—ZTF+_-4
=+ HOmBERTTRERE N E45E
EMARMEREFHERIMT

As at December 31,

R+=A=+-8
2011 2010
—g—-5& -—z-3¢
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

<1 year PR — 99,341
1-2 years —EMF — 529,816
2-5 years MERF — 662,046
Total borrowings gk %a — 1,291,203

The Notes which bear a fixed interest rate of 9.75%
is not subject to interest rate changes.

The fair value of the current and non-current portions
of borrowings approximates their carrying amounts.

The borrowings are denominated in US dollars.
The Group has obtained a RMB50 million facility

from China Construction Bank on January 4, 2012
(Note 33).

ERAABENRBEIERB B OURE
EMREEE -

(e) fEFIIUAETEE -
(f) XEER-Z—-F—-AHBAPEERR

TESERBMEARKL000&ETERRE
(Fff3E33) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB IERRM

20 Employee compensation costs

20 ETHMMRA

Year ended December 31,
BE+t-A=1t—HILEE

2011 2010

—E——fF —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Wages, salaries and allowances T& - #5& K2 165,209 70,829
Housing subsidies EEmEL 1,811 1,327
Share options granted B AR 5,414 10,360
Stock appreciation rights granted BEERMIEERE 12,628 19,069
Pension costs IRURE AR 6,850 4,613
Welfare and other expenses wBHEEMER 5,140 4,148
197,052 110,346

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments for the year ended December

31, 2011 and 2010 are set out below:

(a) ES=M=

BE-T-—FR-T-BFI-A=t-

AIEFE  EEMEFIWT

Employer's
contribution Share
Salaries and Discretionary  to pension options
Name of Director Fees allowances bonuses scheme granted Total
B E

EEpg e  HEREM Rfsge MEIMER CRERE &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

For the year ended BZ-Z--E+-A=t-AH

December 31, 2011 L5E

Zhang Ruilin Rk - 4,143 6,526 - - 10,669
Zhao Jiangwei B - 1,970 8,056 - - 10,026
Forrest Dietrich Forrest Dietrich - 2,151 6,143 - 1,187 9,481
Allen Mak Bl - 2,192 6,616 - 1,583 10,391
Wang Sing T4 - — - _ _ _
Jeffrey W. Miller Jeffrey W. Miller 315 - - - 899 1214
Mei Jianping BEY 252 - - - 629 881
Cai Rucheng THA, 252 - - - - 252
42914

For the year ended BE-E-BE+CA=1-H

December 31, 2010 1:3:5

Zhang Ruilin Rk - 3,860 - 300 — 4,160
Zhao Jiangwei B - 3240 1692 200 — 5,132
Forrest Dietrich Forrest Dietrich — 2,288 508 - 2,836 5,632
Allen Mak Bl — 3,681 1,692 — 3,781 9,154
Wang Sing I — — — — — -
Jeffrey W. Miller Jeffrey W. Miller - - - - - -
Mei Jianping BT — — — - - —
Cai Rucheng T — — _ _ _ _
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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20 Employee compensation costs (Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the

highest in the Group for the years ended December

31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

20 ETHMAAE ()

(b) HEEEBSHFHAL

AEBHE-Z——FRK-_T—ZTF+=A
—t+—RALtFERESEeFALTHOT

Year ended December 31,
BE+-A=t—ALEE.

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

Directors o 4 4
Non-director individual FEEFEAL 1 1

The details of emoluments paid to the five highest

individuals who were Directors of the Company
during the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010 have been included in above. Details of

emoluments paid to the remaining non-director

individual are as follows:

AARBE_ZE——R-_Z-ZF+_H
T HALFEENERRSHALTHHAR
RNEIEENHESHBEHEN L - BERAHBT
FEEATHMSFHBOT

Year ended December 31,
BE+-A=+—ALEE.

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBTT

Salaries and allowances e MoEBh 1,731 2,330
Discretionary bonuses mi5iEE 5,594 1,692
Stock appreciation rights granted BEERMIEER 680 2,836

8,005

6,858
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B F B aR MY = ()

20 Employee compensation costs (Continued) 20

(c) During the financial year ended December 31, 2011,
none of the Directors of the Company and the five
highest paid individuals:

(i) received any emolument from the Group as an
inducement upon joining the Group;

(i) receive any compensation for loss of office as
a director or managerial of any member of the

Group;

(i) waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments.

BT HMMRA (&)

(c)

REE_T——F+_A=+—HLIEKF
EHE BESEFIhEEaHFATELRE
:

() WEUEATB S (R INA & B By 22
B

(i)  WEREAHESERREERTHEM
B ERAIEFHIE

(i) RERE B EAEA RN

21 Taxes other than income taxes 21 BiE(FREHRM)
Year ended December 31,
BE+=-RA=+—HLEE"
2011 2010
—E——F —E=-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARMBETF T
China 2]
Special oil levy AaERIkES 595,368 288,133
Urban construction tax and education WER R ENNE
surcharge 13,825 1,163
609,193 289,296
Kazakhstan g A
Mineral extraction tax YRR 6,699 —
Rent export tax Hed O 25,458 —
Rent export duty expenditures HedABEHES 5,527 —
Property tax EX) 7,549 —
Others Hit 2,340 —
47,573 —

656,766 289,296
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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22 Other losses

23

22 HuEE

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2011 2010

—Z2——F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Loss on oil hedge options FHmEHIHIRE 1B (32,137) (44,692)
Others HAith 7,239 7,048
Total &5t (24,898) (37,644)

The net loss of the oil hedge options in the year ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 is due to the change in fair
value of the unrealized portion of the oil hedge options.

Finance costs — net

BARBRBON DA BEEHIE -

23 BI%KER — FE

BE-_Z——FEk-F-ZTF+-A=1+—HL
FE- AREMBENFERIIARABENS

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+-ALEE

2011 2010
—E——F —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT
Finance income B A
Interest income from savings accounts HEBRPAEFEWA 4,066 144
Exchange gain b 5 Yo 70,662 35,200
Total finance income 4B AW A 74,728 35,344
Finance costs BiEEA
Interest expenses FBHX 224,279 86,777
Bank charges RITER 10,200 11
Exchange loss P& H &5 18 3 —
Total finance costs HmerReE R 234,482 86,788
Finance costs — net MEER — FE 159,754 51,444
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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24

Income tax expense

24 FISHiBEX

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2011 2010
2% —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBTT

Current income tax — overseas BVERFTIS T — 84N 280,526 239,411
Deferred income tax (Note 17) EIEFTISEE (e 17) 13,383 (77,7086)
293,909 161,705

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided for as the
Group did not have estimated assessable profit subject to
profits tax in Hong Kong during the years ended December
31, 2011 and 2010. Taxation on overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

HE-T - —FR-Z-BET-A=t-AL
T AREAREEANEER GO ERG
FIE - BUKIREEBEHRE < BINFED
BB R R R 5T PR B (R S B
$BHREARORTHENH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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24 Income tax expense (Continued)

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated

entities as follows:

24 FREBIFAX (&)

R

AEBERGHRATABONIR - BRAAGFERAN
B R R IR I B R T R E A R IR s T B A

Year ended December 31,
BE+-A=+—HLFE "

2011 2010

—2——F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARBT T

Profit before income tax % TS 5% Al ) 1,399,751 582,569

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates EEEERERMF)EIZEA

applicable to profits in the respective W E MR R E R R IR

countries 301,022 145,642

Tax effect of income not subject to tax BRI A BTG 2 (17,898) —

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  “~A[ 1% B % 10,788 17,115

Prior year tax filling adjustments EERIEB R THE 659 (736)
Additional-deduction for research and 3t AR B S hnEt 0B

development expenses (662) (316)

Tax charge MES 293,909 161,705

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 22% (2010: BREMINEFHSFRR E22% (- FE—F4 : 25%) o

25%).

25 Investments in subsidiaries and amount due 25

from subsidiaries — Company

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

(a) FRERE

HYQANRERER — 2 F

As at December 31,

R+=B=+—8"
2011 2010
—E2——F —ET-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBETT
Investments in subsidiaries — FRARE —
unlisted shares e 1,418,594 1,400,552
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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25

Investments in subsidiaries and amount due

25

from subsidiaries — Company (Continued)

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

The following is a list of the subsidiaries at December

HYINAWRERER — 27 (&)

(a) FRAARRE(E)
RZB——F+-R=+—0 " FRAIX

31, 2011: N
Date of Particulars
Place of incorporation Principal activities incorporation/ ofissued Interest held
Name and kind of legal entity  and place of operation acquisition share capital by the Group
EMALBEREE RARYL/
8 TRER TEEBANLERY BERH BRITRE BERR
MI Energy Corporation Cayman, limited Production and sale May 22, 2001 50,000 100%
liabilities company of oilin China “2Z—F  ordinary shares of
FEES AREMAT HHPELERLERR AEZt=B  1USdollar each
50,000 5 f% -
BR—%T
MIE New Ventures Cayman, limited Investment holding August 6, 2010 10,000 100%
Corporation liahilities company REER ZZ-2F  ordinary shares of
REHS BREALR NA7~E  1US dollar each
10,000 £ &0 -
g%
Palagontol Codperatief UA.  Netherland, a cooperative  Investment holding February 8, 2011 — 100%
with no liability REER —T—5_ANH
- AR (BER)
Palagontol B.V. Netherland, limited Investment holding February 11, 2011 18,000 shares of 100%
liabilities company REER “F—%ZAf+-H 1 Euro each
wE - ERERERR 18,000 &%
—B
Gobi Energy Limited Cayman, limited Investment holding June 3,2011 100 ordinary shares 100%
liahilities company REER “2——%FXA=H  of 1US dollar each
FEHS BREMALT 10058 -
BR—%n
Riyadh Energy Limited Cayman, limited Investment holding June 3,2011 100 ordinary shares 100%
liabilities company REER ZE-—EA=H  of 1US dollar each
FEHS EREMALT 100 588K -

BR—%7
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25

Investments in subsidiaries and amount due

25

from subsidiaries — Company (Continued)

HINFAWRERER — 27 (&)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (a) FoEIERE(E)
Date of Particulars
Place of incorporation Principal activities incorporation/ ofissued  Interest held
Name and kind of legal entity  and place of operation acquisition share capital by the Group
AR L i B R R RARYL/
2 TRER FTEERACERY BERS BEES BEER
MIE Jurassic Energy Cayman, limited Investment holding September 9, 2011 100 ordinary shares 100%
Corporation liahilities company REER “Z2——%AFNE  of 1US dollar each
FEHS BREMALT 100 553K -
BR—%7
Emir-Oil, LLC Kazakhstan, limited Production and sale of oil September 30, 2011 Charter capital of the 100%
liabilities partnership and gas in Kazakhstan ~ ZZF——FNA=TH  partnership being
RERME AREA  ARERFBAEERLE 82,300 Kazakhstan
BRLE BRER Tenge
ABLREMER
82,300/
2579
Condor Energy Technology ~ Nevada, limited Exploration of il and October 12, 2011 — 80%
LLC liabilities company gas in the United States —Z——%+A+=H
ZEREEN  ARER EXEHRAR
NG
Asia Power Energy Cayman, limited Investment holding November 24, 2011 100 ordinary shares 100%
Corporation liahilities company REER “Z——%  0of 1US dollar each
REHS  BREALA +—A=tImH 100 @k -

BR-%T
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25 Investments in subsidiaries and amount due
from subsidiaries — Company (Continued)

(b) Amount due from subsidiaries

The non-current amount due from subsidiaries
reflects part of the Company’s net investment in
subsidiaries. These amounts are non-trade related,
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

The current amount due from subsidiaries are non-
trade related, unsecured and interest free and
expects to be repaid within twelve months from the
balance sheet date.

26 Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to
the extent of RMB304,618,000 (2010: RMB217,597,000).

27 Equity distributions

The dividend in respect of the year ended December 31,
2010 of HK$0.035 per share, amounting to a total dividend
of HK$92,447,000 (RMB77,933,000) was approved at the
annual general meeting on May 6, 2011 and was paid on
May 27, 2011.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2011 of HK$0.044 per share, amounting to a total dividend
of HK$116,583,000 (RMB94,514,000), is to be proposed
at the annual general meeting in May 2012. These
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

25

26

27

HYINAWRERER — 27 (&)

(b) ERFFLH

FFRAREFCERBE D RARAEFAR
FREN B - RO FERFESE
R EANER  BERBREERIR -

TFRRAERRB O RIEEH M - BIE
! ENSNFHIE ARABREERER
B+ —EAREE -

RRFREFE AEMERF

RAREERE AREEFRIERRAREEARE
xR BeEA AR304,618,000 L (T —FF
A ANER#217,597,0007T) °

—E-FF+-A=+—BHILFEMREN
R-ZE——FRANBEZERRFE L
c BB A FROBBE BEA
92,447,000 7% ¥ ( A R 77,933,0007L) * E A=
T——FRAZFEBINM -

REE_T——F+tZA=1+—HLLFEHREE
BHER_E——FRANAGEE2ERREFS LR
He IR B A E RIME K BEAR
116,583,000 8 ¥& ( AR 94,514,000 7T) B AL S
BHE EARREILES ©

2011 2010
—2——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.044 AR B PR A B A% 0.044 7B
(2010: HK$0.035) per ordinary share (ZZ2—ZF : EBMR0.0358%) 116,583 92,447
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28

29

Cash generated from operating activities 28 RETHEENRE

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2011 2010
2% —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBTT

Profit before income tax BR PRS2 A& A 1,399,751 582,569
Adjustments for: FE
Depreciation, depletion and amortization E - FENREH 542,002 528,582
Interest expenses — net SFEFSRX 220,213 86,633
Unrealized foreign exchange gain I ANE Y25 (70,659) (35,200)
Loss on disposal of property, BRETEE - ITHK -

plant and equipment BIEMEE 1,089 —
Fair value loss on oil hedge options AOhEREEN A1 BEEE 32,137 44,692
Gain arising from acquisition of Emir-Qil, U 8% Emir-Oil, LLC F|15

LLC (Note 30) (Kiz£30) (460,345) —
Changes in working capital: BEESEE
Inventories FE (17,578) 41,023
Trade and other receivables JE U % L At FE L R TR (209,796) 86,426
Trade and other payables FEAS I Eo A FE < 5RIE 220,955 9,509
Cash generated from operations KEELNIRS 1,657,769 1,344,234
Commitments and contingencies 29 AFZELRREEE
(a) Commitments (a) 7&FE

The Group does not have any capital expenditure
contracted for at the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position.

AEETNFEEANAHEEABRASCE
B ARMEATH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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29 Commitments and contingencies
(Continued)

(a)

Commitments (Continued)

The Group has operating lease commitments related
to its non-cancellable operating leases for offices.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments
under these operating leases are as follows:

29

AHERIABEE ()

(a) 7 (&)

AEEHAERRAETABBEEEHNER
M ETRAAGE  RETHNIE T HARKRIE
MERNKBLT

As at December 31,

Rt+t=—B=+—8H"
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARBETT

Less than 1 year DR —F 4,687 1,296
Within 1-2 years —E 4 3,507 1,500
Within 2-5 years —ERHF 4,304 —

12,498 2,796

Lease expenses for the year ended December
31, 2011 relates to office and car rental of
RMB12,565,000 (2010: RMB6,591,000).

According to the production contracts for 3 blocks in
Kazakhstan, the Group is obligated to perform
minimum work program during the life of the
production contracts.

BHE—Z——F+-FA=+—BIFENHA
ERYARAZERAEHAE AR
12,565000C( = & — T F: AR
6,591,000 7T) °

RERER=-—ARRNEESR  AREL
AHEARBRARTRETEASNT

As at

December 31, 2011
R=B——%F
+t=BA=+—-R
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Less than 1 year DR—F
Within 1-2 years —E=F
Within 2-5 years —ERF

440,808
834,376
881,123

2,156,307
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29 Commitments and contingencies
(Continued)

(b)

Contingencies

On August 28, 2000, MIE entered into a PSC with
Sinopec for exploration and development of Luojiayi
64 block at Shengli oilfield in Shandong Province. In
2000, MIE began the trial-development phase of its
operations at Luojiayi 64 block at Shengli and drilled
a dry hole. The project has been suspended since
the end of 2004. In April 2005, MIE requested an
extension from Sinopec to restart the project at
Shengli. On September 27, 2006, MIE received a
letter from Sinopec denying the request to restart
the project and seeking to terminate the PSC on the
grounds that the extension period of the trial-
development phase had expired and MIE had not
met its investment commitment of at least US$2
million under the PSC. MIE believes its investment
in the project at Luojiayi 64 block at Shengli oilfield
had met the required commitment amount under
the PSC. The PSC with Sinopec has not been
formally terminated and the dispute has not entered
any judicial proceedings.

30 Business combination

On September 19, 2011, the Group acquired 100% of the
share capital of Emir-Oil, LLC and intercompany loans
payable by Emir-Qil, LLC for US$159,601,000 and obtained
control of Emir-Oil, LLC, an oil and natural gas exploration

and production company in the Republic of Kazakhstan.

The Group assumed controlled of Emir-Qil, LLC on
September 30, 2011.

29

30

AHEREABEE(E)

(b)

REEE

RZZEZZFNAZ+/\B  MEEPAE
FIMEMDKER - ENR R B ILR
EBFHANEREMER - R_TTT
FOMERBANERE64ERREFMARH
HRBEVEES—O®%R - ZBEEE-Z
TNFERBWHE R_ZTZTHFWA -
MIE B R AL BT R IR A EFBE R
BRWER - RZTEXFLA=++EA -
MIEBEHR AT AR S BZIAR 23k
B - BRACUERFEREERTEREAR
EREEMENRBITERD KA RFED
2,000,000 TR E &% Al BRg ik
ERAKER - MIEBEERBIEHER
FCABMBEBEPHREEFEERD KA
RIFTIREMFEFESTE - BRAEHERD K
BRI AR ERLL L B 4430 R E AT DA
[N

\

XBast

RZZE——FALA+IEB  AEEEAEmMI-OI,
LLC#9100% %7 & Emir-Oil, LLC &JEH A RIFE
o BB 3271159,601,000 ¢ I ER{S E 4= HI#E - 3%
NRAEMREREA A FEST AR RAREE
MomRihE e AEENR - E——FENA=1+HE
1§ Emir-Oil, LLC #3214 o
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30 Business combination (Continued)

As a result of the acquisition, the Group expanded and
diversified its operation beyond PRC into the Republic of
Kazakhstan. The negative goodwill of RMB580,680,000
arising from the acquisition of Emir-Qil is mainly due to the
following:

1. BMB Munai, Inc. (“BMB"), the then parent of Emir-
Oil, had defaulted on certain covenants of its
convertible senior notes and had attempted to re-
negotiate with the convertible senior notes holders
since 2010. As a result, Emir-Oil was having difficulty
obtaining new funding from BMB, or other lenders
to meet its oil exploration license conditions within
the required timetable.

2. At the date the Company entered into the
participation interest purchase agreement with BMB
to acquire Emir-Oil, Brent oil price was US$103.43
per barrel. At the completion date of the Company’s
acquisition of Emir-Qil, Brent oil price had increased
by 8.6% to US$112.30 per barrel.

Therefore, the fair value of Emir-oil’'s net assets at the
acquisition completion date, being predominately its oil
reserves valued by an independent appraisal firm, was in
excess of the purchase price paid by the Company thus
resulting in the negative goodwill of RMB580,680,000.

30 ¥KS0F(E)

FEEHRIBIRER  ANEBBHCEEERPE
AREMBEEART Z /b EW iE 5w S8 A E -
EEEAMAREARE 580,680,000 THKEAMNUT
£I8

1. Emir-OlERAIEA FBMB Munai, Inc.(TBMB)
BILEA AR RZENE TRE  TE=
T-EFREARAEARSARBEREAE
HHEER o Et - Emir-Oil R E# % BMB sl H A
B SR B AFRIE BATE AR T FF PR P9 32 B A i Y
BRAFAI BRI -

2. RAAFEBMBRI VLM E
WEEMrOIlZz B TR EHERTE
103.43 27T ° AR AIUEE Emir-Oil 52K 2
A MmEREED EFA86% =8 112.30
ETe

ELt - Emir-Oil 8 FEERWIETR 2 AR AR E
B(XERBE I EMEEAMFEENMGE) B
ARAAZNOEEBR BELhEEARY
580,680,000 T B & -
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US$20,000 and a success fee equating to 2.5% of the

consideration payable at closing date.

30 Business combination (Continued) 30 ¥BEHE(E)

The following table summarizes the consideration paid for TRBEFEMIr-OIl, LLCZ MR EE LA NER
Emir-Oil, LLC, using the fair value of assets acquired and EAHEANEENRES BEREIEEGMERRR
liabilities assumed at the date the Group assumed control. NAfEE -
Consideration at September 30, 2011 RMB'000
R-ZF——FNA=TEHE ARBFT
Cash RE 1,014,248
Total consideration HEYHE 1,014,248
Recognized amounts of identifiable ARZANBEEENRESEN

assets acquired and liabilities s

assumed
Cash and cash equivalents HE NREEHEY 28,323
Property, plant and equipment (Note 6)  EhE - TR &4 (M:E6) 1,392,488
Intangible assets (Note 7) mpEE(Wi7) 577,348
Inventories FE 2,050
Trade and other receivables 7 U B R N E At JE U SRR 83,351
Restricted cash ZIRHIR e 6,418
Trade and other payables JEABRFN N HoAth JE S BB (292,431)
Assets retirement obligations (Note 16) BEZEBZH® (K15 16) (10,060)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 17) FIRLEMSHa’(WaT17) (192,559)
Total identifiable net assets APRRFEELE 1,594,928
Negative goodwill EEE (580,680)
Acquisition related cost U BB FE R B AN

— Option to ACAP (Note 9) — T ACAP R E# (f17£9) 85,157

— Others* — Hfp* 35,178
Total acquisition related cost U BB AEBA R AN 42 58 120,335
Gain arising from acquisition of Y& Emir-Qil, LLC 718

Emir-Qil, LLC (460,345)
Cash consideration paid YIRS EE 1,014,248
Cash and cash equivalents of Emir-Oil, Y8 H Emir-Oil, LLCIR &

LLC at date of acquisition MR FEEY (28,323)
Acquisition of Emir-Qil, LLC, Y B8 Emir-Oil, LLC, 1B}

net of cash acquired BANES 985,925
* Include certain fees paid to ACAP for a monthly retainer of * BIE (V4 ACAPEYE A BE A & 55 7T 20,000 MAFE

HEAENEE25%NKNE -
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30 Business combination (Continued)

31

The revenue included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income since October 1, 2011 contributed
by Emir-Oil, LLC was RMB103,470,000. Emir incurred loss
of RMB14,690,000 over the same period.

Had Emir-Qil, LLC been consolidated from January 1,
2011, the consolidated statement of income would show
revenue of RMB3,257,080,000 and net profit of
RMB1,056,233,000. The consolidated revenue and profit,
assuming Emir-Oil, LLC has been consolidated from
January 1, 2011, have included additional amortization of
mineral rights recognized on acquisition and interest
expense on the increase in net debt as result of the
acquisition.

Related party transactions

The Group is controlled by FEEL, which owns 53.43% of
the Company’s shares and is also the ultimate parent of
the Group. The ultimate controlling parties of the Group
are Mr. Zhang Ruilin and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei.

30

31

EKE0 (F)

A ANREREEA _T——F+A—Hit
f Emir-Oil, LLC ERBI I A B AR M 103,470,000
JC ° EmirJNE R B A E5 18 A R #14,690,0007T °

& Emir-Oil, LLCE=Z——&—A—HEEA
HAR Alattma REiNBABRARE
3,257,080,000 7T i 8 # /3 A K 1,056,233,000
Lo REEmIrOil, LLCEZ=F——F—A—Hif
ERFARK ARG REROBANFERE
TURBEEMREFRENEINERERNEL
BEZMINRERNFEEM -

BEBEBLINXS

NEBXFEELEEES - FEELEA AR RIRA
K)53.43% ' WHERAEBMNRET AT - AEE
R BRI HI T5 AR Im AR o M T 88504 ©
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31 Related party transactions (Continued) 31 HEBEBANXS (E)
(a)  The following transactions and balances were carried (a) EREAEE IR F REESRAT ¢

out with related parties:

Year ended December 31,
BE+t-A=+—HILEE -

2011 2010
—E——f —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT

Transactions with PSC partners HERIAEGABHNRS
Global Oil Corporation RAN IR AEAA
Amounts received on behalf of GOC RIBERD KA RRFKBRAF
arising from the PSCs IRIRAh ) FROE 303,802 202,256
Loan granted to GOC P2 PSR AR TS IB B A S B 2 92,330 91,586
Repayment of loan by GOC SRAF IR A BEREER (63,779) —
Cost incurred on behalf of GOC RIBFERD KA RNRTBAF E
from PSCs IRIRA T Z AR 255,949 146,211
PetroChina AAH
Sales to PetroChina HR A MM IEERE 2,723,671 1,804,976
Cost incurred on behalf of PetroChina REBEERIKERNRERPAH
from PSCs i 2 RFHY B AR 97,971 140,062

Transactions with a company/person £ FEEL 322 i% i% 52 /5 B8 (0 R B
related to the controlling shareholder 2T/ A+WX5

of FEEL
Jilin Guotai Petroleum Development EMEE AR
Company* BRARF*
Purchases of materials and spare parts BRI RZ4F 376 525
Purchases of oil well services BB B H AR 163,327 108,631
Rental of vehicles AEMES 2,535 2,298
Purchases of vehicles BEA 3,232 —
Zhao Jiangbo TR
Rental of office premise WAEYEMRS 1,296 1,126
Rental of vehicles AEES 3,504 3,276
* The amounts disclosed above represents gross amount * DA E BT B £ 58 A MIE (fE A7 & Ak = (&
transacted between the MIE, acting as operator for HEEEE) BEB AR R P HEE - HME
Daan, Moliging and Miao 3 oilfields , with Jilin Guotai Bl Zx A0 3 A R 2 8] R ot A B BB i
Petroleum Development Company, which is controlled TTE R S

by Zhao Jiangbo, spouse of Mr. Zhang Ruilin.
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31 Related party transactions (Continued) 31 HEREBLINRS (E)
(b)  Amounts due from related parties included in trade (b)  EFAFE U K2 E b fE W FR IE /9 FE U BE B 5 TX
and other receivables: I8 -

As at December 31,

R+=H=+—8"
2011 2010
—E——f —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AR®ETF T
Amounts due from related FEWEBARIRERD K

companies and PSC partners EREBMAENFE
Current B
Global Qil Corporation (non-trade) SRANMTIBYAEAR (EES)

(Note 10) (KtzE10) 142,500 137,590
PetroChina (trade) (Note 10) RaR(BS)(MiE10) 300,914 170,984
PetroChina (non-trade) (Note 10) RamGEEB S)(Hat10) 37,993 33,225

481,407 341,799
Non-current IR E
Global Oil Corporation (non-trade) RN IR A E A
(Note 10) (3EE %) (MtaE10) = 24,212
481,407 366,011
Advance to Suppliers EEEEEL B
Jilin Guotai Petroleum Development EMEERAHEZEEGRAA
Company (trade) (Note 10) (B5)(KiF10) 31,718 45,283

The above balances represent trade and unbilled rLitESRARRBRERSKERAPAHEE
BREENRGEE R AMIE - RIRA
FERIKABMAREHMEBEN EERERE
SRR R IR ER A A RN O - IRRE
mAKERASEREREMEMD KERZ
HRTBAERNTH - ARAHEHRE B RAHA
BHRARZTHEAEREOENR

receivables from PetroChina from sale of crude oil to
PetroChina pursuant to the PSCs, advances to Global
Oil Corporation which arise mainly from amounts
received on behalf of Global Oil Corporation,
expenditures incurred by the Group on behalf of
other PSC partners pursuant to the PSCs, and
advances for oilfield related services from Jilin
Guotai Petroleum Development Company.
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31

Related party transactions (Continued)

(c)

Amounts due to related companies included in trade

and other payables:

31

HEBLINXS (&)

SIS B E At 8 A SR IR B A S 8 R R
18 :

As at December 31,

R+t=-A=+—-8"
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFIT

Amounts due to other related parties
Zhao Jiangbo (non-trade) (Note 18)

FE {3 Bt BE Bt 75 B9 SR
BTRGEES) (HiE18)

— 616

The above balance with Zhao Jiangbo, spouse of
controlling shareholder of FEEL, arose from rental of

vehicles and office premises.

Key management compensation is presented below:

bt TR (FEELEERRBR R eV BCAB ) B0 A8 84t
REABERMAEMENES
TEREEAEMESFINWT

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2011 2010
—=E——fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R AEBTTT
Expenses B
Short-term benefits: FSHAR 2 ¢
— Directors’ fees —EEBH 819 —
— Salaries and allowances — FreAERL 21,071 21,032
— Discretionary bonuses — WiEEe 48,083 7,909
— Employer’s contribution to — RIRETEIME MK
pension scheme 229 787
— Share options and share — BT a s AR iE &R
appreciation rights granted (B HE 11,458 15,937
Total st 81,660 45,665
Accrued liability 28 E
Short-term benefits: %2 B 5
— Bonuses — AT A 34,915 6,675
34,915 6,675

Bonuses fall due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the period in which management

rendered the related services.

AREREEABRRTEEREHRR =
BAANZEEIE -
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32 Earnings per share 32 BREF
(a) Basic (a) EXK
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the ERGRKERERBENARRMEENF
net profit attributable to owners of the Company by B BRUAAREERNDETE R INETFS
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in HEE -

issue during the year.

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+-ALEE

2011 2010
—g——F —T-2F
RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT

Net profit attributable to owners of M HEFEEBRARARFAES
the Company 1,106,072 420,864
Adjustment for: FE -
Dividends entitled by Series A RIIABEREZRE
preferred shares - (82,823)
Dividends entitled by Series B RYIBEEREZRE
preferred shares - (48,082)
1,106,072 289,959
Weighted average number of ordinary INREE T @EIRE R
shares (thousands) (TR 2,643,681 1,638,264

Earnings per share, Basic BRREREZA]
(RMB per share) (Bl ARE) 0.42 0.19
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32 Earnings per share (Continued)

(b)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. Prior to Company's Global
Offering on December 14, 2010, the Company had
two categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
convertible preferred shares and share options. The
convertible preferred shares are assumed to be
converted into ordinary shares at the later of,
beginning of the relevant year or date of issuance.
For share options, a calculation is performed to
determine the number of ordinary shares that could
have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average annual market share price of the Company’s
shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to the weighted average
number of outstanding share options. Subsequent to
the Company’s Global Offering, the Company only
has share options outstanding which are potentially
dilutive.

The number of ordinary shares calculated as above
for earnings per share, basic is increased by the
number of ordinary shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share options
and conversion of preferred shares at the later of,
beginning of the relevant year or date of issuance.

32 BREF (&)
(b) ¥

SRBBANDEBRRAEHEEL L BRE
R EEEBECBRITERRNINE T
AE -R-ZF-FF+_ATHALXRRE
REEUR  ARBAMBHEELEL B
B NEREFEFVRERETARE 2T
A% B B A R A B T AR SRR - A
BRESBRDREATERAEER - ERE
Pt AR R 7T 150 8 P A ) 08 T 25 BT BRY
RBRENEREER BETUECRAREER
(BANARBRMDOFHFETE) BANEE
BN - EARFRIREE 2R - AATFE
BHEARITE BERELGBERERE

BIAEREAGRABHN T AFENEBREK
B - B ERERBEEMELENEEFE
FURERETHME 2R HHETE
HE|M BTN EBRHUE -
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32 Earnings per share (Continued)

(b) Diluted (Continued)

32

!HHR%U (nﬁ)
(b) (&)

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+-ALEE

2011 2010
= —ETTF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBTT

Net profit attributable to owners KA CIIRERE B AR s T

of the Company 1,106,072 420,864
Net profit used to determine diluted AREEERE SR F R T

earnings per share 1,106,072 420,864
Weighted average number of T mREE (FR)

ordinary shares (thousands) 2,643,681 1,638,264
Adjustments for: PFE

— Assumed conversion of convertible — RERE R ] R NE IR

preferred shares (thousands) (FA) — 684,284
— Share options (thousands) — BENRHE (T17) 15,483 9,919

Weighted average number of diluted AEtE
potential ordinary shares for diluted i
earnings per share (thousands)

FhEERNNEEE
Pt 8 (1)

2,659,164 2,232,467

Earnings per share, Diluted BREEEN (BRARE)

(RMB per share)

0.42 0.19

33 Subsequent events

MIE entered into a RMB working capital loan agreement
with China Construction Bank (“CCB") on January 4, 2012
for a RMB50 million 6 month loan commencing from
January 13, 2012 at the interest rate of 7.015% per
annum. The interest rate is the base rate as published by
the People’s Bank of China at 6.1% per annum plus 15%
and the resulting effective interest rate is 7.015% per
annum. The loan is secured by a pledge on MIE's
entitlement on the sales income from Moliging and
Miao 3.

33

HEBRER

MERZE—ZF— B EFEERET( 2
BTNV —TBARBEEECERGZE ¥
R—2 A\RESTET6EABER  FHEZZ
——F—HAT=BF  FRE7.015E - &Fx
TRPEARBITAMZ EEFEGF61ELF
15% S HERFNEA7.015E - EFUAERMIE
REEEREISHANZ 2 HEWRAERR -
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